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Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

15 hsted on the London Stock Exchange and a member of the FTSE 250
share index It is a leading international business-to-business media group
focused primarily on the international finance, metals and commodities
sectors

The group publishes more than 70 titles in both print and online format,
including Euromoney, Institutional Investor and Metal Bulletin, and 1s a
leading provider of electronic research and data under the BCA Research,
Ned Davis Research and ISI Emerging Markets brands It also runs an
extensive portfolio of conferences, seminars and training courses for
financial markets.

The group’s main offices are in London, New York, Montreal and Hong
Kong and more than a third of its revenues are derived from emerging
markets
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Highlights

"The record results for the year reflect the challenging market
conditions as well as the successful implementation of our strategy.
Investment in online information businesses and emerging markets has
created a global portfolio with a resilient business model. Subscription
revenues now account for more than 50% of group revenues, and more
than a third of our revenues is derived from emerging markets.

In 2013, we will continue to invest in our products to ensure that we are
well placed to benefit from any improvement in the global economy.”

Richard Ensor
Chairman

Revenue

£394.1m

Adjusted Profit before Tax*

£106.8m

Diluted Earnings
Per Share

55.2p

Adjusted Operating Profit*

£118.2m

Profit before Tax

£92.4m

Dividend

21.75p

*  See reconcilation of Consoldated Income Statement to adjusted results on page 7

Operating Profit

£95.9m

Adjusted Diluted Earnings
Per Share*

65.9p

Net Debt

£30.8m
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Our Divisions
Activities

FINANCIAL PUBLISHING

20%
£77.1M revence o oup

Financial publishing includes an
extensive portfolio of titles covering
the international capital markets as
well as a number of specialist financial
titles. Products include magazines,
newsletters, journals, surveys and
research, directories, and books.

A selection of the companys leading financal
brands includes Euromoney, Institutional Investor,
EuroWeek, Latn Finance, Asiamoney, Global
Investor, Project Finance, Air Finance and the hedge
fund title EuroHedge

BUSINESS PUBLISHING
16%

£64.6m revenue ——

The business publishing division
produces print and online information
for the metals and mining, legal,
telecoms and energy sectors.

Its leading brands include Metal Bulletin, American
Metal Market, Internatronal Financial Law Review,
International Tax Review and Managing Intelfectual
Property, Capacity, Petroleum Econormust, World Oif
and Hydrocarbon Processing
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TRAINING
8%
£ 3 1 . 2 M Rrevenue of group

The training division runs a
comprehensive range of banking,
finance and legal courses, both public
and in-house, under the Euromoney
and DC Gardner brands.

Courses are run all over the world for both
financial nstitutions and corporates In addition
the company’s Boston-based subsidiary, MIS, runs a
wide range of courses for the audit and information
security market

Principal Brands
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CONFERENCES and SEMINARS

£92.3m Revenue

23%

of group
turnover

The group runs a large number of
sponsored conferences and seminars
for the international financial
markets, mostly under the Euromoney,
Institutional Investor, Metal Bulletin
and IMN brands.

Many of these conferences are the leading annual
events in therr sector and provide sponsors with
a high quality programme and speakers, and
outstanding networking opportunities Such events
include Euromoney’s Covered Bond Congress, the
Global Borrowers and Investors Forumn, the Annual
Global Hedge Fund Summit, the European Airfinance
Conference, and Global ABS and ABS East for the
asset-backed securities market In the commodities
sector, events include Metal Bulletin’s International
Ferro Alfoys conference and the world’s leading
annual coal conferences, Coaltrans and Coaltrans
Asta, TelCap runs International Telecoms Week, the
worldwide meeting place for telecom carners and
service providers, and MIS runs a leading event for
the information security sector in the US, infoSec
World

RESEARCH and DATA

£1 30.3m Revenue

33%

of group
turnover

The group provides a number of
subscription-based research and data
services for financial markets.

Montreal-based BCA Research Is one of the world’s
leading independent providers of global macro
economic research In 2011, the group expanded its
independent research activities with the acquisition
of US-based Ned Davis Research, a leading provider
of mndependent financial research to institutional
and retall investors The company’s US subsidiary,
internet Secunities, Inc provides the world’s most
comprehensive service for news and data on global
emerging markets under the Emerging Markets
Information Service (EMIS) brand, and includes CEIC,
one of the leading providers of time-series macro-
economic data for emerging markets The group
also offers global capital market databases through
a venture with rts partner, Dealogic (Holdings) pic
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Chairman’s Statement

Richard Ensor

Highlights

Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC  the
international onlne information and events
group, achieved a record adjusted profit
before tax of £106 8 million for the year to
September 30 2012, againsy £92 7 milhon in
2011 Adusted diuted earnings a share were
65 9p (2011 56 1p} The drectors recommend
an 18% increase in the final dwidend to
14 75p, gving a total for the year of 2175p
(2011 18 75p), to be paid to shareholders on
February 14 2013
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Total revenues for the year increased by 9% to
£394 1 milion Underlying revenues, excluding
acquisitions, increased by 3% The acquisttion
of Ned Davis Research {NDR) n August 2011
has helped increase the proportion of revenues
generated from subscriptions to more than
50% for the first ume Headline subscription
revenues Increased by 17% to £199 7 million
and underlying subscriptions, excluding NDR,
by 5%

The adjusted operating margin was unchanged
at 30% Costs, particularly headcount have
remained tightly controlled throughout the year
At the same time, the group has increased its
investment in technology and new products as
part of its online growth strategy

Net debt at September 30 was £308 millon
compared with £88 5 mithon at March 31 and
£119 2 milion at September 30 2011 in the
absence of any significant acgquisitions, net
debt has fallen by £88 4 mithon since the start
of the year, reflect:ng the group's strong cash
flows and an cperating cash conversion rate*
in excess of 100% The groups net debt (s
now at its lowest level for more than a decade
and its robust balance sheet provides plenty
of headroom for the group to pursue its
acquisitien strategy

As highlighted 1n previous trading updates,
market concitions became noticeably tougher
from June The uncertanty over Europe
remains, as does a solution to the pending
Us fiscal chff Meanwhile giobal financal
institutions face the combined challenges of
difficult markets, increased capital requirements
and a tougher regulatory environment Inevitably
they have responded by cutbng costs,
particularly people, and exiing some parts
of ther business However, the outlook for
emerging markets which account for meore
than a third of the group’s revenues, 15 more
positive  The board expects this challenging
trading background to continue at [east Into the
early partof 2013
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Strategy

The group’s strategy remains the building of
a robust and ughtly focused global online
information  business with an emphasis on
emerging markets This strategy 15 beng
executed through increasing the proportion of
revenues derived from electronic subscription
products, using technology efficiently to assist
the online migration of the groups pnnt
products as well as developing new electronic
information services, investing i products of
the highest qualty, eliminating products with a
low margin or too high a dependence on print
advertising, mantaming tight cost control at all
tmes, retaining and fostening an entrepreneurnal
culture, and using a healthy balance sheet and
strong cash flows to fund sefective acquisitions

Driving revenue growth from existing as well
as new products 15 a key part of the group’s
stralegy Since 2010, the group has been
investing heawly in technology and content
delivery platforms, particularly for the mobile
user, and In new digital products as part of s
transiticn to an online information business In
2012, asin 2011, the group spent approximately
£10 mikon on this transition This Jevel of
expenditure 15 expected to continue in 2013 In
addition, the group has recently started work on
a preject 1o buidd a new platform for authoring,
stonng and presenting its content, with a view
to both improving the quahty of its existing
subscripion products and increasing the speed
to market of new onlne information services
This project 1s expected to have a capital cost of
approximately £6 mdhon in 2013

Acquisitions remain a key part of the group’s
strategy The most recent was the purchase of
Global Grain for £5 7 milhion in February Global
Grain's main asset, Global Gramn Geneva, 15 the
worlds leading event for international gran
traders The event s held in November each year
and 1s on track to exceed last year s attendance
by at least 10%, while an event for the Asia-
Pacific region was launched successfully in
March and two further new events are planned
for 2013

While the market for acquisitions of specalist
online  informaton  businesses  remains
competiive and valuations challenging, the
group waill continue to use 1ts robust balance
sheet and strong cash flows 10 pursue further
transactions in 2013
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Chairman’s Statement

continued

Capital Appreciation Plan {CAP)
The CAP 15 the groups long-term incentive
scheme designed to retan and reward those
who drive profit growth and 15 an integral part
of the group's successful growth and investment
strategy

The terms of CAP 2010 broadly required an
adjusted profit before tax {(and before CAP
expense) of £100 million to be achieved, from
a base profit of £62 3 mullion in 2009, within
the four year penod ending in September 2013
The strong financial performance of the group
meant the initial CAP profit larget was achieved
in 2011, two years earher than expected The
CAP profit target for 2012 was increased to
£105 mulion following the acquisition of NDR,
and this target has also been achieved

Although the CAP profit target was first achieved
n 2011, the rules of the plan prevent CAP
options from vesting more than one year early
Individual CAP awards were therefore based on
the profits for 2012, creating a strong incentive
for profit growth this year Accordingly, the first
50% of CAP awards will vest in February 2013
and be satisfied by the issue of approximately 3 5
milion new ordinary shares and £15 milhon in
cash The secand 50% of CAP awards 1s subject
to an additional performance test for 2013 and
will vest in February 2014 prowvided the additional
performance test 15 satisfied, thereby prowiding
further incenuve for profit growth in 2013

The board believes the CAP has been an
imporiant driver of the fivefold increase in the
group’s profits since it was introduced 1n 2004
Subject to shareholder approval, the board
expects to put a new long-term incentive plan
in place from 2014
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Management

Cn October 15 2012, the company announced
the sad news of the death of s chairman,
Padraic Fallon, after a long battle with cancer
He had worked for the company for nearly 40
years and been executive chairman stnce 1992

Mr Fallon had already announced his intention
to retire at the AGM In January 2013, and a
succession plan was announced In August after
consultation with shareholders Under this plan,
| would assume the role of executive charrman
and Christopher Fordham, an executive director
since 2003 and the director responsible for the
group’s acquisition strategy, would take over
my responsibiittes as managing director This
successton plan has now been implemented
Further changes to the board are anticipated
over the next few months, including the
appointment of at least one new independent
non-executive director

Outlook

The uncertainty over Europe remains as does a
solution to the pending US fiscal chiff Meanwh:le
global finangal institutions face the combined
chaltenges of difficult markets, increased
capitat requirements and a tougher regulatory
environment lneviiably they have responded
by cutting costs, particularly people, and exiting
some parts of their business The board expects
this challenging trading background to continue
at least into the early part of 2013

Subscriptions  account for half the groups
revenues and therefore provide some protection
against weak markets in 2013, as does the
group’s reliance on emerging markets for
more than a third of its revenues However,
the negative trends in advertising and delegate
revenues 1N the last quarler are expected to
continue into the first quarter of financial
year 2013, although the outlook for event
sponsorship 15 more positve First  quarter
trading has started in line with the boards
expectations but as usual at this time, forward
revenue wsibility beyond the first quarter 1s
lwruted, other than for subscriptions

For 2013, the group plans to continue
1its programme  of avestng In the digital
transformatron of its publishing businesses and
in improving the quality of s products The
board 15 confidemi 1ts strategy for investing in
new products and digital pubhshing and using
its strong balance sheet to fund acquisitions,
its exposute to emerging markets, and its tight
control of operating cosis will continue to sustain
1t through these difficult market conditions
As the world economy begins an albeit slow
recavery, financial and other markets will also
gradually improve, enhancmg ospects

L)

Richard Ensor
Chairman
November 14 2012

* The operating cash conversion rate 15 the percentage
by which cash generated from operations covers
ad|usted operating profiy
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Appendix to Chairman’s Statement

Reconciliation of Consolidated Income Statement to adjusted results for the year ended September 30 2012
The reconciliation below sets out the adjusted results of the group and the related adjustments to the statutory Income Statement that the directors
consider necessary in order to provide an indication of the adjusted trading performance

Adjust- 2012 Adjust- 201
Adjusted ments Total  Adusted ments Total
Notes £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Total revenue 3 394,144 - 394,144 363,142 - 363,142
Operating profit before acquired intangible
amortisation, long-term in<entive expense and
exceptional items 3 118,175 - 118,175 108 967 - 108,967
Acquired intangible amortisation 12 - (14,782) (14,782} - (12,221) (12 221)
Long-term incentive éxpense (6.301) - (6.301) (9,491) - (9 491)
Additional accelerated long-term incentive expense 6 - - - - (6,603} (6 603)
Exceptional items 5 - (1,617) {1,617) - (3,295) (3 295)
Operating profit before associates 111,874 (16,399) 95,475 99,476 /(22, 119) 77,357
Share of resulis in associates 459 - 459 408 - 408
Operating profit 112,333 (16,399) 95,934 09,884 (22,119} 77,765
Finance income 8 1.500 2,975 4,475 1,761 - 1,761
Finance expense 8 (7,064) (977} (8,041} (8,961) (2,368} (11,329)
Net finance costs (5,564) 1,998 (3,566) (7,200) (2,368} (9,568)
Profit before tax 106,769 (14,401) 92,368 92,684 (24,487) 68,157
Tax expense on profit 9 (23,359) 831 {22,528) (24,164) 1,637 {22,527)
Profit after tax 83,410 {13,570) 69,840 68 520 {22,850) 45,670
Attributable to
Equity holders of the parent 83.242 (13.570) 69,672 68,441 (22,850) 45,591
Equity non-controlling interests 168 - 168 79 - 79
83,410 (13,570) 69,840 68 520 {22,850) 45,670
Diluted earmings per share
~ continuing operations 1 6591p (10 74)p 5517p 56 05p {18 71)p 37 34p

Adjusted figures are presented before the impact of amortisation of acquired intangible assets {compnsing trademarks and brands, databases and
customer relationships) the adcitional accelerated long-term incentive expense restructuring and other exceptional operating costs, mavements in
acgusition deferred consideration and net movements in acquisition option commitment values In respect of earnings, adjusted ameunts reflect a tax
rate that includes the current 1ax effect of the goodwill and intangible assets

Further analysis of the adjusting items s presented in notes 5, 6, 8, 9 11 and 12 to the Annual Report
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Directors’ Report

The directors submit therr annual report and
group accounts for the year ended September
302012

Certain statements made in this document are
forward-looking statements Such statements are
based on current expectations and are subject to
a nurnber of nsks and uncertainties that could
cause actual events or results ta differ matenally
from any expected future events or resuits referred
to in these forward-looking statements Unless
othenwise required by applicable law, reguiation
or accounting standard the directors do not
undertake any obligation to update or revise
any forward-tooking statements, whether as a
result of new information, future development
or otherwise Nothing in this document shall be
regarded as a profit forecast

The Directors’ Report has been prepared for the
group as a whole and, therefore, gives greater
emphasis to thase matters which are significant
to Euromoney Institutional investor PLC and
its subsidiary undertakings when wiewed as a

08

whole It has been prepared solely to provide
additional information to shareholders to assess
the company s strategy and the potential for that
strategy to succeed, and the Directors Report
should not be relied upon by any other party for
any other purpose The Corporate Governance
Report forms part of this Directors’ Report

1 Principal activities

Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC s listed
on the London Stock Exchange and a member
of the FTSE 250 share index It is a ieading
international business-to-business media group
focused primarily on the international finance,
metals and commodities sectors ft publishes
more than 70 titles in bath prnint and online
format, including Euromoney, institutional
Investor and Metal Bulfetin, and 15 a leading
provider of electrome research and data under
the BCA Research, Ned Dawis Research and
ISI Ermerging Markets brands It also runs an
extensive portfolo of conferences, serminars
and training courses for financial markets The

group’s main offices are in London, New York,
Mantreal and Hong Kong and more than a
third of its revenues are derived from emerging
markets Detalls of the group’s legal entities can
be found in note 14

2 Business model

The group's activities are categonsed into
five aperating dwisions Financial Publishing,
Bus:ness Publishing, Conferences and Seminars,
Traiming, and Research and Data (see pages
2 and 3 for further details) The group has many
mutually exclusive valuable brands {see pages
2 and 3) allowing the dwectors to extend the
value of existing products and to leverage
these into new areas - both on a geographical
basis and a new product basis, for example
publishing businesses often run branded
avents covering therr area of specalism The
group has a sizeable and valuable marketing
database alloming new and exsting products
1o be matched with relevant comparies and
individuals on a talored basis
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The group primarnly generates revenues from
four revenue strears advertising, subscriptions,
sponsorship, and delegates

Advertising revenues represent the fees that
customers pay to place an advert in one or
more of the groups publications, ether in
print or online Adveruising revenue 1$ primanly
generated from the Financial Publishing and
Bustness Publishing divisions

Subscription revenues are the fees that customers
pay to receve access to the group’s information,
aither through online access to varipus databases,
through regular delivery of soft copy research,
publicatons and newsletters or hard copy
magazines Subscriptions are ako recewved from
customers who beleng to Institutronal Investor's
exclusive  specialsed membership  groups
Subscription revenue 1s pnmarnly generated from
the Finanaal Publishung, Business Publishing and
Research and Data dwvisions

Sponsorship tevenues represent fees pad by
customers to sponsor an event A payment of
sponsorship entitles the sponsor 1o high-profila
speaking opportunities at the conference, unique
branding before, dunng and after the event
and an unparalleled networking opporturity to
meet the sponsors chients and representatives
Sponsorship revenue 15 generated from the
Conferences and Seminars division and the
publishing businesses which run smaller events

Delegate revenues represent fees paid by
customers to attend a conference, training
tourse or seminar Delegate revenues are denved
from the Conferences and Serminars and Training
divisions and from smaller events run by the
publishing businesses

Details of the group’s revenues by revenue
stream and by division are set out in note 3

The group has a global customer base with
revenue derived from almost 200 countnes,
with approximately 60% from the US, Canada
UK and the rest of Europe and more than a
third of 1ts revenue from emerging markets
Its customer base predominantly consists of

financial institutions, governments, financial
adwvisory firms, hedge fund grganmisations, law
firms, commodity traders, other corporate
organisatiens and far the group’s riche focused
products refevant niche corporate entities across
the length of the respective supply chain

The group’s main offices are located in London,
New York Montreal and Hong Kong

The group’s costs are tightly managed with a
constant focus on margin control The group
benefits from hawng a flexble cost base,
outsourcing the printing of publications, hirng
external venues for events, and choosing to
engage freelancers, contributors, external traners
and speakers 1o help delver 1its products Other
than 1ts main offkes, the group avoids the fixed
costs of offices n most of the markets in which it
operates This allows the group to scale up resource
or reduce overhead as the economic environment
in which it operates demand

The group has strong covenants and takes
advantage of its ability to borrow money cheaply
using these funds to invest In new products
and fund acquisitions Fhe group's subscnption
revenues are normally received in advance, at
the beginning of the subscription servce, and
a typical subscripbon contract would be for a
12 month period This helps provide the group
with sirong cash flows and normally leads to
cash generated from operations being in excess
of adjusted operating profit — a cash conversion
percentage In excess of 100%

The board does not micro-manage each business,
instead devolwing operating decisions to the local
management of each business, while taking
advantage of astrong central controlenvironment
for monitoning performance and underlying
risk This encourages an entrepreneurial culture
where businesses have the nght kind of support
and managers are motivated and rewarded for
growth and initiative

The group invests for the long-term in businesses
and products that meet certain financial and
strategic cntena  Equally, where businesses

no longer fit, the group divests The group 15
investing heavily in 11s program to migrate its
print products online develop new electronic
information services, and to take advantage of
mobile and cloud technology

3 Strategy

The key elements of the group's strategy are

e drnving top-hine revenue growth from both
new and existing products,

e bulding robust subscripticn and repeat
revenues and reducing the dependence on
adveriising

e improving operating margins through tight
cost control,

® Investing in new businesses, technology
and the online rmigration of s publishing
actvities,

¢ leveraging technalogy 1o launch specialsed
new electrontc information services,

e making acquisitions that supplement the
groups existing busmesses,

e strengthening the company’s market
postion in key areas which have the
capaaty for organic growth using the
existing knowledge base of the group,

e managmg its cash flows to keep its debt
within a net debt to EBITDA limit of three
times, and

s provding foster  an

entrepreneurnat culture and retan key peaple

(see section 4 4 6 of the Directors' Report)

ncentwves to

4  Business review

4.1 Group results and dividends
The group profit for the year attrnbutable to
shareho!ders amounted to £69 7 million (2013
£45 6 milien) The directors recommand a final
dwdend of 1475 pence per ordinary share
(2011 1250 pence), payable on Thursday
February 142013 1o shareholders on the regster
on Friday November 23 2012 This, together with
the intenm dvdend of 7 00 pence per ordinary
share (2011 & 25 pence) which was declared on
May 17 2012 and paid on July 19 2012, brings
the total dwdend for the year to 21 75 pence per
orchinary share (2011 18 75 pence)

09

Directors' Repont

Qur Governance Our Performance

Group Accounts

Company Accounts



Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2012
Www euromoneyplc com

Directors’ Report

continued

4.2 Key performance indicators
The group monitors its performance against its strategy using the following key performance indicators

Revenue Mix Revenue Mix Revenue
2012 2012 2011 2011 growth
£m % £m % %
Revenue growth and mix
Subscriptions 1997 51% 17110 47% +17%
Advertising 584 15% 627 17% (7%)
Sponsorship 476 12% 48 8 13% (2%)
Delegates B0 1 20% 750 20% +7%
Other/closed 97 2% 94 3% +3%
Foreign exchange losses on forward contracts {14) - (3 8) ~ -
394 1 100% 3631 100% +9%
2012 20N Change
Gross margmn' 751% 73 9% 12%
Adjusted operating margin? 30 0% 30 0% -
Like-for-like growth in profits? £5m £7 6m
Headcount! 2,133 211 22
Net debt to EBITDA® 0271 1011
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Gross margin gross profit as a percentage of revenue Gross profit and revenue are both as per note 4 to the fnancial statements
Adjusted operating margin operating profit before acquired intangible amortisation, long-term incentive expense, exceptional items and
associates as a percentage of revenue Operating profit and revenue are both as per the Group Income Statement (n the financial statements
Like-for-like growth in profits proportion of adjusted operating profit growth that relates to organic growth, rather than acquisitions
Adjusted operating profit 1s from continuing operations and excludes closed businesses, acquired intangible amortisation, exceptronal items,
long-term incentive expense, unallocated corporate costs and interest and 1s adjusted for significant timing differences

Headcount number of permanent peaple empfoyed at the end of the penod excluding people employed n associates

Net debt to EBITDA the amount of the group’s net debt (converted at the group's weighted average exchange rate for the roling 12 month
penod) to earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation and also before exceptional items and the accelerated long-term incentive
expense, but after the normal long-term incentive expense

CAP profit profit before tax excluding acquired intangible amortisation, long-term incentive expense, exceptianal items, net movements in acquisition
option commitments values, imputed interest on acquisition opton commitments, foreign exchange loss interest charge on tax equalisation contracts
and foreign exchange on restruciured hedging arrangements as set out in the Group Income Statement, note § and note 8

Adjusted PBT CAP profit after the deduction of long-term incentive expense as set out on page 7
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4.3 KPIs explained
The key performance indicators are all withun the board s expectations and support its successful strategy These indicators are discussed in detait in the
Chairman's Statement on pages 4 to 6, and in section 4 4 below

4 4 Development of the business of the group

4 4.1 Trading review

Tota! revenues for the year mcreased by 9% to £394 1 million After a 13% increase in the first half, the headline rate of revenue growth dropped to
5% 1n the second as markets becarne tougher and the impact of the acquisiion of NDR in August 2011 diminished Underlying revenues, excluding
NDR, increased by 1% in the second half against 6% in the first

Change at
constant
exchange
2012 2011 Headline change rates
Revenues £m fm H1 H2 Year Year
Subscriptions 199 7 1710 22% 12% 17% 16%
Advertising 584 627 (9%) (5%) (7%) (8%)
Sponsorship 47 6 a8 8 1% (%%) (2%) (4%)
Delegates 801 750 19% (4 %) 1% 6%
Other/closed 97 94 - 5% 3% 2%
Foreign exchange losses on forward
currency contracts (14) (3 8} - - - -
Total revenue 3941 3631 13% 5% 9% 8%
Less revenue from acquisitions (24 3) (4 6)
Underlying revenue 3698 3585 6% 1% 3% 2%
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Directors’ Report

continued

Subscriptions increased by 17% to nearly
£200 million and accounted for more than
haif the group’s revenues for the fist ume
Underlying subscription revenues, excluding
NDR, :ncreased by 5%, with the growth driven
largely by the group’s electronic information
services such as BCA Research and CEIC Data

The 7% fall in advertising revenues reflects
two very different trends Financial titles have
experienced falls of as much as 20% in the face
of deep cuts by global financial institutions  But
this has been partly offset by increases in online
advertising, a greater appetite for pant advertising
from emerging markets and growth in advertising
from sectors outside finance, particularly energy

Event revenues broadly comprise an egual
mix of sponsorship and paying delegates
Event sponsorship, which s heavly financial
market focused, has suffered in a similar way
to advertising, atthough to a lesser degree
Events, particularly those autside the financial
sector which tend to be more delegate driven,
performed well (n the first half but growth has
been more difficult to achieve in the second
and some smaller events were cut

The group derives nearly twa-thirds of its total
revenue in US doltars and movements in the
sterling-US doltar rate can have a significant
impact on reported revenues However, this
was not the case 1 2012 and headline revenue
growth rates are similar to those at constant
currency (see table above)

The group’s adjusted operatng margin was
30 0% the same as 2011 The increased
spend on technology and digital products has
reduced margins 1n the publishing businesses,
while in the research and data dwision margins
have improved following investments made
In the previous two years In the face of
challenging markets, costs and margins have
remained tightly controfled throughout the
year Permanent headcount at September 30
was 2,133 against 2,111 a year ago, with most
of the increase coming in the second hali The
average headcount (Including temporary staff)
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increased by 3% during the year, mostly due
to the acquisition of NDR at the end of 2011

4.4.2 Business division review
Financial Publishing revenues fell by 8%
to £771 milion and adjusted operating
profits by 12% to £24 9 midlion Advertising,
which accounts for approximately half the
division’s revenues, has been under pressure
all year from cuts i spend by global financial
institutions as well as a gradual shift away from
print advertis:ing across the sector As a result,
financial advertising fell by 13%, afthough ithe
impact of more severe cuts by Wall Street banks
was offset by a stronger performance from
emerging markets which helped sustain titles
such as Euromoney and Asiamoney Revenues
from subscription products were flat, helped by
the launch of new products

Business Publishing the group's activities
outside finance cover a number of sectors
ncluding  metals, commedities, energy,
telecoms and law, and prowde a strong
counterbalance to the more volatle financial
publishing division Revenues increased by 9%
to £64 6 rmillien and adjusted operating profits
by 5% to £24 5 million, with growth achieved
from both advertising, particularly in the energy
sector, and subscriptions, for which Metal
Bufletin 15 the biggest driver This year 15 the first
that profits from Business Publishing have been
similar to those from Financial Publishing

Training the group’s traming  dmision
predominantly serves the globat finanual sector
However, more than half its revenues are denved
from emerging markets, and this has helped
mitigaie the impact of cuts in bank headcount
and traning budgets Training revenues fell by
4% to £312 million and adjusted operating
profits by 11% to £7 0 mihon The dechine in
operating margin from 24% to 22% was largely
due to the completion at the end of 2011 of
a long-term training contract in Asia and the
margin in the second half recovered to 25%

Conferences and Semunars  revenues
comprise  both sponsorship and  paying

delegates and increased by 7% 1o £923
millon with adjusted operating profits up
9% to f29 0 million After a strong first half,
markeis became more challenging during the
third quarter, the most important of the year
for the events businesses Financial market
events, with a heavy emphasis on sponsorship
revenues, have been under pressure from cost
cutting among global finanoial institutions
In contrast, events in sectors outside finance,
particularly in the commodities and energy
sectors, have performed better The dwision
also generates nearly 20% of its revenues from
subscnptions to  membership  organisations
for the asset management ndustry, and
these have continued to grow, helped by
a significant  investiment in Institutional
Investors Investor Inteligence Network, a
private online community for semor executives
from institutional investors and asset owners
wortawide

Research and Data revenues are derved
predominantly from subscriptions and increased
by 25% to £130 3 millon Underlying growth,
excluding NDR, was 6% The trends seen in the
first half have continued, with the mam drivers
of growth being BCA, the group s independent
macroeconomic research house CEIC, the
emerging market data provider, and the capital
market databases run as a joint venture with
Dealogic Renewal rates for ail these products
have held up well, atthough new sales have
been harder to generate Adjusted operating
profits increased by 30% to £554 milion
including a £9 0 million contribution from NDR

4.4.3 Financial review

The adjusted profit before tax of £106 8 million
compares to a statutory profit before tax of
£92 4 milion A detaled reconcihation of the
group’s adjusted and statutory results s set out
n the appendix to the Chairman's Statement
The statutory profit 1s generally lower than
the adusted profit before tax because of the
impact of acquired ntangible amortisation
Exceptional charges of £1 6 million (2011 £3 3
mullion) were incurred mainly as a result of the
restructyring of one of the group’s businesses
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The long-term incentive expense of £6 3 million
(2011 £9 5 milion before additional accelerated
expense of £6 6 milion) relates largely to the
amortisation of the £30 millon cost of the
company’s CAP scheme The reduction in this
year's expense partly reflacts the acceleration of
cost last year following the earlier than expected
vesting of CAP 2010 {see below), as well as a
credit of £1 8 millon for options lapsing under
CAP 2004 This early vesting means the CAP
2010 expense for 2013 s expected to fall to
approximately £2 0 million

Adjusted net finance costs for the group's
committed borrowing facility fell by £1 6 milien
10 £5 6 million, reflecting the rapid reduction
1n net debt, mast of 1t in the second half The
average cost of funds for the year fell 10 4 8%
(2011 57%]} as the group’s cheaper floating
rate debt compnsed a higher portion of total
debt following the acquisiion of NDR

Statutory net finance costs of £3 6 million (2011
£9 6 milien) nclude a £2 9 million credit for the
reduction in the expecied consideration payable
under the option agreement to acquire the
outstanding 15% munorty interest n NDR The
group acquired 85% of NDR for £68 5 million in
August 2011 and the integration with the rest
of the group, including the consolidavan of the
back affice functions the restructuning of the
sales teams and the opening of a sales office
in Lendon was completed according to plan
However, 1t has taken longer than expected to
convert the business to the standard subscription
model used by BCA, and to expand the sales
team This, combined with difficult markets in
the US has meant that the revenue growth from
NDR in 2012 has been less than that expected at
the time of acquisition, although the outlook for
growth in 2013 and beyond remains positive
As a result, the expected amount payable under
the NDR earn-out arrangement has fallen to
£7 9 million, of which £4 3 rmullion 15 payable in
2013

The adjusted effective tax rate for the year
was 22% against 26% n 2011 The tax rate
depends on the geographic mix of profis and
the group has benefited this year from the
reduction In the UK corporate tax rate from
26% to 24% The effective tax rate has also
benefited from an increase i the tax deduction
for geodwill amartisation on acquisitions in the
Us, following the purchase of NDR The UK tax
rate will fall to 23% m Aprll 2013, although this
benefit will be more than offset by the expsry of
the US tax deduction for goodwill amortisation
from the acquisition of Institutional Investor 15
years ago

The group continues to generate two-thirds of
1ts revenues, including approximately 30% of the
revanues from 1ts UK businesses, and mare than
half its operating profits in US dollars The group
hedges its exposure to the US dollar revenues in
1ts UK businesses by using forward contracts to
sell surplus US dollars This delays the impact of
movements :n exchange rates for at least a year
The group does not hedge the foreign exchange
nisk on the translation of overseas profits,
although 1t does endeavour to match foreign
currency borrowings with investmenis and the

related foreign currency finance costs provide a
partial hedge against the translation of overseas
profits  The translatron impact on overseas
profits of a one cent movement in the average
US dollar exchange rate 15 approximately £05
milbon on an annualised bass The average
sterling-US dollar rate for the year was $1 58
(2011 $37 61y which increased cperating profits
by approximately £1 5 million, most of it in the
second half

4.4.4 Net debt, cash flow and
dividend

Net debt at September 30 was £308 million
compared with £88 5 millon at March 31,
and has fallen by £88 4 million singe the start
of the year The group'’s net debt 15 now at its
lowest level since the acquisition of Institutional
Investor in 1997 The sharp fall in net deb1
dunng the year was helped by the offer of the
scrip dvidend alternative and the absence of any
significant acquisitions Cash generated from
operations increased by £4 2 million 10 £122 2
millon and the operating cash conversion rate
(the percentage by which cash generated from
operations covers adjusted operating proft),
was 103% (2011 108%) For 2013, the ending

S5A Markets — a comprehensive darly news and data service faunched by Euroweek
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of the scrnip dividend, combined with the £7 5
milkton cash payment following the vesting of
the first tranche of CAFP options and an increase
in technology capital expenditure, will reduce
the group’s free cash flows

The groups debt 15 provided through a $300
millon {(£190 million) dedicated multi-currency
committed facility from its parent company,
Dally Mail and General Trust plc (DMGT) This
facility expires in December 20113, after which
the group has the option to access a further
$300 mullion facility from DMGT for the penod
through April 2016 The option to take up this
facility must be exercised by November 2013

The company's policy 1s to distribute 2 third of its
after-tax earnings by way of dividends each year
Pursuant to this policy, the board recommends
a final dvidend of 14 75 pence a shase (2011

12 50 pence} gving a total dividend for the
year of 2175 pence a share (2011 1875
pence} Last year the additional accelerated CAP
expense of £6 6 milkon was not charged against
earnings for dividend purposes As explained at
the time, this expense would instead be charged
agamst earnings for dividend purposes over the
period ta which it originally related Accordingly,

14

earnings for dividend purposes were reduced
by £11 midlion in 2012, and will be similarly
reduced by £4 0 milion in 2013 and £15
milion in 2014

The final dividend will be paid on February
14 2013 to shareholders on the register at
November 23 2012 As announced at the time
af the intenm results, acceptance levels for the
scrip divedend alternative have been low and
the company will no longer be offering a scrip
dmdend

4 4 5 Balance sheet

The net assets of the group were £287 9 million
compared to £225 6 milion in 2011 The main
movements in the balance sheet sems were
intangible assets fell by £20 7 million, reflecting
amortisation costs of £14 8 million offset by the
recognition of £5 2 millon of goodwill and £1 3
million of acquired intangible assets following
the acquisiion of Global Grain and property,
plant and equipment felt by £2 4 million to
£18 0 millton, largely as a result of regular capital
expenditure across the group of £17 milhon
offset by depreciation of £3 4 million Trade and
other recevables fell by £5 5 millien to £66 0
milion due to a £4 7 million decrease in trade

debtors pnmanly reflecung improved collections
acrass the group and a £1 2 milhen reduction
in the deblors provision Other debtors fell by
£4 9 million reflecting the receipt of local taxes,
and prepayments and accrued income increased
by £2 0 milion, pnmanly due 1o an increase
n accrued subscription revenue Net current
income tax assets and habiities felf from a net
asset position of £1 8 million 1o a net hability
of £6 4 million following receipts in the year
and further provision for tax due from trading
activities, total acquisitton option commitments
fell from £11 0 million to £7 9 million manly
reflecting the revised commitment 1o purchase
the remaning equity sharehelding in NDR net
derivative fimancial instrument {(due less than
one year and more than one year) felt from a
hability of £6 9 milion to an asset of £2 1 milhon
following maturity of several forward currency
and interest rate swap contracts dunng the year
coupled with a reduction (n the mark to market
loss of the group's future Iinterest rate swaps
and forward currency cantracts, committed loan
facility fell £86 @ milion to £43 2 million, net
cash generated by the group from operations
of £122 2 million offset by £9 0 millon used
In investing activities, £96 4 million spent on
financing actvities and £15 3 million on tax, nat
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pension deficit increased from £1 9 million to a2
defiat of £4 8 million reflecting a £5 5 milkon
increase in the pension obligation offset by a
£2 6 million increase in the asset value

4 4 6 Capital Appreciation Plan
{CAP})

The CAP 15 a highly geared performance-
based share option scheme which both directly
rewards executives for the growth in profits of
the businesses they rmanage, and links this 1o
the delivery of shareholder vafue by satisfying
rewards 1n a mix of shares in the company and
cash The current CAP, CAP 2010, aims to mirror
the success of CAP 2004 for both shareholders
and management by delivering exceptional
profit growth over the performance penod
Further details of CAP 2004 and CAP 2010 are
set out in the Company Shares Schemes section
in the Directors Remuneration Report

4 4.7 Acquisitions and disposals
Acquisiions remain an important part of the
group’s growth strategy In partrcular the board
believes that acquisitions are valuable for taking
the group nto new sectors, for bringing new
technologies into the group and for increasing
the group's revenues by buying into rapidly
growtng mche businesses The group continues
to look for strategic acgwsitions In the areas of
international finance and commodities, and in
emerging markets

Acquisrtions

Purchase of new business - Global Grain
Geneva

On February 29 2012, the group acquired
Global Gran Geneva, the worlds leading
event for international grain traders The
mtal  consideration paid was €6,159,000
(£5,134 000) A further net consideration of
€93 000 (£77 000) 15 expected to be pad
dependent upon the audited results of the
business for the year 1o February 2013 The
acquisiton of Global Grain 15 consistent with the
group s strategy of bullding fast growing global
event businesses

Purchase of assocrate — Global Grain Asia
Also on February 29 2012, the group acquired
50% of Global Grain Asia, a new event ior gran
industry professionals in the Asia-Pacific reqion,
for €671,000 (£567,000) The group has the
option to purchase the remaining 50% equity
holding of GGA Pte Limited in March 2014
and of exercised expects to pay €1,021,000
(£813,000)

Provisional fair value and goodwill update -
Ned Davis Research (NDR)

In August 2011, the group acquired 85% of
the equity share capital of NDR, the US-based
provider of independent financial research
to institutional nvestors, for an imitial cash
consideration of US$1120 million (£685
million) Following true-up adjustments dunng
the year to the cash payable foliowing the final
working capital calculation, the cash recewvable
from non-controlling interests, the finahisation
of the sellers’ tax liability, the accounting pohcy
alignment of property, plant and equipment and
the recognition of previously unrecognised tax
habilities, the related goodwill was increased by
£1 0 million to £35 3 million

Further details of the abave acquisitions are set
out In note 15

Increase in equity holdings

During the year the group spent £840,000
on an additional 1 12% nterest in tnternet
Secunties Inc, the emerging market content
aggregator and data business taking its holding
to 99 92%

4.4.8 Headcount

The number of people employed 1s monitored
monthly to ensure there are sufficient resources
to meet the forthcoming demands of each
business and to make sure that the businesses
continue to delwer sufficient profits 1o
support the people they employ During 2012
the directors have focused on maintaming
headcount at a simifar tevel to that in 2011,
hitng new heads only where considered

essential or for investment purposes Headcount
at September 2012 was 2,133, an increase
of only 22 since September 2011, the man
Increases being in technology to support the
stepped up investment in that area and at NOR
as the directors expand its sales force into new
regions

4.4.9 Marketing and digital
development

In 2012 group marketing sirategy has focused
on wadening the prospect pool through the
group’s communities focus and dnving online
revenue through new product innovation

The group continues to push boundaries to
maintain customer acquisiiion by adopting a
more nurtunng approach to marketing — with
the explosion of niche online commun:ties and
online audience development The marketing
and digital development team create and
manage 70 communities with over 140,000
members, growing at a 6% monthly average
These communities reach finance, business and
commodities professionals across the globe In
addition, the online products have now achieved
over 14% growth iz unigue visitors

In 2012 the group spent £99 milhon In
online product development to drive muly-
device access to the groups product portfolio,
dedicated community services and launch new
prerium data-based subscriber services The
group’s dedicated online customer network for
aviation finance has now engaged over 3,300
senior members and provides a platform 10
keep them updated on industry news, events,
share cpnions and network together The
group's Innovative fnvestor intefligence Network
has 1,300 members with a combined US$18
trilhon 1n assets, prowding a private online
forum where institutional investors can question
therr peers In a confidential environment and
engage with investment managers on their
mandates The mobile and tablet applications
continue to roll out and have provided greater
online engagement with a 70% growth «n
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average time spent online from 2011 The
usage behaviour of mobile applications has
been complementary to online site usage,
engaging users whilst travelling or not ai their
desks The applications have also provided
an opporunsty for greater advertising and
spensorship revenues

Customers remain at the heart of the groups
strategy - the group now request onlne
custorner feedback, provide prototype and beta
stages of nncvation and have invested in online
segmentation and analyuics through Webtrends
across all sites

Efficiencies have contnued withim marketmng
services — with customer service, contact
research and event sales, accounting for 48%
of all event delegate revenue, now outsourced
to Philippines and India
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4.4.10 Systems and information
technology

The group continues to Increase Its Investment
1n technology with paricular emphasis on cloud,
mobile, social and data as well as the people
that manage 1ts delivery and management

A number of new products were launched as
well as existing digial assets redesigned during
the year to support continued business demand

Project Delphr was inttiated in 2012 and 15 at
the core of this digital strategy The project will
introduce a new digital application platform
for authoring, storing and presenting content
and data based upon a unified web content
management system, standards based XML data
repository and semantic engine It will enable the
repurposing of existing content and data with
granular discovery and aggregation, remove
existing barriers to product segmentation and

increase speed 1o market Responsive design
and HTMLS have both been adopted wathin
the digital development process with mobile
versions of key websites launched as well as
over 14 mobile applcations

Continued investment has been made
N rmgrating the digital and corporate
infrastructure 1o a new supplier who will provide
an enterprise class, service-onentated hybnd
cloud architecture Microsoft Office 365, remote
working solutions and Windows 7 have all been
successfully piloted and will be fully rotled cutin
2013 The new CRM and events platform have
continued to be rolled out across the group
with increased functionality Investment 1n the
e-commerce, tax and permissioning systems
also continved The online store technology wall
provide 3 way 1o promote better cross-selling of
preducts across the group
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A framework has been adopted for service
management in order to mimimise business
disruption and generate cost efficiencies across
the group There has also been an increased
focus on information secunty with érequent
penetration tests and audits conducted The
group’s digital assets are comphant with the
new Privacy and Electronic Communication
Regulations Pelicies regarding social media use
have similarly been reviewed and Euromoney is
actively building out capabilty in this area

These steps have increased the group’s flexibility,
scalability and resilence allowing technical
staff to instead focus on core front-office
and revenue-genesating activities rather than
commodity mantenance

4.4.11 Tax and treasury

Commuttee

The groups tax and treasury commitiee
normally meets twice a year and 1s responsible
for recommending policy te the board The
committee members are the chairman,
managing director and finance director of the
company, and the finance director and the
deputy finance director of DMGT The chairman
of the audit commiitee 15 also nvited to attend
tax and treasury meetings The group's treasury
policies are directed to giving greater certainty of
future costs and revenues and ensuring that the
group has adequate hiquidity for working capital
and debi capacity for funding acquisitions

Treasury

The treasury depariment does not act as a profit
centre, nor does it undertake any speculative
trading activity, and 1t operates within policies
and procedures approved by the board

Interest rate swaps are used to manage the
group’s exposure to fluctuations in interest rates
on 1is floating rate borrowings The maturity
profile of these dervatives 1s matched with
the expected future debt profile of the graup
The groups pelicy 1s to fix the interest rates on
approximately 80% of its term debt looking
forward over five years The matunty dates
are spread in order 1o avoid interest rate basis
nsk and alse to mitigate short-term changes In
interest rates

At September 30 2012, the group had 69% of
its gross debt fixed by the use of mnterest rate
hedges The predictability of interest costs s
deemed to be more impaortant than the possible
opportunity cost forgone of achieving lower
interest rates and this hedqing strategy has
the effect of spreading the groups exposure
to fluctuations arnising from changes in interest
rates and hence protects the groups interest
charge against sudden increases in rates but also
prevents the group from benefiting Immediately
from falls in rates

The group generates approximately two-
thirds of its revenues in US dollars, including
approximately 36% of the revenues in its UK-
based businesses, and approximately 60% of
its operating profits are US dollar-denominated
The group s therefore exposed to foreign
exchange nsk on the US dollar revenues in its
UK businesses, and on the translation of the
results of 1ts US dollar-denominated businesses

In order to hedge its exposure to US dollar
revenues In its UK businesses, a senes of forward
contracts are put In place to sell forward surplus
US dollars The group hedges 80% of forecast
US dollar revenues for the coming 12 months
and up to 50% for a further six months

The group does not hedge the foreign exchange
nsk on the translation of overseas profits,
although 1t does endeavour to match foreign
currency borrowings with investments and the
related foreign currency finance costs provide a
partial hedge agamnst the translat:ion of overseas
profits As a result of this hedging strategy
any profit or loss from the strengthening or
weakening of the US dollar wiil largely be
detayed until the following financial year and
beyond

Details of the financial instruments used are set
out in note 19 to the accounts

Tax

The adjusted effective tax rate based on
adjusted profit before tax and excluding
deferred tax movements on intangible assets,
prior year items and exceptional items s 22%
(2011 26%) The group's reported effective tax
rate decreased to an expense of 24% compared
to an expense of 33% in 2011 A reconciliation
1o the underlying effective rate 1s set cut i note
9 to the accounts

The total net deferred tax balance held 15 a
hability of £9 6 milhon (2011 £9 0 million) and
relates pnmarily to capitalised intangible assets
and rolled over capital gains, ret of deferred
tax assets held in respect of US tax losses and
short-term timing differences and the future
deductions avallable for the CAP
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5  Pnincpal risks and uncertainties

The principal nsks and uncertainties the group faces vary across the different businesses and are identified 1n the group’s nsk register Management of

sigmificant nisk 1s regularly on the agenda of the board and other senior management meetings

The geographical spread and diverse portfolio of businesses within the group help to dilute the impact of some of the group’s key risks

The groups prinapal nsks and uncertainties are summarised below

DOWNTURN IN ECONOMY OR MARKET SECTOR

The group generates significant Income from certain key geographical regions and market sectors for its publishing events, research and data businesses

POTENTIAL IMPACT

Uncertainty in global financial markets increases the risk of a downturn
or potential collapse in one or more areas of the business If this occurs
Income 1s likely to be adversely affected and {or events businesses some
abandonment costs may also be incurred

TRAVEL RISK

MITIGATION

The group has a diverse product mix and operates in many geographical
locations  This reduces dependency on any one sector or region
Managerment has the ability to cut costs quickly if required or to
switch the group's focus to new or unaffected markets, e g through
development of new vertical markets or transfernng events to better
perfarming regrons

The conference, seminar and training businesses account for approximately a third of the group s revenues and profits The success of thesa events and
courses relies heavily on the confidence 1n and ability of delegates and speakers to travel internationally

POTENTIAL IMPACT

Sigrificant disruptions to or reductions in international travel for any
reason could lead to events and courses being postponed or cancelled
and could have a significant impact on the group's performance

Past incdents such as transport strikes, extrerne weather wncluding
hurricanes, terronst attacks, fears over SARS and swine flu, and natural
disasters such as the disruption from volcanic ash in Europe, have all
had a negative impact on the group's results, although none matenally
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MITIGATION

Where possible, contingency plans are in place to minimuse the disruption
from travel restnictions Events can be postponed or moved to another
location, or increasingly can be attended remotely using onling
technologies Cancellation and abandonment insurance 15 in place for
the groun’s largest events
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COMPUANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Group businesses are subject to legislation and regulation in the jurisdictions in which they operate The key laws and regulations that may have an
impact on the group cover areas such as libel, brbery and corruption, competition, data protectron, privacy (ncluding e-privacy), health and safety
and employment law Additionally, speafic requlations from the Audit Bureau of Circulauons apply to published ttles (see incarrect circulation ¢laims

below)

POTENTIAL IMPACT

A breach of legislation or regulations could have a sigmificant impact on
the group in terms of additional costs management time and
reputational damage

In recent years responsibiities for manag:ng data protection have
increased significantly The emergence of new online technology Is
further driving legislatron and responsibilities for manaqing data privacy
Failure to comply with data protection and privacy laws could result in
significant financtal penalties and reputational damage

DATA INTEGRITY, AVAILABILITY AND SECURITY

MITIGATION

Comphance with laws and regulations 15 taken seriously throughout the
group The group's Code of Conduct (and supporting policies} sets out
appropriate standards of business behaviour and highlights the key legat
and regulatory issues affecting group businesses Dwisional and locat
management is responsible for compliance with apphcable local laws and
regulations, overseen by the executive committee and the board

The group has strict pahicies and controls in place for the management of
data protection and privacy across the group with staff recewing relevant
traiming This year the group rolled out website technology across all its
onhne businesses to comply with new EU e-privacy regulations (PECR)

Controls are also 1n place surrounding compliance with the Audit Bureau
of Curculation's regulations and ather regulatory bodies to whuch the group
adhere

The group uses large quantities of data including customer employee and commercial data in the ordinary course of its business The group also
publishes data (see published content risk below) The integnty, availability and security of this data is key to the success of the group

POTENTIAL IMPACT

Any challenge to the integrity or avallability of informaton that the
group relies upon could result wn operational and regutatory challenges,
costs to the group, reputational damage to the businesses and the
permanent loss of revenue The wider use of social media has increased
this risk as negative comments made about the group’s products can
now spread more easily

Although technological innovations in mobile working, the introduction
of doud-based technologies and the growang use of socal media
present exciling opportunities for the group, they also introduce new
information securnty risks that need to be managed carefully

MITIGATION

The group has comprehensive information security standards and paohicies
n place which are reviewed on a reqular basis Access to key systems
and data s restricted, momitored, and logged with auditable data trails
Restrnctions are sn place to prevent unauthonsed data downloads
The group s subject to regular internal information secunty audits,
supplemented by expert external resource

Comprehensive backup plans for IT infrastructure and business data are
in place to protect the businesses {rom unnecessary disruption

The group has professional iIndemntty insurance
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LONDON, NEW YORK, MONTREAL OR HONG KONG WIDE DISASTER

The groups main offices are located in London New York, Montreal and Hong Kong A significant incident affecting these reqions could lead to

disruption to group operations

POTENTLAL IMPACT

An incident affecting one or more of the key offices could disrupt the
ordinary operations of the businesses at these locations a region wide
disaster affecting all offices could have much worse implications with
sertous management and communication challenges for the group and
a potential adverse affect on results

The nisk of office space becoming unusable for a prolenged pentod and
a lack of suitable alternative accommeodation in the affected area could
also cause sigmficant disruption to the business and interfere with
delvery of products and services

Incidents affecting key chients or staff in these regions could alsc give rise
to the risk of not achieving forecast results

PUBLISHED CONTENT RISK

MITIGATION

Business continuity plans are in place for all businesses These plans are
refreshed annually and a programme is in place for testing If required
employees can work remotely

The group has robust [T systems with key locations (including the UK, US,
Canada and Asia) benefiting from offsite data backups, remote recovery
sites and third-party 24-hour support contracts for key applications

Recently the group s business continuity planning helped its New York
office to recover quickly and effectively from the significant disruption
caused by Hurnicane Sandy

The group generates a significant amaunt of its revenue from publishing, be it magazines, journals or nformation and data published online As a result, there
1s an inherent nsk of error which, in some istances, may geve nse to claims for libe! The rapid development of socral media has further increased this nsk

The transition to online publishing means content is being distributed far quicker and wider than ever before This has introduced new challenges for
securing and delwering content and effective management of content nights and royalties

The business also publishes databases and data services with a particular focus on high value propretary data There is the potential for errors in data
collection and data processing The group publishes industry pricing benchmarks for the metals markets and runs more than 100 reader polls and

awards each year

POTENTIAL IMPACT

A successful hbef claim could damage the group’s reputation The nse in
use of social media, and in particular blogging, has further increased this
risk Damage to the reputation of the group ansing from libel could lead
1o a loss of revenue, including income from advertising In addition there
could be costs incurred in defending the claim

The failure to manage content redistnbution nghts and royalty
agreements could lead to overpayment of royalties, loss of intellectual
property and additional habilities for redistnbution of content

The integnty of the group’s published data is critical to the success of the
group s database, research and data services The group also publishes
extensive pricing information and indices for the global metals industries
Errors in published data, pnce assessments or indices could affect the
reputation of the group leading to fewer subscribers and lower revenues
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MITEGATION

The group runs mandatary annual libel courses for all journalisis and
editors Controls are in place, including legal review, to approve content
that may carry a hbel nsk The group also has editoniat controls in place
for publishing using social media and this activity 1s momitored carefully

The group’s policy 15 to own 1ts content and manage redistribution nghts
tghtly Royalty and redistnbution agreements are 1n place to mitigate
nisks ansing from online publishing

The group has implemented tight controls for the venfication, deaning
and processing of data used in its database, research and data services

The group’s processes and methodologies far assessing metals pnces and
calculating indices are clearly defined and documented All employees
involved with publshing pniaing information receve relevant training  Robust
contractuat disclaimers are in place for all businesses that publish pricing data
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PUBLISHED CONTENT RISK cantinued

POTENTIAL IMPACT

Any challenge to the integnty of polls and awards could damage the
reputation of the product challenged and by association the rest of the
group, resulting in legal costs and a permanent loss of revenue

INCORRECT CIRCULATION OR AUDIENCE CLAIMS

MITIGATION

Polls and awards are regularly audited and a firewall 1s in place between
the commercial arm of the business and the editors involved in the polls
and awards

Key staff are aware of the significant nature of published content nsk and
strong Internal controls are in place for reporting to semor managernent if
a potential 1ssue anses The group alkso has libel insurance and professional
indemnity cover

The group publishes over 70 titles and sells advertising based partly on circulation and online audience figures An incorrect claim for arculation or

audence could adversely affect the group s reputation
POTENTIAL IMPACT

A clarm resulting from an incorrect circulation or audience claim could
lead to the permanent loss of advertisers and other revenue streams

LOSS OF KEY STAFF

MITIGATICN

The group audits the circulation figures of every publication regularly and
monitors related internal controls A stnict approval system 1s in place for
all media packs Detailed guidance i1s provided to all relevant employees
and therr undersianding of the rules 1s regularly monitored

There are a large number of mutually exclusive titles and it 1s unlikely that
an ncorrect arcufation claim, should it anise, would affect the arculation
of other titles within the wider group

Similar controls are appled to caims for electronic publishing activities
including online traffic reporting

The group s reltant on key management and siaff across all of its businesses Many products are dependent on specialist, technical expertise

POTENTIAL IMPACT

The inabtlity to recruit and retain talented people could affect the group’s
ability to maintain its performance and deliver growth

When key staff leave or retre, there 15 a nsk that knowledge or
competitive advantage 1s lost

MITIGATION

Long-term incentive plans are in place for key staff to encourage
retentton The directors remain committed to recrutment and retention
of high quality management and talent, and prowide a programme of
career opportunity and progression for employees including exiensive
trasning and international transfer cpportunities

Succession planming 15 in place for senior management The group
announced in August that PR Ensor, managing director, would succeed
PM Fallon as executive chairman with CHC Fordham, an executive director
since 2003, succeeding PR Ensor as managing directar This followed an
independent and ngorous sefection process These succession plans have
now been implemented
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Directors’ Report

continued

FAILURE OF CENTRAL BACK-QOFFICE TECHNOLOGY

The business has invested significantly in central back-office technology to support the transition of the business from print to gnline publishing The
back-office provides customer and product management, digital nghts management e-commerce and performance and actwity reporting The
platform supports a large share of the group’s ontine requirements including key activiuies for publishing, events and data businesses The back-office
technology 1s critical to the successful functioning of the online business and hence carnes a significant amount of nsk

POTENTIAL IMPACT

A failure of the back-office technology may affect the performance, data
integrity or avarability of the group’s products and services Any extensive
failure 1s likely to affect a large number of the businesses and custamers,
and lead directly to a loss of revenues

Online customers are accessing the groups digital content in an
increasing number of ways, including using websites, apps and e-books
The group relies on effectuve digital nghts management technology to
provide flexible and secure access to its content An inability to provide
flexible access nghts to the group’s content could lead to products being
less competitive or allow unauthonsed access to content, reducing
subscription revenues as a result

A reduction in back-office technology investment increases the nisk of
the online platform becorning ineffective with the group becoming less
competitive This could lead to fewer customers and dechimng group
revenues

ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL RISK

MITIGATION

The group continues to invest significantly n 1ts central back-office
technology The platform 1s planned, managed and run by a dedicated,
skilled tearn and its progress and perfermance s closely montored by the
executive committee and the board

The group condinues to invest in digital nghts management technology to
ensyre its content 1s adequately secured and changing customer
requirements for accessing the group's products and services are met

The group has recently made a substantial iInvesiment in new e-commerce
technology and hasting infrastructure to ensure the back-office platform
continues to perform effectvely aver the next five years

As well as launching and bullding new businesses the group continues to make strategic acquisitions where opportunities exist to strengthen the
group The management 1eam review a number of potential acquisitions each year with only a small proportion of these going through to the due
diligence stage and possible subsequent purchase The strategy also results in the disposal of businesses that no langer fit the group s snvestrnent

critera

POTENTIAL IMPACT

There 1s a nsk that an acquisition opportunity could be missed The
group could also suffer an impairment loss if an acquired business does
not generate the expected returns or fals to operate or grow in its
markets and products areas Additionally, there 15 a risk that a newly
acquired business is not ntegrated into the group successfully or that
the expected nsks of a newly acquired entity may be misunderstood
As a consequence a significant amount of management time could be
dverted from other operational matters

The group s also subtect to disposal nsk, possibly faling 10 achieve
optimal value from disposed businesses, faling to dentify the time at
which businesses should be sold or under estmating the impact on the
remaining group from such a disposal
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MITIGATION

Semor management perform detaled in-house due diligence on all
possible acquisiions and call on expert external advisers where deemed
necessary Acquisihion agreements are usually structured so as to retain
key employees 1n the acquired company and there 1s close momitoring
of performance at board level of the entity concerned post acquisition

The board regularly reviews the group’s existing portfolio of businesses to
identify under-performing businesses or businesses that no longer fit
with the group’s strategy and puts in place divestment plans accordingly
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FAILURE OF ONLINE STRATEGY

The emergence of new technologies such as tablet and other mobile devices and the proliferation of social media 1s changing how customers access
and use the groups products and services The group has established a strategy to meet the many challenges of migrating the publishing businesses
from traditional print media to online and to ensure the non-publishing businesses take advantage of new technology when advantageous to do so

This strategy has been pursued for a number of years

POTENTIAL IMPACT

The groups online strategy addresses a nurmber of challenges arising
from the groups transitton from print media 1o an online business and
changing customer behaviour

Competition has increased, with free content becoming more available on
the Internet and new competitors benefiting from the lower barners to
entry A fallure to manage pricing effectively or successfully differentiating
the group s products and services could negatively affect business results

The customer environment 1s changing fast with an increasing nurmber
spending more time using the Intermet Print orculation 1s dechning
and a failure to convert customers from print nsks a permanent loss of
customers to competition

The transition from the traditional monthly publishing cycle to contmuous
publshing has affected editorial practices signficantly A falure to
continue to manage this transition effectively could make the business
less efficient and less competitive

Further changes in technology including the widespread use of tablets
and other mobie dewices and the impact of socisl media such as
Linked!n and Twatter s changing customer behaviour and will introduce
new challenges for alt businesses A failure in the group’s online strategy
to meet these challenges could result in a permanent loss of revenue

TREASURY OPERATIONS

MITIGATION

The group 15 already embracing these challenges and overall sees the
Internet and other technological advances as an opportunity not a threat

Significant investment n the groups online strategy has already been
made and wll conunue for as fong as necessary (see 4410 of the
Drrectors Report) New content management technology i1s being
implemented across the group to enable more effective publishing to
web, print and the rapidly increasing number of mobile platforms coming
on to the market Many of the group s businesses already produce soft
coptes of publicatiens to supplement the hard copies as well as provide
information and content via apps

The groups acquisition strategy has tncreased the number of online
information providers in the business However, while enline revenues
are important, the group's product mix reduces dependency on this
mcome For example, the group generates a third of its profits from s
event businesses and face-to-face meetings remain an important par of
customers’ marketing activities

The group treasury function is responsible for executing treasury pohicy which seeks to manage the group s funding, hiquidity and treasury dervatives
nsks More specifically, these include currency exchange rate fluctuations, interest rate nsks, counterparty nisk and lquidity and debt tevels These risks

are descnibed in more detadl in note 19 to the finanaal statements

POTENTIAL IMPACT

If the treasury policy does not adequately mingate the financial risks
summansed above or 15 not correctly executed, 1t could result m
unforeseen denvative losses or higher than expected finance costs

The treasury function undertakes high value transactions hence there 1s
an inherent high nsk of payment fraud or error having an adverse rmpact
on group results

MITIGATION

The tax and treasury commuttee 1s responsible for reviewing and approving
group treasury policies which are executed by the group treasury

Segregation of duties and authanisatron limits are in place for all payments
made The treasury funcuon 15 also subject to regular internal audit
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Directors’ Report

continued

UNFORESEEN TAX LIABILITIES

The group operates within many tax junsdictions and earnings are therefore subject to taxation at diffenng rates across these junisdictions

POTENTIAL IMPACT

The directors endeavour to manage the tax affars of the group 1n an
efficent manner, however, due to an ever more complex international
tax enwronment there will always be a level of uncertainty when

MITIGATION

provisioning for tax habilities There 15 also a nsk of tax laws being
amended by authorities in the different junsdictions in which the group
operates which could have an adverse effect on the financial results

6 Future development in the
business

An ndication of the trading outlook for the
group s given in the Chairmans Statement on
page 6 In 2013 the directors will manage the
business to faciitate growth and to continue to
shape the business to remain competitive in the
economic environments 1 which 1t operates
The group 15 weil placed to diversify its product
and geographical base and remains commitied
to its stralegy set oul on page ¢

The board will continue 1o review the portfolio
of businesses, disposing, closing or restructuning
any under-perfarming businesses to allow the
group to have the necessary resources and skills
to remain acquisitive The group will invest in
technology and new businesses, particularly
electronic information products, as well as in (ts
mternal systems

7 Post balance sheet events

Events ansing after September 30 2012 are set
out in note 30

8 Directors and their
Interests

The company's Arucles of Association give
power to the board to appoint directors from
ttme to time In addition 1o the statutory rights
of shareholders 1o remove a director by ordinary
resolution, the board may als¢ remove a director
where 75% of the board gwve wntten notice
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to such drector The Articles of Association
themselves may be amended by a specal
resolution of the shareholders

The directors who served duning the year are listed
on page 47 The directors’ (nterests are given on
page 51 There were no changes in the executive
or non-executive directors dunng the year

Following best practice under the June 2010 UK
Corporate Governance Code and in accordance
with the companys Arucles of Association, all
directors  submit  themselves for re-election
annually Accordingly, all directors will retire
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
and, being elgible, will offer themselves for
re-election In addition, in accordance with the
June 2010 UK Combined Code on Corporate
Governance, before the re-election of a non-
executve drrector, the charman 15 required to
confirm 1o shareholders that, following formal
performance evaluation, the non-executive
directors’ performance contrnues to be effective
and demonstrates commitment to the role
Accordingly, the non-executive directors will
retire at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting and, being ehgible following a formal
performance evaluation by the charman, offer
themselves for re-election

Details of the interests of the directors in the
ordinary shares of the company and of options
held by the directors to subscribe for ordinary
shares in the company are set out in the Directors
Remuneration Report on pages 41 t0 52

External tax experts and in-house tax specialists, reporting to the tax and
treasury committee, work together to review all 1ax arrangements within
the group and keep abreast of changes in global tax legislation

9 Customers and suppliers

The group operates through a large number of
businesses In many gecgraphical locations As such,
the relationships with key customers and suppliers
15 decentraiised such that there 15 no overarching
policy on how the group manages these
relationships This enables each business to tailor
ther approach to suit customers” and suppliers’
speafic needs and requirements Each key customer
and supplier has an account manager allocated
to them ensunng that open communication Is
maintained throughout the relationship

Each business agrees payment terms with
its supphers and it 15 group policy 10 make
payments in accordance with these terms The
group had 59 days of purchases in creditors at
September 30 2012 (2011 77 days)

10 Employees’ involvement
and training
Equal opportunities
The group 15 an equal opporunity ermployer
It seeks to employ a workforce which reflects
the diverse community at large, because the
contribution of the ndwvidual s valued irrespectve
of sex, age, mantal status, disabibty, sexual
preference or onentation, race, colour, religion,
ethni¢ or national onigin It does not discriminate
n recrutment, promotion or other employee
matters The group endeavours to provide
a working environment free from unlawful
discrimmnation, victemisation or harassment
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Quality and integrity of employees

The competence of people 15 ensured through
hugh recruitment standards and a commitment
to management and business skilis traning The
group has the advantage of running external
training businesses and uses this in-house
resource to train cost effectively sis employees on
a regular basis Employees are also encouraged
actively to seek external traning as necessary

High-quality and heonest personnel are an
essential part of the control enwvirecnment
The Hhigh ethical standards expected are
communicated by managerment and through
the employee handbook which 15 provided to
all employees The employee handbook includes
specific policies on matters such as the use of
the groups information technology resources,
data protection policy, the UK Bribery Act, and
disciphinary and grievance procedures The group
operates an internal intranet sie which 15 used
to communicate with employees and prowde
guidance and assistance on day-to-day matters
facng employees The group has a specific
whistle blowing policy that is supported by an
externally monitored and run whistfe blowing
hothne The whistle blowing policy 15 updated
regutarly and 1s reviewed by the audit committee

Human nghts and health and safety
requirements

The group 15 committed to the health and
safety and the human nghts of i1ts employees
and communities in which it operates Heahh
and safety 1ssues are monitored 1o ensure
comphance with all local health and safety
regulations External health and safety adwisers
are used where appropriate The UK businesses
beneft from a regular assessment of the
working environment by experienced assessors
and regular training of all existing and new UK
employees in health and safety matters

Disabled employees

it s the group’s policy to gwve full and fair
consideration to applications for emgloyment
from people who are disabled to continue,
wherever possible, the employment of, and to
arrange appropriate training for, employees who
become disabled, and to provide opportunities
for the career development, traming and
promotion of disabled employees

11 Going concern, debt
covenants and liquidity

The results of the group’s business activities,
together with the factors likely to affect

its future development, performance and
financal positicn are set out in the Chairmans
Statement on pages 4 10 6

The financial pasition of the group, its cash flows
and liquidity positicn are set out in detail in this
report The group meets its day-to-day working
caprtal requiremnents through its US$300 mullion
dedicated multt-currency barrowing facility with
Daily Mail and General Trust plc group {DMGT)
The facility s divided injo US dollar and sterting
funds with a total maxmum borrowing capacity
of US$250 million (£t55 miliion) and £33
milian respectively and matures in December
2013 The facihity's covenant requires the
group's net debt to be no maore than four times
adiusted EBITDA on a roling 12 month bass
At September 30 2012, the group’s net debt to
adjusted EBITDA covenant was 0 27 times and
the commitied undrawn facility available to the
group was £144 7 million

In additien, the group has agreed terms with
DMGT that prowvide 1t with access to US$300
milion of funding should the group require 1t
during the peniod from December 2013 through
April 2016

The group’s forecasts and projections looking
out to September 2015 and taking account
of reasonably possible changes n trading
performance, show that the group should be
able to operate within the level and covenants
of 1ts current borrowing facility

After making enguines, the directors have a
reasonable expectation that the group has
adequate resources to conunue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future Accordingly,
the dwectors continue to adopt the going
cancern basis i preparing this annual report
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Directors’ Report

continued

t2 Capital structure and
significant shareholdings

Details of the company’s share capital are given
in note 23 The company's share capital is
divided inte ordinary shares of 0 25 pence each
Each share entitles s holder to one vote at
shareholders’ meetings and the nght to receive
one share of the company's dividends

Significant shareholdings at
November 13 2012

Nature % of
Name of Number wvoting
of holder  hoiding of shares nghts
DMG Charles
Limited Direct 84,638 741 68 07

12 EU Takeovers Directive

Pursuant to s992 of the Companies Act 2006,
which implements the EU Takeovers Directive,
the company 15 required to disclose certain
addihonal informaton which 15 not covered
elsewhera in this annual report Such disclosures
are as follows

o there are no restnctions on the transfer
of secunities {shares or loan notes) in the
company including &) limitations an the
holding of secunties and (i) requirements
to obtain the approval of the company.
or of other holders or securtties In the
company, for a transfer of secunties,

® there are no people who hold securities
carrying special nights wath regard to
control of the company,

e the companys employee share schemes do
nat give nights with regard to control of the
company that are not exercisable direcily
by empioyees

e there are no restnctions on voung nghts,

e the directors are not aware of any
agreements between holders or secunties
that, may result i restrictions on the
transfer of secunties or on voting nghts,
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® the company has a number of agreements
that take effect, alter or terminate upon a
change of control of the company following
a takeover bud, such as commercal
contracts, bank foan agreements, property
lease arrangements, directors  service
agreements and employee share plans
Nene of these agreements are deemed to
be significant In terms of ther potental
impact on the business of the group as a
whole, and

o details of the drectors’ entitlement to
compensation for loss of office following a
takeover or contract termination are given
in the Directors’ Remuneration Report

14 Authority to purchase and
allot own shares

The company’s authority to purchase up to 10%
of its own shares expires at the conclusion of
the company’s next Annual General Meeting A
resolution to renew this authonty for a further
penod wili be put to shareholders at this meeting

At the Annual General Meeting of the company on
January 26 2012, the shareholders authorised the
directors to allot shares up to an aggregate nominal
amount of £90 971 expinng at the conclusion of
the Annual General Meeting to be held in 2013
A resolution to renew this authority for a further
penad will be put to shareholders at this meeting

15 Political and charitable
contributions

During the year the group raised charntable
contributions of £1,085,000 (2011 £1,108,000)
There were no political contnbutions i etther
year See pages 36 to 40 for details of the group’s
charitable projects

16 Directors’ indemnities

The company has directors” and officers’ hability
and corporate reimbursement insurance for
the benefit of its directors and those of other
associated companies This insurance has been
in place throughout the year and remans n
force at the date of this report

17 Annual General Meeting

The company’s next Annual General Meeting
will be held on January 31 2013

18 Auditor

A resolution 1o reappoint Deloitte tLP as the
company’s auditor 15 expected to be proposed
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

19 Disclosure of information
to the auditor

In the case of each of the persons who 15 a
director of the company at Novernber 14 2012

o sofaras each of the directors s aware, there
is no relevant audit tnformation (as defined
in the Compares Act 2006) of which the
company’s auditor s unaware, and

e each of the directors has taken all the
steps that he/she ought to have taken as
a director 1o make nimselimerself aware of
any relevant audit information (as defined)
and to establish that the company's auditor
1s aware of the information

This confrmation 15 giwven and should be
interpreted in accordance with the provisions of

5418 of the Companies Act 2006

By order of the board

Colin Jones
Company Secretary
November 14 2012
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Directors’ Responsibility Statement

The directors are responsible for preparing the
annual report and the financial statements n
accordance with applicable faw and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare
financjalstatements foreach financialyear Under
that law the directors are required to prepare
the group financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reparting Standards
(' IFRSs"} as adopted by the European Urion
and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation and have
elected to prepare the parent company financial
staternents in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United
Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable
law) Under company law the directors must not
approve the accounts unless they are satisfied
that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affars of the company and of the profit or loss
of the company for that period

In prepanng the parent company finanaal
statements, the directors are required to

®  select suitable accounting policies and then
apply them consistently,

e make judgments and accounting estimates
that are reasonable and prudent,

e state whether applicable UK Accounting
Standards have been followed, subject
to any matenal departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements, and

# prepare the financal statemenis on
the going concern basis unless 1t 15
inappropnate to presume that the campany
will continue In business

In prepanng the group finangial statements,
International Accounting Standard 1 reguires
that directors

® properly select and apply accounting
policies,

e present information, induding accounting
pohicies, In a manner that provides relevant,
rehable, comparable and understandable
information,

e provde additonal disclosures  when
comphance with the specfic requirements
in |[FRSs are msufficient to enable users
to understand the mpact of particular
transactions, other events and conditions
on the entity's financial postion and
financral performance, and

® make an assessment of the companys
ability to continue as a going concern

The directors are responsible for keeping
adequate accounting records that are sufficient
to show and explain the company s transactions
and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial positicn of the company
and enable them to ensure that the financal
statements comply with the Companies Act
2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the company and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other iregulanties

The directors are responsihle for  the
maintenance and sntegrity of the corporate and
financial information included on the cormnpany’s
website Legislation i the United Kingdom
goverring the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from legislation
in other junsdictions

Responsibility statement

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge

e the financial statements prepared 1n
accordance with the relevant financiat
reportng framework gwe a true and
fair view of the assets, habilities financal
position and profit or Joss of the company
and the undertakings included in the
consolidation taken as a whole, and

e the management report, which s
incorporated into the Directors” Repaort,
includes a fair review of the development
and performance of the business and
the position of the company and the
undertakings included in the consolidation
taken as a whole, together with a
description of the principal nsks and
uncertainties that they face

By arder of the Board

MRy

Richard Ensor
Drirector
Navember 14 2012

Colin Jones
Company Secretary
Nowvember 14 2012
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Directors and Advisors

Executive Directors

Mr PR Ensor

Chairman

Mr PR Ensor (aged 64) joined the company in 1976 and was appointed an
executive director In 1983 He was appainted managing director in 1992
and charrman on October 15 2012 He 15 chairman of the nominations
committee He is also a director of Internet Secunties, Inc , BCA Research,
In¢ , Ned Davis Research Inc, and Dawvis, Mendel & Regensten Inc, and
an outside member of the Finance Commutiee of Oxford University Press

Mr CHC Fordham

Managing Director

Mr CHC Fordham (aged 52) joined the company in 2000 and was
appointed an executive director in July 2003 and managing director
on October 15 2012 He was previously the director responsible for
acquisitions and disposals as well as runming seme of the company’s
businesses, including the recently acquired Ned Dawvis Research

Mr NF Osborn

Mr NF Osborn (aged 62) joined the company in 1983 and was appointed
an executive director in February 1988 He 1s the publisher of Furomoney
He 15 also a director of Internet Secunties, In¢, and of RBC QJSC, a
Moscow-histed media company

Mr DC Cohen

Mr DC Cohen {aged 54) joined the company in 1984 and was appointed
an executive director in September 1989 He is managing director of the
traiming drvision
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Mr CR Jones

Mr CR Jones (aged 52} 1s the finance director and a chartered accountant
He joned the company in July 1986 and was appomnted finance director
in November 1996 He 1s also the groups chief operaung officer
and company secretary He 15 a diector of institutional investor, Inc

Infarmation Management Network, Inc , Internet Secunties Inc and BCA
Research, Inc

Ms DE Alfano

Ms DE Alfano (aged 56) joined Instiutional Investor, Inc in 1984 and was
appointed an executive director in July 2000 She 1s managing director of
Institutional Investor s conference dvision and a director and chairman of
Institutional Investar, Inc

Ms JL Wilkinson
Ms JL Wilkinson (aged 47) joned the company in 2000 and was
appointed an execubwve director sn March 2007 She 1s group marketing
director, CEQ of Instituttonal Investors publishing activities and president
of institutionat tnvestor, Inc

Mr B AL-Rehany

Mr B AL-Rehany (aged 55) was sppointed an executive director in
November 2009 He 15 chief executve officer and a dwector of BCA
Research, Inc which he jotned in January 2003 Euromoney acquired BCA
Research, Inc in October 2006
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Non-executive Directors

The Viscount Rothermere *

The Viscount Rothermere (aged 44) was appointed a non-executive
director In September 1958 and 15 a member of the nominatons
committee He s charman of Daily Mail and General Trust plc

Sir Patrick Sergeant &

Sir Patnck Sergeant (aged B8) 1s a non-axecutive director and president
He founded the company in 1969 and was managing director untii 1985
when he became charman He retired as charrman in September 1992
when he was appointed as president and a non-executive director He 1s a
member of the nominations committee

Mr JC Botts §t+

Mr JC Botts (aged 71) was appointed a non-executive director in December
1992 and 15 chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of
the audit and nominations committees He Is senior adviser of Allen &
Company In London, a director of Songbird Estates plc and a director of
several private companies He was formerly a non-executive chairman of
United Business Media plc

Advisors and registered office

Auditor

Deloitte LLP,

2 New Street Square,
London EC4A 3BZ

President
Sir Patrick Sergeant

Company Secretary
CR Jones

Solicitors

Nabarro, Lacon House,
Theobald's Road,
London WC1 8RW

Registered Office
Nestor House, Playhouse Yard,
London EC4V 5EX

Registered Number
954730

Mr JC Gonzalez §

Mr JC Gonzalez (independent) {aged 66) was appointed a non-executive
director in November 2004 and s a member of the audit commitiee
He 15 charrman and chief executive of Amencan Onent Capital Partners
Holdings Limited, an investrent and financ:al advisory services firm based
1n Hong Kong covering the Asia Pacific region, and a director of a number
of publicly listed companies in the Philppines

Mr MWH Morgan 1

Mr MWH Morgan {aged 62) was appointed a non-executive director on
October 1 2008 He 15 a member of the remuneration and nommnations
committees He was previously chief executive of DMG Information and
became chief executive of Daily Maill and General Trust plc on October 1
2008

Mr DP Pritchard §t

Mr DP Pritchard (independent) (aged 68) was appointed a non-executive
director 1n December 2008 He is charman of the audit committee and
a member of the remuneration committee He 15 chairman of Songbird
Estates pic and of AIB Group (UK) pic, and a director of The Motability
Tenth Anniversary Trust He was formerly deputy chairman of Lloyds
T5B Group, chairman of Cheltenham & Gloucester ptc and a director of
Scottish Widows Group and LCH Clearnet Group

t Member of the remuneration comrmities
E Member ot the nominaticns committee
§ Member of the audit committee

Brokers
UBS, 1 Finsbury Avenue,
london EC2M 2PP

Registrars

Equiniti, Aspect House, Spencer
Road, Lancing, West Sussex,
BN99 6DA
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Corporate Governance

The Finanual Reporting Counciis 2010 UK
Corporate Governance Code (“the Code”) s
part of the Listing Rules { the Rules') of the
Financial Serwices Authonty The paragraphs
below and in the Directors' Remuneration Report
on pages 41 to 52 set out how the company has
apphed the principles laid down by the Code
The company continues substantally to comply
with the Code, save for the exceptions disclosed
in the Drectors' Cemphance Statement on
page 34

Directors

The board and its role

Detalls of dwectors who served durng the
year are set out on page 47 Dunng the year
the board comprised the charrman, managing
director, seven other executive directors and
six non-executive directors Two of the six
non-executive directors are independent, one 15
the founder and ex-chairman of the company,
two are directors of Daily Mail and General Trust
ple (DMGT), an intermediate parent company,
and one has served on the board for mare
than the recommended term of mine years under
the Code

PM Fallon, the charman, who was due to
retire at the AGM in January 2013, died on
October 14 2012 The company announced on
October 15 2012 that its previously announced
succession plans would be accelerated and
that PR Ensor would succeed PM Fallon as
charman and CHC Fordham would succeed
PR Ensor as managing director, both with
immediate effect
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There are clear divisions of responsibility within
the board such that no one indwiduzal has
unfettered powers of decsion The board,
although larger than average, does not consider
itself to be unwieldy and believes 1t 1s beneficial
to have representatives from key areas of
the business at board meetings There 15 a
procedure for all directors in the furtherance of
their duties to take independent professional
advice, at the company’s expense They also
have access to the advice and services aof the
company secretary In accordance with best
corporate governance practice under the 2010
UK Corporate Governance Code ali directors
will submit themselves for annual re-elect:on
Newly appointed directors are submitted for
election at the first available opportunity after
their appointment

The board meets every two months and there
15 frequent contact between meetings Board
meetings take place n London New York,
Montreal and Hong Kong, and occasicnally in
other lacations where the group has operations
The board has delegated certain aspects of the
group’s affars to standing committees, each
of which operates within defined terms of
reference Detals of these are set out below
However, to ensure Its overall control of the
group’s affairs, the board has reserved certain
matters to itself for decsion Board meetings
are held to set and monitor strategy, dentify,
evaluate and manage maternal nsks, to review
trading performance, ensure adequate funding,
examine major acgusition possibilities  and
approve reports to shareholders Procedures
are established to ensure that approprate
informatian s communicated to the board in a
umely manner to enable it to fulfil its duties

Committees

Executive committee

The executive commitiee meets each month
to discuss strategy, results and forecasts, risks,
possible acquisitions and  divestitures, costs,
stafi numbers, recrutment and traming and
other management issues It also discusses
corporate and social responsibility including the
group s various charity imitiatives It 15 chaired by
the group charrman and compnses all executive
directors plus other dvisional directors It 1s not
empowered to make decisions except those that
can be made by the members in therr individual
capacites as executives with powers approved
by the board of the company The discussions
of the committee are summansed by the group
charman and reported to each board meeting,
together with recommendations on matters
reserved for board decisions

Nominations committee

The nominations committee 15 responsible
for proposing candidates for appointment
to the board having regard to the balance of
skills and structure of the board and ensuring
the appointees have sufficient time available
io devole to the role This committee meets
when required and dunng the year compsised
PM Fallon {chairman of the committee), PR
Ensor and four non-executive directors, being
Sir Patnck Sergeant, The Viscount Rotharmere,
MWH Morgan and JC Botts The committees
terms of reference are avallable on the
company’s website at  www euromoneypic
com/reports/Nominationcommittee pdf




Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2012

www eurgmoneyplc com

This committee met three times during the year
in Novermnber 2011 to extend PM Fallon’s service
contract 1o January 2013, in December 2011
to recommend to the board the re-election of
directors retiring by rotation, and in July 2012
to recommend to the board the appomntment
of PR Ensor as chairman and CHC Fordham as
managing director

The process for appomnting a successor to the
chairman was conducted by a sub-committee
of the nominations committee, led by IC
Botts, the companys longest serving non-
executive director, supplemented by the
companys independent non-executives, JC
Gonzalez and DP Prtchard, and excluding
the DMGT representatives on the committee
This sub-commuttee  engaged an external
search and board consulting firm to assist
with the appoiniment of both the charrman
and managing director This firm undertook a
comprehensive review of candidates including
interviews, upward appraisal and external
search of candidates The sub-commitiee met
several times dunng the year to consider the
progress of the external search firm

Remuneration committee

The remuneration committee meets twice a year
and additionally as required It 1s responsible for
determinung the contract terms, remuneration
and other benefits for executive directors,
including performance-related incentives This
committee also recommends and monitors the
level of remuneration for sernor management
and overall, including group-wide
option  schemes
committee detals of directors’ remuneration
and interests in share options and information
on directors service contracts are set out in
the Dwrectors Remuneration Report on pages
41 to 52 The commuttee’s terms of reference
are avalable on the companys website at
http //www euromoneyplc com/reports/
Remunerattoncommuttee pdf

share
The composition of the

Audit committee

Details of the members and role of the audit
committee are set out on page 34 The
commititee's terms of reference are avalable
on the company's website at http Aww
euromoneyplc com/reporis/Auditcommittee
pdi

Tax and treasury committee

Details of the members and role of the tax and
treasury committee are set out in the Directors’
Report on page 17

Non-executive directors

The non-executive directors  bnng  both
independent wviews and the wiews of the
company’s major shareholder to the board
The non-executive directors who served during
the year, whose biographies can be found on
page 29 of the accounts, were The Viscount
Rothermere, Sir Patnck Sergeant, JC Botts, JC
Gonzalez (independent), MWH Morgan and DP
Pritchard (independent)

Al least once a year the companys chairman
meets the non-executive directors without the
executive dectors being present The non-
executive directors meet without the company's
chairman present at least annually 1o appraise
the charman's performance and on other
0CCasions as necessary

The board considers JC Gonzalez and DP
Patchard to be independent non-executve
directors

JC Botts has been on the board for more than
the recommended term of nine years under the
Code and the board believes that his length of
service enhances his role as a non-executwve
director However due to his length of service,
JC Botts does not meet the Code’s defintion of
independence

Sir Patnck Sergeant has served on the beard
n vanous roles since founding the company
in 1969 and has been a non-executive director
since 1992 As founder and president of the
company, the board beheves his insight and
external contacts remain invaluable However,
due 1o his length of service, Sir Patrick Sergeant
does not meet the Code's defimton of
independence

The Wiscount Rothermere has a significant
shareholdng n the company through his
beneficial holding in DMGT and because of this
he 15 not considered independent

The Viscount Rothermere and MWH Morgan
are also executive directors of OMGT, an
intermediate parent company However, the
company 15 run as a separate, distinct and
decentralised subsidiary of DMGT and these
diwectors have no involvernent in the day-to-
day management of the company They bring
valuable experience and advice to the company
and the board does not believe these non-
executive directors are able to exert undue
influence on decsions taken by the board,
nor does it consider their independence to be
impaired by their positions with DMGT However,
therr relationship with DMGT means they do not
meet the Code s definittan of independence
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Corporate Governance

continued

Board and committee meetings

Board and committee meetings are arranged well in advance of the meeting date and papers covering the points to be discussed are distributed to its
members In advance ot the meetings The following table sets out the number of board and commuttee meetings attended by the directors dunng the

year to September 30 2012

Number of meetings held during year

Executive directors
PM Fallon — chairman (died October 14

2012)

PR Ensor ~ managing director
NF Osborn

DC Cohen

CR Jones - finance director
DE Alano

CHC Fordham

JL Wilkinson

B AL-Rehany

Non-executive directors
The Viscount Rothermere
Sir Patnick Sergeant

JC Botts

IC Gonzalez

MWH Maorgan

D?P Pritchard

Board and committee
effectiveness

Dunng the year the board, through its
charrman, assessed i1ts performance and that
The charman surveyed
and evaluated the
strengths and weaknesses of the board and
its members In addition, each of the man
commuttees completed a detailed questionnaire
encompassing key areas within their mandates
The chairman concluded that the board and
its commuittees had been effectwe throughout
the year

of its committees
each board member

In wview of the charman’s deteriorating health,
the board did not assess the charman’s
performance this year However, as part of
the successton planning exerase undertaken
by the nominations comruttee, the role and
responsibilities of the charman and managing
director were considered at length
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Executive Remuneration
Board committee committee
7 10 3
3 4 -
& 10 -
7 10 -
7 g -
7 10 -
7 10 -
7 10 -
7 10 -
7 10 -
5 —_ -
3 -~ —
5 - 3
4 - -
[ - 3
7 - 3

Communication with
shareholders

The companys chairman, together with the
board, encourages regular dialogue wath
shareholders Meetings with shareholders are
held, bath in the UK and in the US, to discuss
annual and intenm results and highlight
sigruficant acquisitions or disposals or at the
request of institutional shareholders Private
shareholders are encouraged to participate
in the Annual General Meeting In line with
best practice all shareholders have at least 20
working days’ notice of the Annual General
Meeting at which the executive directors, non-
executive directors and committee chairs are
available for questioning

The company’s charrman and finance dwector
report to fellow board members matters raised
by shareholders and analysts to ensure members
of the board, n particular the non-executive

Tax &
Nominations Audit treasury
committee committee committee
3 3 3
1 - 1
1 - 3
- - 3
3 - -
1 _ —
3 3 -
- 1 -
3
3 3

directors, develop an understanding of the
investors' and potential investors wview of the
company

internal control and risk
management

The board 15 responsible for the group's
system of internal control and for reviewing
its effectiveness Such a system is designed to
manage rathar than eliminate the nisk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss

In accordance with principle C2 and C21
of the Code, the board has implemented a
continuing process for identifying, evaluating
and managing the matenal nisks faced by the
group
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The board has reviewed the effectiveness of
the group’s system of internal control and has
taken account of matenal developments which
have taken place since September 30 2011 It
has considered the major business and financial
risks, the control environment and the results of
internal audit Steps have been taken to embed
internal control and nisk management further
into the operations of the group and to deal
with areas of improvement which have come to
managements and the board’s attention

Key procedures which the directors have
established with a view to providing effective
internal control, and which have been in place
throughout the year and up 1o the date of this
report, are as follows

The board of directors

& the board normally meets six times a year 1o
consider group strategy, nisk management,
financial performance, acquisitions, business
development and management 1ssues,

@ the board has overalt responsibility for the
group and there s a formal schedule of
matters specifically reserved for decision by
the board,

e each executive director has been given
responsibility {or specific aspects of the
group’s affars,

e the board reviews and assesses the groups
prncpal nsks and uncertainties at feast
annually

® the board seeks assurance that effective
contro! 15 being mamntained through
regular reports from business group
management, the audit committee and
various independent momtaring functions,
and

e the board approves the annual forecast
after performing a review of key nsk
factors Performance s monrtored regularly
by way of vaniances and key performance
indicators to enable relevant action to
be taken and forecasts are updated each

quarter The board considers longer-term
finanaal projections as part of s regular
discussions an the group's strategy and
funding requirements

A nsk committee, comprising the company’s
charman  managing dwector and finance
director, 15 responsible for managing and
addressing risk matters as they anse

Durning the year and up 1o the approval of this
annual report and accounts the board has not
identfied nor been advised of any fallings or
weaknesses 1n the group’s system of internal
contrel which it has determined to be sigriftcant
Therefore a confirmation of necessary actions
has not been considered appropriate

Investment appraisal

The managing director, finance director and
business group managers consider proposals
for acquisiions and new business investments
Proposals beyond specified limits are put to
the board for approval and are subject to due
diligence by the group’s finance team and,
if necessary, independent adwisors Capnal
expenditure 15 regulated by stnct authonsation
controls For capital expenditure above specified
levels, detaled wrnitten proposals must be
subrmitted to the board and reviews are carned
aut to moenitor progress aganst busmess plan

Accounting and computer systems
controls and procedures

Accounting controls and procedures are
regularly revewed and communicated
throughout the group Particular attention 1s
paid to authonsation levels and segregation of
duties The groups tax, financing and foreign
exchange positions are overseen by the tax and
treasury committee, which meets at least twice
a year Controls and procedures over the secunity
of data and disaster recovery are perodically
reviewed and are subject to internal audit

Internal audit

The graup’s internal audit function 1s managed
by DMGTs internal audit department, working
dosely with the company's finance director
Internal audit draws on the services of the
group's central finance teams to asssst In
completing the audit assignments Internal audit
aims to provide an independent assessment as
to whether effective systems and controls are in
place and being operated to manage significant
operating and financial nsks R also aims to
support management by providing cost effective
recommendations to mitigate nsk and control
weaknesses identified dunng the audit process,
as well as prowde msight into where cost
effiaencies and monetary gains might be made
by improving the operations of the business
Businesses and central departments are selected
for an internal audit visit on a risk-focused basis,
taking account of the nsks identified as part
of the nsk management process, the nsk and
matenality of each of the group’s businesses,
the scope and findings of external audit work,
and the departments and businesses reviewed
previously and the findings from these reviews
This approach ensures that the internal audit
focus 1s placed on the higher nsk areas of the
group, while ensunng an appropriate breadth
of coverage DMGT's internal audit reports
its findings to management and to the audit
committee
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Corporate Governance

continued

Accountability and audit

Audit Committee

The audit committee comprises DP Pntchard
{chairman, independent), JC Botts, JC Gonzalez
(independent), and SW Daintith the finance
director of DMGT Three of the four members
are non-executive directors All members of the
commuttee have a high level of financial iteracy,
SW Daintith 15 a chartered accountant and a
member of the ICAEW, and DP Pritchard has
considerable audit committee experience

The committee meets at least three times each
financial year and is responsible for reviewing
the intenm repori, the annual report and
accounts and other related formal statements
before ther submission to the board, and
reviewing and overseeing controls necessary to
ensure the integnty of the financial information
reported to the shareholders

The audit commitiee adwses the board on
the appointment or reappantment of the
external auditor and on ther remuneration,
both for audit and non-audit wark It has set
and applied a formal policy, which focuses on
the effectiveness, independence and objectivity
of the external audit and includes a policy on
employment of former audit staff, an annual
assessment  of the qualifications, expertise
and resources of the external auditor, the
type of non-audit waork permissible and a
de minimis level of fees acceptable Any non-
audit work performed outside this remit s
assessed and where appropnate approved by
the committee Fees paid to Deloitte for audit
services, audit related services and other non-
audit services are set out in note 4 Duning
2012 Deloitte did not provide significant non-
audit services The group s non-audit fee policy
15 available on the companys website (www
euromoneyplc com/reports/nenauditfee pdf)
The commiitee considers the required audit
partner rotatton plans It also discusses the
nature, scope and findings of the audit wath the
external auditor and conswders and determines
relevant action in respect of any control 1ssues
raised by the external auditor
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The appointment of Deloitte as the group’s
external auditor ncumbents since the last audit
tender in 1598} 1s kept under annual review and,
if satisfactory the committee will recommend
the reappointment of the audt firm The
appointment of Deloitte followed a formal
tender process undertaken in 1998 and, rather
than adopting a polcy on tendertng frequency
the annual review of the effectiveness of the
external audit 15 supplemented by a penodic
comprehensive reassessment by the committee
The last such reassessment was performed
in financial year 2009, when having received
assurances on the continued quality of the
audit, the commuitee determined to recommend
the reappointment of the mcumbent firm As
the appointment of the auditor 15 for one year
only, being subject to annua! approval at the
company’s Annual General Meeting, there 15 no
contractual commitment to the current audnt
firm and, as such, the committee may undertake
an audit tender at any time at its discretion In
performing its review the committee evaluated
the adequacy of the audit firm's key processes
and controls in certain key areas including,
but not imited to arrangements for ensuring
independence and objectvity, including the
rotation of key audit partners, appropriateness
of the planned audit scope and 1ts execirtion,
the robustness and perceptiveness of the
auditor i their handling of the key accounting
and audit judgements, and the guality of therr
reporting The committee concluded that it
was In the groups and shareholders’ interests
not to tender the external audit n 2012 and
recomnmends the reappointment of Deloitte as
the groups auditor

The audit committee 15 also responsible for
monitoring and assessing the effectiveness of
internal audit, and reviews the internal audit
programme and receies periodic reports on
its findings  reviews the whistle blowing
arrangements available to staff

The audit committees terms of reference are
available at www euromoneyplc com/reports/
Auditcommittee pdf

Statement by the directors
on comphiance with the
Code

The UK Listing Rules require the board to report
on complance througheut the accounting year
with the applcable pnneiples and provisions
of the 2010 UK Corporate Governance Code
1ssued by the Finanaial Reporting Council Save
for the exceptions outhned below, the group
has complied throughout the financial year
ended September 30 2012 with the provisions
set out in Section 1 of the Code

Provision B 12 states that half the board,
excluding the chairman, should be comprised
of non-executive directors determined by the
board to be independent During the year the
board compnised 15 directors, of whom six were
non-executive and only two were considered
independent under the Code However, there
are clear dmsions of responsibility wathin
the board such that no one indwdual has
unfettered powers of decision The board,
although large, does not consider itself to be
unwicldy and believes it 1s beneficial to have
representatives from key areas of the business
at board meetings

JC Botts has been on the board for more than
the recommended term of nine years under the
Code and the board believes that his length of
service enhances hus role as a non-executive
director However, due to his length of service,
JC Botts does not meet the Code s definition of
independence
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Sir Patrick Sergeant has served on the board
m vanous roles since founding the company
in 1969 and has been a non-executive director
since 1992 As founder and pres:dent of the
company, the board believes his insight and
external contacts remain invaluable However,
due to his length of service, Sir Patrick Sergeant
does not meet the Code’s defintion of
independence

The Wiscount Rothermere has a significant
shareholding in the company through his
beneficial holding in DMGT and because of this
he 15 not considered independent

The Viscount Rothermere and MWH Morgan
are also executive dwectors of DMGT, an
intermediate parent company However, the
company I1s run as a separate, distinct and
decentralsed subsidiary of DMGT and these
directors have no involvement in the day-to-
day management of the company They bring
valuable experience and advice to the company
and the board does not believe these non-
executive directors are able to exert undue
influence on decisions taken by the board
nor does 1t consider their independence to be
impaired by their positions with DMGT However,
therr relationship with DMGT means they do not
meet the Code’s definition of independence

Conirary to provision A 4 1, the board has not
identified a senior independent non-executive
director However, JC Botts, although not
independent due to his length of service, acls as
senior non-executive director

Provision B 2 1 requires that the majority of the
nominations committee should be compnsed of
independent non-executive directors Although
the committee consists of four non-executive
and two executive directors, none of these
non-executive directors can be considered
independent under the Code

Provision 8 3 2 states that the terms and
conditions of appointment of non-executive
directors should be available for inspection
As explained in the Directors' Remuneration
Report, the non-executive directors do not have
service contracts

Prowisions C31 and D21 require the
rernuneration and audit committees to comprise
entirely of independent non-executive directors
The remuneration commitiee 15 comprised of
three non-executive directors, one of whom ¢an
be considered independent under the Code
During the year, the audst commuittee comprised
four members, only three of which were non-
executve directors of the company only twe of
whom can be considered independent under
the Code

On behalf of the board

L)

Richard Ensor
Chairman
November 14 2012

'
Con

35

Corporate Governance

Our Governance Our Performance

Group Accounts

Company Accounts



Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2012

www eurcmoneyplc com

Corporate and Social Responsibility

The group 15 diverse and operates through
a large number of businesses 1n many
geographical lacations Each business provides
imporiant channels of communication to
different sections of socety throughout the
world The success of the group's businesses
owes much to understanding and engaging
with the commumittes they serve both locally
and globally

The paragraphs below provide more detared
explanations on key areas of corporate
responsibility

Environmental
responsibility

The group does not operate directly In industnes
where there 15 the potential for serious industnal
pollution 1t does not print products in-house or
have any investments in pnnting works 1t takes
1ts environmental responsibiity serously and
comples with all relevant environmental taws and
regulations in each country in which 1t operates
Wherever economically feasible, account 1s
taken of environmental issues when placing
contracts with supplers of goods and services
and these suppliers are regularly reviewed and
monitored For instance, the group's two biggest
print contracts are outsourced to comparnies
who have environment management systems
comphant with the 1SO 14001 standard The
paper used for the group’s publications 1s
produced from pulp obtained from sustainable
forests manufactured under stnct, monitored
and accountable environmental standards

The group s not a heawy user of energy,
however, it does manage its energy requirements
sensibly using low-energy office equipment
where possible and using a common sense
approach to office energy management For
instance, the UK group uses new secure mult:-
functional device technology which enables two
sided pnnting and allows employees to delete
unwanted documents at the printer before
printing This initiative should reduce paper, ink
and electnaity usage

36

Each office within the group 1s encouraged
to reduce waste, reuse paper and only print
documents and emails where necessary The
main offices across the group also recycle
waste where possible This year the UK, US and
Canadian offices recycled 91,000kg of paper
and card, which 15 equivalent to more than
1,000 trees

Carbon footprint

The company, as part of the wider Daily Mail and
Generai Trust ple group (DMGT), participates in
a DMGT group-wide carbon footprint analysis
completed by ICF International This exercise
has been undertaken every year since 2006
using the wadely recognised GHG protocol
methodology developed by the World Resource
Institute and the World Business Counal for
Sustainable Development

In addition, the company, through DMGT, s part
of the Carbon Disclosure Project (CDP) and has
been submitting full responses to them since
2007 and 1s included in the FTSE CDP Carbon
Strategy Index Seres

The directors are committed to reducing the
group’s carbon emissions and managing s
carbon footprint The company, as part of the
wider DMGT group, committed to reducing its
carbon footprint by 10% from the baseline year
of 2007 by the end of 2012 The company, as
part of the DMGT group, achieved the targeted
10% reduction two years early This year the
footprint fell by 1% compared to last year,
after adjusting for acquisitions and disposals
and updating emussion factors, and by 19%
compared to the 2007 baseline This year the
company, as part of the wider DMGT group has
set a new stretching target to reduce its carbon
footprint by a further 10% from the 2012 base
by the end of 2016

FTSE4Good

The group was incfuded

for the first tme in the

FTSE4Good index in 2011

and continues to be a

constituent of the index in

2012 The group has maintained its ESG rating
of 3/5 and increased its group percentile rating
fram 39% to 51% i the ICB “Global Super
Sector’

FTSE Group confirms that Euromaoney Institutional
Investor PLC  has been independently assessed
according to the FTSE4Goed critena, and has satisfied
the requiements to become a constituent of the
FTSE4Good Index Series Created by the global index
company FTSE Group FTSE4Good ts an equity index
series that 5 designed to facinate investment in
companies that meet globally recognised corporate
responstbilty standards Companies in the FTSE4Good
index Series have met strngent environmental social
and governance critena and are positioned to capitalise
on the benefits of responsible business practice

Social responsibility

The group continues to expand its chantable
activities and raised over £1 million for local and
international chaniable causes dunng the year
These contributions came from Euromoney's
own chartable budget, mdwidual employee
fundrasing efforts and also from clients who
generously made donations in support of the
company’s charitable projects

We continue to encourage employees to be
involved actively n supporting chanties by
fundraising themselves (e g running a marathon
or tnathlon}, while the group contributed by way
of donations 1o a series of employee-chosen
chantable causes In the past year funding
was expanded to two new chantable projects,
Anchor House a homeless charty in the East
End of london, and a blindness treatment
project in Soeuth Omo, Ethiopia
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We continue to work and partner with
recognised charitable organisations that have
expertise within certain sectors, thus ensuring
that the implementation and management of a
charitable project is carned out efficiently and
that donated funds reach the communities at
which the chantable cause 1s amed At the same
time, we are careful to address the sustainabyhty
aspects in each chantable project to ensure a
long lasting beneficial impact

Below 1s a summary of some of the chartable
actvities undertaken in the past year

Water and

Samitation,

Kechene,

Addis Ababa,

Ethropia

Euromoney continued to support the Afnican
and Medical Research foundation {AMREF} for
a second year with 1ts sustainable water and
sanitation project In Addis Ababa, Ethiopia
Through staff activities and events such as awards
dinners, the group exceeded 1ts donation target
of £212,000 The project i focused on Kechene,
the fargest slum in Addis Ababa So far, the
programme has involved rebuilding two water
springs the construction of five shower blocks
and seven santation kiosks with two maore
showers and five more kiosks to follow Nineteen
lacal water and sanitation committees are also in
place to manage these faciites Alongside this
work, the project has trained twelve hygiene
workers to promote information on sanitation
and water-borne diseases In total, the full
faciities and promotional work are expected to
bring clean water and better health to 22,000
people

Kechene new water and sanitation facilities
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Corporate and Social Responsibility

continued

Little Rock

School, Kibera,

Nairobi, Kenya

This project involves

the construction of

new school premises for Little Rock School and
15 planned to be completed in January 2013 The
onginal Little Rock premises consisted of five
separate rented buildings spread across the slum
area of Kibera in Nairobi The new purpose-built
school will have fackties for nearly 500 pupils
and include 16 classrooms with up to 30 pupils
each, from infant day care through to the first
year of pnmary school In addition, with a new
a computer room, assembily area, physiotherapy
room and administration block, the educational

effectiveness and operation of the school willbe 1 ttte Rock new school premises — perspective view
transformed

utile Rock 15 much more than a school
In additon to day teaching, 1t provides a
feeding programme, after-schools clubs, term
holiday tutoring, a public hbrary, community
engagement, parent support groups and an
mncome  generating workshop  This  holistic
approach empowers children, families and the
community to work together to improve the hves
of some of the most vulnerable children in the
world, not only while they attend Little Rock but
with skills and resources they carry forward into
further schooling

The coordinatien of the Little Rock canstruction
programme 15 carned out by AbleChildAfrca,
a UK headquartered chanty which specialises
exclusively in advocating for and supporting
disabled children and disabled young people in
Africa

Pupiis of Little Rock
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Water Well Project in

Kimbunga Valley,

Mombasa, Kenya

Euromoney supports this

chaniy project by funding

the construction of a ran-

fed dam and the traiming of

farmers in how to regenerate

the surrounding land to make it suitable to
grow craps This has enabled the community in
the Kimbunga Valley, near Mombasa, to have
food and water secunity and surplus crops,
and provide an income - something they have
never had before This has immediately helped
over 600 people within local commuriuties
However, expenience shows that an additonal
400-500 people will gravitate to the area due
to the improved and sustainable ivelihoods now
avatlable

This 1s part of a wider initiative that Euromoney
15 working on tn partnership with The Haller
Foundation to help communitees in the area lift
themselves out of poverty - working towards an
integrated model for sustanable development
that enable communites to become self-
sufficient, typically over a five year pernod

Anchor House,

Canning Town,

London E16

At the EuroWeek

25th Annwversary

Awards Dinner over £175,000 was raised for the
Anchor House homeless chanty which aims to
turn 1ts 1960s-style bullding into a 21st century
faciity prowviding workshops for vocational
courses, an e-learning zone, new kitchen
traning facility and 25 new ‘move on’ studio
flats for residents Anchor House 15 transforming
iself into a residential iife-skills centre for the
homeless It annually supports up to 220
people each year and provides a stable and safe
environment to help them develop aspirations,
confidence and self-esteem, thus enabling them
to move towards leading independent and self-
fulfiling hves

Community members digging the dam by hand

The dam filled with rainwater
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Corporate and Social Responsibility

continued

Trachoma

Project, South

Omo, Ethiopia

Atits July 2012

Awards Dinner,

Euromoney raised

over £480,000

to fund the first

two years of a

five-year chanty

project which wali start in 2013 The project aims
to provide clean water and sanitation facilities
i order 1o help eradicate trachoma (a chronic,
contagious inflammatory eye disease which can
lead to blindness) The project will be run jointly
by AMREF and ORBIS and aims to improve the
water and sanitation facibties for 230,000 people
within the South Omo community, improve
the prmary eye-care services for 644,000
people, treat over 550,000 people suffering
from trachoma with antibiotics, surgically treat
13,000 adult sufferers of trachoma and train 16
eye care workers and 600 teachers to identify
trachoma symptoms

AMREF

E-Health

Projects

TelCap has

supported

AMREF’s e-health projects with a donation from
each of its conferences Al the Capaaty Afnca
conference held in Dar es Salaam a fun run
was organised where 25 conference delegates
and three of the TelCap team ran a Skm route
around Dar es Sataam in 30°C heat The fun run
and a chanty raffle held during the event raised
nearly US$9,000 in funds for AMREF In addition
TelCap donated over £8,500 to AMREF

The Legal Media Group, including international
Anancial Law Review;, Managing Inteflectual
Property and International Tax Rewiew, raised
over £6,000 for AMREF at their annual awards
dinners
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The Voluntary

Reading Scheme

Partnering with the

children's iteracy

charnity Volunteer

Reading Help, ten volunteers from Euromoney
spend an hour a week reading to ¢hildren who
are strugghng with therr reading at The New
North Academy in Lendan

Bali Sports

Foundation and

Priscilla Hall

Foundation

Coaltrans

Conferences and

its clients gave

a donation of

US5$16,183 to the Bah Sports Peace Foundation,
which provides sporting opportunities for
underprivileged children in Bali and Papua
New Guinea and US$14 883 to the Priscilla
Hall Memonal Foundation, which aims to help
underprivileged children of Indonesia

Hope and

Homes for

Children

Euroweek

raised over

£36,000 for

the Hope and Homes for Children charty at therr
awards dinner This chanty works with children,
their families, commumties and governments
across Central and Eastern Europe and Africa In
addtion, one employee raised over £4,000 by
partcipatung in the Hope and Homes Triathlon

Orbis -

Saving Sight

Worldwide

Euromoney

Serminars and

Aiwrfinance Journal continue to support Orbis
which works to prevent and treat blindness
£10,000 was rased at the annual Airfinance
conference charnty dinnter in Dublin which wall
enable 50 eye-care workers to be trained and
cover the cost of 15,000 antibiotic treatments

Other US Charity

Imtiatives

Institutional Investor

(I matched donations

made by nts employees to mare than 150
charnties around the werld In dong so ot
encouraged and rewarded the spint of gving
and generosity amongst staff  Matching gifts
were made to relief orgamzations, groups 1n
support of the arts foundations for disease
research, environmental organizations, child
welfare agencies, scholarship funds and a
number of umbrella chanties I also sponsored
scholarships at nearby Baruch College and
offered internships te deserving students

In addition, Il raised donations at therr annual
awards dinners US$i6,000 for the Lttle Kids
Rock chanty, which transforms children’s lives
by restonng and rewvitalizing music education
in disadvantaged public school, US$18,000 for
the Expect Miracles Foundation, which 15 one
of the leading advacates in the fight agamnst
cancer within the financial serices industry,
and US$25,000 for Sparks children’s medical
research chanty

Worldfund

Latin Finance contnbuted

over US§10,000 to the

Waorldfund chanty which

supports high-quality and

results-driven education

In taun Amernca - the

key to transforming lives and reducing poverty
Through Worldfund's investment n schools,
after-school acadermic programs and teacher/
principal tramming, they dwectly help 340,000
impovenshed students annually in the region

Forest Research Institute Malaysia
Petroleum Economist donated over £7,000
to the Forest Research Institute Malaysia, a
Jungle reforestation chanty, at the World Gas
Conference in June 2012




Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2012

www euromoneyplc com

Directors’ Remuneration Report

Introduction

This Remuneration Report sets out the group’s
polcy and structure for the remuneration of
executive and non-executive directors together
with details of directors’ remuneration packages
and service contracts The report has been
prepared in accordance with Schedule 8 (Quoted
Companies Directors’ Remuneration Report) to
the Large and Medium-sized Companies and
Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations
2008 and shareholders will be invited to approve
this report at the Annual General Mesting on
January 31 2013

Remuneration committee

During the year the remuneration committee
compnsed JC Botts (chairman) MWH Margan
and DP Pnichard independent) All members of
the committee are non-executive directors of
the company MWH Morgan s also a director of
Daily Mail and General Trust plc {DMGT) but has
no personal financial interests in the company
{other than as a shareholder), and no day-to-day
involvernentin running the business For the year
under review the committee also sought advice
and information from the company’s chairman
managing director and finance director The
committee’s terms of reference permit its
members to obtain professional external advice
on any matter, at the company’s expense, and
they did 50 1n 2012 as part of the independent
executive search  process undertaken in
connectton with the succession planning for the
company’s chairman The group itself can use
external adwice and information n preparing
proposals for the remuneration committee It
does apply external benchmarking although
no matenal assistance from a single source was
receved in 2012

Remuneration policy

The group believes in aligming the interests
of management with those of shareholders
It 15 the group’s poiicy to construct executive
remuneration packages such that a significant
part of a directors compensation s based on

the growth 1n the group’s profits contributed
by that director The two consistent objectives
in 1ts remuneraiton policy since the companys
inception In 1969 have been the maximisation
of earnings per share and the creation of
shareholder value

Maximising earnings per share

The first objective 1s achieved through a profit
sharing scheme that links the pay of executive
directors and key managers to the growth in
profits of the group or relevant parts of the
group This scheme 15 completely vanable with
no guaranteed floor and no celling All those
on profit shares are aware thatif profits rise so
does their pay Sunilarly if profits {all, so do therr
profit shares

To support the policy of profit sharng, the
group 15 dwvided into approximately 100 profit
centres The manager of each profit centre 15
paid a profit share based on the profit centre’s
profit growth Each profit centre 15 1n turn part
of a larger business umit and each business
unit manager or executive director has a profit
share based on the unit's profit growth The
profit shaning scheme 1s closely aligned with the
group’s strategy in that it encourages managers
and directors to grow therr businesses, to
manage costs tightly, to launch new products
and to search for acguisiions

Creating shareholder value
The second objective 1s encouraged through the
Capital Appreciation Plan {CAP)

The CAP 15 a highly geared performance-
based share option scheme which both directly
rewards executwves for the growth in profits of
the businesses they manage, and links this 1o
the delivery of shareholder value by satisfying
rewards in a mix of shares in the company and
cash The current CAP, CAP 2010, aims to mrror
the success of CAP 2004 for both shareholders
and management by delivering exceptional
profit growth over the performance penod
Further details of CAP 2004 and CAP 2010 are
set out on pages 42 to 44

The company also has an executive share option
scheme which was approved by shareholders in
January 1996 The performance <ritenia under
which options granted under this scheme may
be exercised are set out on page 44 This scheme
expired in 2006 and noc options have been
1ssued under 1t since February 2004 although
options previously granted may be exerased
before vanous dates to February 2014

The directors believe that these profit sharing and
share option arrangements are responsible for
much of the company’s success since 1969 These
arrangements align the interests of the directors
and managers with those of shareholders and are
considered an important driver of the cornpany’s
growth

Detailed remuneration
arrangements of executive
directors

Base salary and benefits

The base salary and benefits 15 generalty not
the most significant part of a director’s overall
compensaticn  package, and vanable profit
share makes up much of therr total pay For
example, of the total remuneration of the nine
executive directors who served in the year,
89% was denved from vanable profit shares, as
illustrated in the following table

Fixed Variable

salary & profit

benefits share
PM Fallon
(died October 14 2012) 4% 96%
PR Ensor 4% 96%
NF Osborn 30% 70%
DC Cohen 26% 74%
CR Jones 29% 1%
DE Alfano 19% 81%
CHC Fordham 17% 83%
1L Wilknson 62% 38%
B AL-Rehany 26% 74%
Total 11% 89%
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

continued

Each executive director recaives a salary, which
15 usually below the market average, which
15 reviewed annually by the remuneration
committee Certain non-cash benefits are alsg
provided including private health care

Pension

Each UK-based director 1s entitled to participate
in the Euromoney Pension Plan (a money
purchase plan} or therr own private pension
scheme Directors based overseas are entitled to
participate in the pension scheme arrangements
applicable to the country where they work
Details of pension scheme contnbutions can be
found on page 48 of this report There are no
other post-retirement benefits

Profit share

The profit sharing scheme links the pay of each
executive director to the growth in profits of the
businesses that they manage Each executive
director's profit share 15 completely variable
with no guaranteed floor and no celling and 1s
designed to be the most significant part of the
executive director's remuneration package In
the event profits fall from one year to another,
there 15 no clawback of prcfit share pad n
respect of previous years, but the executives
profit share will decrease at a faster rate than
the rate of reduction in profits of the businesses
he/she manages Each director’s profit share is
subject to remuneration cornmittee approval,
and can be revised at any time (f the director’s
responsibilibies are changed

There 15 no deferral of profit share which 1s paid
in full in the December or lanuary fellowing the
year 1In which 1t 1s earned, once the financial
staternents and profit shares have been subject
to audit The deferral element of the directors
remuneration 1s achieved through the delayed
vesting and additional performance conditions
under the CAP 2010

Each executive drector receves a  profit
threshold for the businesses they manage This
threshold 1s set at the time the director takes
on responsibiity for the business concerned,
usually based on the profits of the previous 12
months The standard profit share arrangement
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pays up to 1% of profits up to the threshold
and 5% of profits In excess of this threshaold
Some of the directors have schemes which have
been in place for a number of years and pay
prefit shares at shghtly higher rates or which are
subject to additional thresholds

The profit shares of PM Fallon (executive
chairman) and PR Ensor {managing director)
are based on the adjusted pre-tax post non-
controling interests profit of the group,
thereby maitching therr profit share with the
pre-tax return the group generates for its
shareholders PM Fallon 15 entitled to 509%
{2011 516%) of the adjusted pre-tax proht
PR Ensor 1s entitled to 3 01% (2011 305%) of
the adjusted pre-tax profit up 10 a threshold of
£389 million (2011 £37 0 miliony and an
addimional 1 13% (2011 1 14%) of the adjusted
pre-tax profit n excess of this threshold

Following PM Fallon s death on October 14 2012,
the company announced that the succession
plans announced on August 1 2012 would be
accelerated and PR Ensor would succeed PM
Fallon as executwe charman with immediate
effect PR Ensor's remuneration arrangements
as executive chairman will be unchanged from
those as managing director PM Fallons salary
and profit share accrued until his date of death

CHC Fordham has a profit share from the
businesses he manages drrectly plus, as
acquisitions director, an incentive linked to the
performance of acquisitions In the penod post-
acquisition  Under the company’s previcusly
announced succession plan, and following the
death of PM Fallon on October 14 2012, CHC
Fordham succeeded PR Ensor as managing
director wath immediate effect tn his new role,
CHC Fordham's incentive arrangemenis have
been revised to increase the proportion of his
total remuneration pad as fixed salary and
reduce the variable incentive However the basis
for his varable incentive 1s not the same as that
of PR Ensor as managing director Instead, he
will receve a profit share based on the growth
In the company's pre-tax earnings per share
{EPS), from a base pre-tax £PS of 64 3 pence,
equivalent to an adjusted pre-iax profit of

£79 million, with the base increasing at 5% per
year This s broadly equwalent to a 2% profit
share above the base At the same time, his salary
was Increased from £151,300 to £375,000

CR Jones (finance director) receives a profit
share linked to the pre-tax adjusted EPS of
the group A fixed surn 15 payable for every
percentage point the EPS 15 above 11 pence
and an additional fixed sum 15 payable for every
percentage point that EPS 1s above 20 pence

L Willkanson has a profit share from the
businesses she manages directly pius as group
marketing director, an incentive based on the
growth in the group’s subscription and delegate
revenues

NF Osborn, DC Cohen, DE Alfano and B8 AL-
Rehany receve profit shares from the businesses
they manage directly

Company share schemes

The board considers that share schemes are an
important part of overall compensation and
align the interests of directors and managers
with those of shareholders Details of each
director's share options can be found on pages
4910 51

2010 Capital Appreciation Plan
{CAP 2010)

CAP 2010 was approved by sharehoiders on
January 21 2010 as a direct replacement for
CAP 2004

Awards under CAP 2010 were granted on March
30 2010 to approximately 200 directors and
senior employees wha have direct and significant
responsibility for the profits of the group Each
CAP 2010 award comprises twa equal elements
an option to subscribe for ordinary shares of
0 25 pence each in the company at an exerqise
price of 025 pence per ordinary share and a
nght to receive a cash payment Mo individual
may receve an award over more than 6% of
the award pool In accordance with the terms of
CAP 2010, no consideration was payable for the
grant of the awards
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The award pool comprises 3,500 992 ordinary
shares with an option value (calculated at date of
grant using an option pricng valuation model) of
£15 million, and cash of £15 millon limiting
the total accounting cost of the scheme to
£30 miflion over its life Awards will vest in two
equal tranches The first becomes exercisable
on satsfaction of the pnmary performance
condition, but no earlier than February 2013
and !apses 10 the extent unexercised by
September 30 2020 The second tranche of
awards becomes exercisable in the February
following the next financiatb year in which
the primary performance condition 15 again
satsfied but no earher than February 2014
The second tranche only vests on satisfaction
of the primary performance condition and an
additsional performance condition {see below)

The primary performance condition reguired
the group to achieve adjusted pre-iax profits’
of £100 milion, from a 2009 base profit of
£62 3 milhion, by no later than the financia! year
ending September 30 2013, and that adjusted
pre-tax profits’ remained above this level for a
second year

The prnmary performance condition was first
achieved in financial year 2011, two years earlier
thanexpected, when adjustedpre-taxprofits' were
£101 3 milhon However, the internal rules of
the plan were modified to prevent the awards
vesting more than one year eariy so although
the prnmary condition had been achieved the
award pool would be allocated between the
holders of outstanding awards by reference
to ther contrnbution 1o the growth in profits
of the group from the 2009 base year to the
profits achueved i financial year 2012 and these
awards would become exercisable in February
2013

The pnimary performance condition for financal
year 2012 was increased to adjusted pre-
tax profits' of £1050 millon foilowing the
acquisition of NOR in August 2011 The primary
performance condiion was achieved again
in financial year 2012 when adjusted pre-tax
profits' were £113 0 muilion, resulting in the
second tranche of CAP 2010 awards vesting
and becoming exercisable from February 2014
subject to the additionat performance condition
being achueved in financial year 2613

The additional condition,
applicable for the vesting of the second tranche
of awards, requtres the profits of each business
In the subsequent vesting period be at least
75% of that achieved in the year the first
tranche of awards become exercisable As the
wutial allocation of awards to participants wlt be
calculated with reference 1o the profits achieved
in financial year 2012, the earliest the additional
performance condition can be applied 15 by
reference to the profits achieved in financial
year 2013, the primary performance conditton
having been met for a second time In financial
year 2012 Thus the CAP 2010 s designed so
that profit growth must be sustained  awards
are to vestin full

performance

The number of options received under the share
award of CAP 2010 s reduced by the number
of options vesting with participants from the
2010 Company Share Option Plan (see below
and note 24)

The number of ogtions received under CAP 2010
1s provisicnal and reflects management's best
estimate taking Into consideration the profits
of the indwidual profit centres for financial year
2012, the respective weighting of these profits
between participants and the offsetting number
of options delivered under the CSQP 2010 The
remuneration committee reguire management
to apply true-up adjustments to these awards
to reflect the results dunng the three month
perod to December 2012 The prowisional
number of options anticipated to be receved by
the directors under CAP 2010 are given in the
directors’ share option table on pages 49 to 51
The farr value per option granted and the
assumptions used to calculate its vatue are set
out in note 24

2010 Company Share Option Plan
(CSOP 2010)

The shareholders approved the CSOP 2010 at
the Annual General Meeting on January 21
2010 The CSOP 2010 plan was approved by
HM Revenue & Customs on June 21 2010

Awards were granted under the CSOP 2010 on
June 28 20107 to approximately 135S directors
and senior employees of the group who have
direct and significant respensibility for the
profits of the group Each CSOP 2010 option
enables each participant to purchase up to
4,972 shares in the company at a price of
£6 03? per share, the market value at the date
of grant No consideration was payable for the
grant of these awards The options will vest
and become exercisable at the same time as
the corresponding share award under the CAP
2010 providing the CSOP option 1s in the money
at that tme and does not vest before June 28
2013 Once vested the CSOP option remains
exercisable for a penod of one month and then
lapses If the CSOP option 1s not in the money
at the time of vesting of the corresponding CAP
2010 share award it continues to subsist and
becomes exercisable at the same tme as the
second tranche of the CAP 2010 share award
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

continued

The CSCP 2010 has the same performance
critena as that of the CAP 2010 as set out
above The number of CSOP 2010 awards that
will vest proportionally reduces the number of
shares that vest under the CAP 2010 The CSOP
15 effectively a delivery mechanism for part of
the CAP 2010 award The CSOP 2010 options
have an exercise price of £6 032 which wil!
be satsfied by a funding award mechanism
which 15 in place and results in the net gain® on
these options being delivered In the equivalent
number of shares to participants as if the
same gain had been delivered using CAP 2010
options The amount of the funding award will
depend on the company’s share price at the
date of exercise

2004 Capital Appreciation Plan
{CAP 2003)

CAP 2004 was approved by shareholders
on February 1 2005 and replaced the 1996
executive share option scheme Each CAP
2004 award comprised an option to subscribe
for ordinary shares of 025 pence each i the
company for an exercise price of 0 25 pence per
ordinary share No consideration was pad for
the grant of the awards No further awards may
be granted under CAP 2004

CAP 2004 awards vest in three equal tranches
The first tranche became exercisable aon
satisfaction of the primary performance
condition 1n 2007, and lapse to the extent
unexergised on September 30 2014 The other
two tranches of awards became exercisable
followng the results achieved in financial years
2008 and 2009, but only to the extent that
the additional performance condition was also
achieved The primary performance condition,
broadly, required the company to achieve
adjusted pre-tax profits' of £57 0 muilion by no
later than the financial year ending September
30 2008 and remain at least this level for
two further vesting perniods The additional
performance condition required that the profits
of the respective participants’ businesses in
the subsequent two vesting periods be at least
75% of that achieved in the year the pnmary
performance condition was first met
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The CAP 2004 profit target was achieved in 2007
and the option pool (@ maxmum of 7 5 million
shares) was allocated between the holders of
outstanding awards by reference io therr profit
contribution to the achievement of the primary
performance condition subject to the condition
that no individual had an option over more than
10% of the option pool Cne third of the awards
vested immediately The prnimary performance
target was achieved again in 2008 and after
applying the addmonal performance condition
2,241,269 options from the second tranche of
options vested in February 2009 The primary
performance target was achieved agan in 2009
and, after applying the additional performance
condition, 1,527,152 optons from the third (final}
tranche of options vested in February 2010 The
additonal performance condition was applied
to profits for financial years 2010 and 2011 for
those individual partispants where the additional
performance conditions had not previously been
met and 303,321 and 244,152 options vested in
February 2011 and February 2012 respectvely
Applying the addiional performance test 1o
profits for financial year 2012, a further 54,599
optrons are expected to vest in Februyary 2013

For the executive directors, the value of the
second and third tranches of the CAP 2004
award that vested in February 2012 15 set out
in the directors’ share option table on pages
49 to 51 and has been trued-up from the
estimates prowvided n last years annual report
The provisional number of options vesting in
February 2013 for those directors who have
CAP 2004 options that did not previously vest
are also set out in this table The number of
CAP 2004 options vesting 1n February 2013
35 provisional and will depend on any true-up
adjustments required by the remuneration
committee to be made to reflect the results
for the three month period to December 2012
Financial year 2012 1s the last year for which the
additional performance test can be applied As
a result, an estimated 629,507 unvested CAP
2004 options at September 30 2012 will fapse

1996 executive share option scheme
Some of the executwve directors have options
from a previous executive share option scheme
approved by shareholders in 1996 This scheme
expired 1n 2006 and no share options have been
1ssued under it since February 2004 although
options granted may be exercised before vanous
dates to February 2014 These optons are
exercisable subject to the performance condriion
that the Total Shareholder Return {TSR) of the
company exceeds the average TSR for the
FTSE 250 index for the same period For the
performance condiion to be satisfied the TSR
of the company must exceed that of the FTSE
250 on a cumulatve basis, measured from the
date of grant of the option, in any four out of six
consecutve months staring 30 months after the
option grant date

Shown below 15 the group’s TSR for the five
years 1o September 2012 compared to the TSR
of the FTSE 250 index over the same period
This index has been presented as it comprses
the comparator group for the performance
condition attached to the executve share
option scheme The TSR calculations assume the
reinvestment of dividends

Details of options held and exercised under this
scheme can be found on pages 49 to 51 of this
report The fair value per option granted and
the assumpttons used to calculate 1t5 value are
set out in note 24
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SAYE

The group operates an all employee save as you
earn scheme in which those directors employed
in the UK are eligible to participate Participants
save a fixed monthly amount of up to £250 for
three years and are then able to buy shares in the
caompany at a price set at a 20% discount to the
market value at the start of the savings perod
In line with market practice, no performance
conditions attach to options granted under this
plan The executve directors who participated
in this scheme during the year were PM Fallon,
PR Enser, NF Osborn, DC Cehen, CR Jones and
CHC Fordham, details of which can be found on
pages 49 to 51 of thus report

DMGT SIP

DMGT, the group's parent company, operates
a share incentive plan in which all UK-based
employees of the Eurcmoney group can
participate  Employees can contrbute up to
£125 a month from their gross pay to purchase
DMGT 'A’ shares These shares are received
tax free by the employee after five years
The executive directors who participated In
this scheme duning the year were PM Falion,

PR Ensor and CR Jones, detalls of which can be
found on page 52 of this report

1 Adjusted prestax profits are before acquired
mtangible  amortsation  exceptional  items
movements In acquisition option commitment
values 1mputed interest on acquisiton opLOA
commiiments foreign exchange loss interest
charge on tax equalisation contracts foreign
exchange on restructured hedging arrangements,
and the cost of the CAP iself

2 The Canadian version of the CSCP 2010 has a
grant date of March 30 2010 and an exercise
price of £5 01, the market value of the company s
shares at the date of grant and enables each
Canadian partizpant to purchase up to 19 960
shares in the company

3 The net gain on the C50P options 1s the market
price of the companys shares at the date of
exeraise jess the exeraise price (£6 03%) muluplied
by the number of options exercised

Directors’ service contracts

The companys policy 15 to employ executwve
directors on 12 month rolling service contracts
The remuneration commugtee seeks to minimise
terminaticn payments and believes these should
be restncted to the value of remuneration for

the notice penod Cirectors’ service contracts
are reviewed from time to time and updated
where necessary A service contract terminates
automatically on the director reaching therr
respective retirement age On August 1 2012,
the company announced that PR Ensor would
succeed PM Fallon as chairman and CHC
Fordham would succeed PR Ensor as managing
director, both following the January 2013 AGM
At the same ume, PR Ensor's service contract
was extended to September 30 2015 PM Fallon
died on October 14 2012 at which point the
succession plans announced on August 1 2012
were implemented with immed:ate effect

With the exception of Sirr Patnck Sergeant,
none of the non-executive directors has a
service contract The remuneration of the
non-executive directors 15 determined by the
board based on the time commitmeant required
by the non-executive, therr role and market
conditions Each non-executive receives a base
annua! fee of £28,000, with an additional
annuai fee of £6,500 payable to the chairs of
the remuneration and audit commuttees
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

continued

Executive
directors

PM Failon (died
October 14 2012)
PR Ensor

NF Osborn*
DC Cohen
CR Jones

DE Alfano®
CHC Fordham

JL Wikkinson

B AL-Rehany®

Non-executive

director
Sir Patnck Sergeant

Date of
service
contract

June 2 1986

Jan 13 1993

Jan 4 1991

Nov 2 1992

Aug 27 1997

Jan 10 2001

Sept 21 2004

July 26 2000

Nov 11 2009

Jan 10 1993

Notice
period
{months)

12

12

12

Retirement Benefits accruing
age If contract terminated’

65 12 menths’ salary, penston and
profit share

67 12 months' salary, pension and
profit share

62 12 months’ salary, pension and a
pro-rated profit share up to the
date of termination

62 12 months' salary, pension and a
pro-rated profit share up to the
date of termination

62 12 months' salary, pension and a
pro-rated profit share up 1o the
date of termination

62 12 months’ salary, pension and a
pro-rated profit share up 1o the
date of termination

62 12 months’ salary, pension and a
pro-rated profit share up to the
date of termination

62 12 months’ salary, pension and a
oro-rated profit share up to the
date of termination

62 12 months' salary, pension and a
pro-rated profit share up to the
date of termination

n/a 12 months' expense allowance

Benefits accruing
if contract terminated due to
incapacity?

9 months’ salary, profit share, and
pension

6 months’ salary, profit share and
pension

1 month's salary, pension, and a pro-
rated profit share up to the date of
termination

1 month’s salary, pension, and a pro-
rated profit share up to the date of
termination

& months salary, pension and a pro-
rated profit share up to the date of
termination

Salary, pension and profit share earned
up to the date of termination only

6 months' salary, pension, and pro-
rated profit share up to the date of
termination

6 months' salary, pension, and a pro-
rated profit share up to the date of
termination

6 months salary, pension and pro-
rated profit share up to the date of
termination

Expense allowance up to the date of
termination

1 Ontermination profit share 1s calculated as though the directer has been employed for the full financial year and then pro-rated according to the date of terrmination

unless othenwise stated

2 These reduced benefts also apply if the director gwes less than ther requured notice penod to the company In the event of death in senice benefits accrue to the date
of death If a contract s terminated for reasons of bankruptcy or sertous misconduct, 1t 1s terrminated with immediate effect and with no paymentin lieu of notice

3 PM Fallon had a second service contract with a subsidiary of the group Euromoney Institutional Investor (Jersey} Limited (EIl)) dated May 4 1993 Ths service contract
had the same terms as his contract with Euromeney Institutional Investor PLC PM Fallon s senace contracts terminated on his death on October 14 2012

4 NF Qsborn has a second service contract with a subsichiary of the group Euromoney Inc  dated January 4 1991 which may be terminated by 12 months notice In the
event of termination NF Osborn 1s entitled to 12 months base salary and pension plus a pro-rated profit share to the date notice of termination is given  The company
may alse terminate his agreement due te Incapacity giving 3 months notice ang NF Osborn would be entitled to 3 months salary, pension and pro-rated profit share

5  DE Alfanos service agreement 1s with Institutional Investor Inc

6 B AL-Rehanys service agreement 15 with BCA Research Inc
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Information subject to audit (pages 47 to 51)
Directors’ remuneration table

Year to September 30

Salary Benefits Profit
and fees' n kind share Total Total
2012 2012 2012 2012 2011
£ £ £ £ £
Executive directors

PM Fallon (died October 14 2012) 222,000 1,823 5,636,600 5,860,423 5,354,630
PR Ensor? 198,418 1,019 4,630,646 4,830,083 4 396 681
NF Osborn?s 132,559 1,019 313,407 446,985 509 539
DC Cohen? 123,628 1,274 348,796 473,698 536,539
CR Jones? 258,000 1.274 643,278 902,552 811,508
SM Brady (resigned Novemnber 15 2010) - - - - 17,040
DE Alfano 138,994 8,367 636,808 784,169 770737
CHC Fordham 151,300 1,274 743,792 896,366 782,953
JL Wilkinson 231,002 8,527 146,301 385,830 541,218
B AL-Rehany 260,662 1,908 752,127 1,014,697 935,285

Non-executive directors
The Viscount Rothermere 28,000 - - 28,000 28,000
Sir Patrick Sergeant 28,000 - - 28,000 28,000
JC Botts 34,500 - - 34,500 34,500
IC Gonzalez 28,000 - - 28,000 28,000
MWH Morgan 28,000 - - 28,000 28,000
DP Pritchard 34,500 - - 34,500 34 500
1,897,563 26,485 13,851,755 15,775,803 14,837,140

Fees as a director include fees paid as a director of subsichary companies Benefits in kind include payments by the company for private health care

1

The salaries of the executive directors are reviewed 0 Apnil each year None of the directors received a salary increase in Apnl 2012 The increases in salanes since the
2011 annual report reflect the full year impact of salary increases granted in Apnt 2011 and in the case of overseas directors also reflect movements in exchange rates
over the relevant perods

The salaries of DC Cohen and CR Janes include amounts of £7 928 and £18 000, respectively, following ther decisions to cease contnbutions to the Harmswaorth
Pension Scheme with respect from Apnl 2012 and to receve a cash allowance of 19% of base salary in lieu of company contnbutions to this fund

PR Ensor 15 also an external member of the Finance Committee of Oxford University Press During the year he retained earnings of £20 000 (2011 £20 Q00) In relation
to this role  This amount 1s not included in the table above

NF Osborn has waived £8,674 of profit share in respect of the current and future years The profit share waived was paid into a private pension scheme on his behalf
The waver has not been deducted from his profit share amount above

NF Osborn 15 a non-executive director of RBC QJSC a Moscow-listed media company During the year he retained earnings of US$50 000 ({2031 US$25 000) 1n relation
10 this role He also serves on the managemant board of A&N International Media Lirnited, a fellow group company for which he recewved fees for the year of £25 000
(2011 £25 000} and as an adwisor to the boards of both DMG Events and dmgi fellow group companies for which he received a combined fee of U5345 000 (2011

US$40 000) These arnounts are not included in the table above
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Directors’ Remuneration Report
continued

Directors’ pensions

Executive directors can participate in the Harmswaorth Pension Scheme (a defined benefit scheme, closed to new directers) the Furomoney Pensicn
Plan (a money purchase plan} or their own private pension scheme Pension contributions paid by the company on behalf of executive directors during
the year were as follows

Harmsworth Euromoney

Pension Pension Private
Scheme Pian schemes Total Total
2012 2012 2012 2012 2011
£ £ £ £ £
PM Fallon (died October 14 2012) - - - - -
PR Ensor - - - - -
NF Osborn - 9,399 - 9,399 9,237
DC Cohen? 7,928 - - 7,928 15 872
CR Jones? 12,375 - - 12,375 34,418
SM Brady (resigned November 15 2010) - - - - 1,148
DE Alfano - - 3,938 3,938 3,383
CHC Fordham - 15,130 - 15,130 14,630
ILWilkinson - 14,982 - 14,932 12,221
B AL-Rehany - - 7173 7173 7,043
20,303 39,511 11,111 70,925 §7 952

Under the Harmsworth Pension Scheme, the following pension benefits were earned by the directors

Increase increase in
i accrued Accrued transfer
annual annual Pension Transfer Transfer value
pension pension at cash accrual value value (net of
during September 30 September 30  September 30 September 30 directors’
the year 2012 2012 2012 2011 contnbutions)
£ £ £ £ £ f
Director
PM Fallon {died Qctober 14 2012) 1,000 12,000 - 208,000 202,000 6,000
DC Cohen? 1,500 31,300 49,100 621,000 548,000 73,000
CR Jones? 1,900 43,400 63,700 771,000 691,000 80,000

The accrued annual pension entitlement is that which would be paid annually on retirement based on service to September 30 2012 and ignores any
increase for future inflaton The pension cash accruat represents the sum which would be available on retirement based on service to September 30
2012 to secure retirement benefits ignoring any increase for future inflabion Al transfer values have been calculated on the basis of actuanal advice
in accordance with ‘Retirement Benefit — Transfer Values (GN11) published by the Board for Actuanal Standards The transfer values of the accrued
entitlement include the pension cash accrual and represent the value of assets that the pension scheme would need to transfer to another pension
provider on transternng the scheme’s hakility in respect of the directors’ pension benefits They do not represent a sum paid or payable to individual
directors and, therefore, cannot be added meaningfully to annual remuneration The pensicn cash accrual has been included in the increase in transfer
value (net of directors’ contnbutions) Members of the scheme have the option of paying additional voluntary contributions Neither the contributions
nor the resulting benefits are included in the above table The normal retirement age for the Harmsworth Pensicn Scheme 1s 62 years

1 PM Fallon s pension benefits related to a deferred pension in the Mail Newspapers Pension Scheme for pensionable service between April 1 1978 and April 1 1986 after
which no further contrbutions were made to this scheme by the company or PM Fallon

2 Company contnbutions to the Harmsworth Pension Scherme on behalf of DC Cohen and CR Jones were made until March 31 2012 From April 1 2012 these directors
recatved a cash allowance in lieu of company pension contributicns
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Directors’ share options

The directors hold options to subscribe for new ordinary shares of 0 25 pence each in the company as follows

Granted/
At start trued up Exercised At end
of year during year  durng year of year
PM Fallon
(died October 14 2012) 5,133 - (5,133) -
PR Ensor 5,133 - (5 133) -
- 1,810 - 1810
5,133 1810 (5,133} 1,810
NF Osborn 5,133 - (5,133) -
3,430 {3,430) - -
4972 (673) - 4,299
- 673 - 673
8,401 (4,775) - 3,626
- 1,810 - 1,810
21,936 {6,395) {5,133} 10,408
DC Cohen 10,000 - {10,000} -
5,000 - - 5,000
7.969 - (7,969} -
- 15 896 - 15,896
11286 (4,100) - 7,186
3454 - - 3,454
14,740 {4,101) - 10,639
— 1810 - 1,810
52,449 9,505 (17,969) 43,985
CR Jones 20000 - {20,000} -
15 000 - - 15,000
5,133 - (5.133) -
23162 {1,629) - 21,533
4,972 - - 4,972
28134 (1630} - 26,504
56,401 {3,259) (25,133) 68,009
DE Atfano 10,000 - (10,0003 -
- 128 (128} -
9,435 363 - 9,798
9,434 364 - 9,798
28 869 855 (10,128} 19,596
CHC Fordham 5,133 - (5,133) -
1,480 - {1,480} -
- 621 - 621
19,612 5,338 - 24,950
4972 - - 4,972
24,584 5,337 - 29,921
55 781 11,296 {6,613) 60,464
L Wilkinson 15013 (2 598) - 12,415
4,972 - - 4,972
19984 (2,597) - 17,387
39969 (5,195) - 34,774

* > = =+ > ouwn

> 4+ > W

*

2 =+ > un

D o=k D o4 Houn > o oo

>

—

Exercise
price

£187
£187
£4 97

£187
£0 0025
£603
£603
f0co25
£497

£259
£419
£0 0025
£0 0025
£0 0025
£603
£0 0025
£4 97

£259
£419
f187
£0 0025
£603
£0 0025

£419
£0 0025
£0 0025
£0 0025

£187
£0 0025
£0 0025
£0 0025
£6 03
£0 0025

£0 0025
£603
£0 0025

Date
from which
exercisable

exerqsed
exercised
Feb 01 15

exercised
Feb 14 13
Jun 28 13
Feb 13 14
Feb 13 14
Feb 0115

exercised

now
exercised
Feb 14 13
Feb 14 13
Jun 2813
Feb 13 14
Feb 01 15

exerased

now
exercised
Feb 1413
Jun 2813
Feb 1314

exarcised
exercised
Feb 14 13
Feb 12 14

exercised
exercsed
Feb 14 13
Feb 14 13
Jun 28 13
Feb 13 14

Feb 14 13
Jun 28 13
Feb 1314

Expiry
date

Aug 0312
Aug 0112
Aug 01 15

Aug 0112
Sept 30 20
Feb 14 20
Feb 14 20
Sept 30 20
Aug 07 15

Dec 04 12
Jan 28 14
Sept 30 14
Sept 30 i4
Sept 30 20
Feb 14 20
Sept 30 20
Aug 01 15

Dec04 12
Jan 28 14
Aug 01 12
Sept 30 20
Feb 14 20
Sep 30 20

Jan 28 14
Sept 3014
Sept 30 20
Sept 30 20

Aug 0112
Sept 30 14
Sept 30 14
Sept 30 20
Feb 14 20
Sept 30 20

Sept 3020

Feb 14 20
Sept 30 20
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Directors’ Remuneration Report
continued

Directors’ share options continued

Granted/ Date from
At start trued up Exercised At end Exercise which Expiry
of year during year  during year of year prce  exercisable date
B AL-Rehany 6,688 7.570 - 14,258 A £0 0025 Feb 1413 Sept 30 20
19,960 - - 19,860 t £5 01 Feb 14 13 Feb 14 20
26,647 7570 - 34217 A £0 0025 Feb 13 14 Sept 30 20
53,295 15,140 - 68,435
Total 358,966 23,757 {75,242) 307,481

Directors’ long-term incentive — cash settled
Under the terms of CAP 2010, the directors have been granted the following cash awards

Granted/

At start trued up Exercised At end

of year during year during year of year
£ £ £ £ Date from which entitled  Expiry date
NF Oshorn 35,997 (17,577) - 18,420 A Feb 1413 Sept 30 20
NF Osborn 35,997 (17 578) - 18,418 A Feb 1314 Sept 30 20
DC Cohen 63,154 (17 568) - 45586 A~ Feb 14 13 Sept 30 20
DC Cohen 63,154 (17,568) - 45,586 A~ Feb 13 14 Sept 30 20
CR Jones 120,540 (6,982) - 113,558 ~ Feb 14 13 Sept 30 20
CR lones 120,540 (65,982) - 113,558 ~ Feb 13 14 Sept 30 20
DE Alfano 40,423 1556 - 41979 A Feb 14 13 Sept 30 20
DE Alfano 40,423 1,556 - 41,979 A Feb 13 14 Sept 30 20
CHC Fordham 105 329 22,870 - 128,199 A Feb 14 13 Sept 30 20
CHC Fordham 105,329 22,870 - 128199 » Feb 13 14 Sept 30 20
JL Wilkinson 85,624 {11,130} - 74484 » Feb 1413 Sept 30 20
IL Wilkinson 85,625 {11,132) - 74,483 Feb 1314 Sept 30 20
B AL-Rehany 114,171 32,434 - 146,605 A Feb 1413 Sept 30 20
B AL-Rehany 114,171 32,434 = 146,605 ~ Feb 13 14 Sept 30 20

1,130,477 7,203 - 1,137,680

§  Issued under the Euromoney Institutional Investor LC SAYE schema 2009

Issued under the Euromeney Institutional Investor PLC SAYE scheme 2012

¥ Options granted are those expecied to be 1ssued following the satisfaction of the additional perfarmance test (see page 44) in relaton to awards outstanding from
either tranche 2 or tranche 3 of the CAP 2004 which vest either on February 11 2012 or February 14 2013 as applhicable, three months following the announcement
of the company s results The number of such options granted to each director is provisional and will require a true-up to reflect adjustments to the respective director s
indwvidual business profits between year end and December 31 2012 As such the actual number of options granted could vary from that disclosed

~  The number of options and the amount of cash award granted undar CAF 2010 to each director 1s provisional and based on the performance of the respective director s
individual businesses up to the end of the performance penod (September 2012) The number of such options granted to each directar 15 prowisional and will require a
true-up to reflect adjustments 1o the respective director s indwidual business profits between year end and December 37 2012 The number of options recewed under
the first tranche share award of the CAP 2010 is reduced by the number of opticns vesting with participants from the CSOP 2010 (note 24) As such the actual number
of options and amount of the cash award issued is likely to be different to the amount granted

t  The number of options granted under CSOP 2010 1o each director waill first vast on the third anniversary of its grant beng June 28 2013 for the UK CSOP and February 14
2013 for the Canadian CSOP providing the CSOP 15 In the money at that tme and sufficent CAP 2010 award shares remain vested but unexercised Cnee vested the option
remains exercisable for a period of one menth and then lapse If the option 1s not exercised the option continues to subsist and becomes exercisable at the same time as
the secend tranche of the CAP 2010 share award (note 24)
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Directors’ share options continued
The market pnce of the company’s shares on September 30 2012 was £7 70 The high and low share prices during the year were £8 28 and £5 50
respectively There were 23,757 options granted during the year (2011 40,559)

The aggregate gain made by the directors on the exerase of share cptions In the year was £387,800 (2011 £363 807) as follows

Market price

Number per share Number

of options Date of on date of Gain on of shares

exercised exercise exercise (£) exercise (£) retained

PM Fatlon (died October 14 2012) 5,133 Feb 07 12 £7 36 28,194 5133
PR Ensor 5,133 Feb 02 12 £6 85 25,562 -
NF Qsborn 5,133 Feb 02 12 £6 85 25,562 3,883
DC Cohen 18,000 Jun 2112 £7 42 48,236 -
DC Cohen 7,969 un 2112 £7 42 59,073 -
CR Jones 5,133 Feb 02 12 £685 25,562 3,133
CR Jones 20,000 Aug 1012 £7 47 97,600 10,000
DE Alfano 128 Feb 10 12 £7 31 935 -
DE Alfano 10,000 Jun Q712 £7 75 35,617 -
CHC Fordham 1,480 Feb 1012 73 10,815 -
CHC Fordham 5,133 Jul 0912 £7 84 30,644 5,133
75,242 387,800 27,282

Information not subject to audit

Directors’ interests in the company
The mterests of the directors and ther families in the ordinary shares of the company as at September 30 were as follows

Ordinary shares of 0 25p each

2012 20N
PM Fallon (died October 14 2012) 630,383 625,250
PR Ensor 194,529 194,529
NF Osborn 45,354 41,471
DC Cohen 74,490 124,450
CR Jones 169,272 156 139
DE Alfano 99,256 99 256
CHC Fordham 140,377 135,244
JLWilkinson 77,275 77,275
B AL-Rehany 14,791 14 794
The Viscount Rothermere 24,248 23,899
Sir Patrick Sergeant 165,304 165,304
IC Botts 15,503 15,503
IC Gonzalez - -
MWH Maorgan 7,532 7,532
DP Pritchard - ~
1,658,314 1,680,683

Non-beneficial
Sir Patrick Sergeant 20,000 20,000
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Directors’ Remuneration Report
continued

Directors’ interests in Daily Mail and General Trust plc

The nterests of the directars, to be disclosed under chapter 9 8 6 of the UKLA Listing Rules, 1n the shares of Dally Mail and General Trust pic as at
September 30 were as follows

Ordinary shares ‘A’ ordinary non-voting
of 12 5p each shares of 12 5p each

2012 2011 2012 2011
The Viscount Rothermerg'a? 11,903,132 11,903,132 75,134,502 75,134,502
PM Fallon (died October 14 2012) 4,000 4,000 42,234 41 860
PR Enser - - 866 488
CR lones - - 821 444
Sir Patrick Sergeant - - 36,000 36,000
MWH Morgan'®? 764 764 978,104 927 731

1 The figures m the table above include ‘A’ shares committed by executives under a long-term incentive plan detalls of which are set out In the Daily Mail and General
Trust plc annual report

2 The figures n the table above include A shares awarded to executives under the DMGT Executive Bonus Scheme For MWH Morgan and The Viscount Rothermere
respectively 35 266 and 80,176 of these shares were subject 1o restnctions as explained in the Daily Mail and General Trust plc annual report

The Viscount Rothermere had non-beneficial interests as a trustee at September 30 2012 1n 5,540 000 *A’ ordinary non-votng shares of 12 5 pence
each (2011 5,540,000 shares) plus nil ordinary shares of 12 5 pence each (2011 639,208 shares}

Daily Mail and General Trust plc has been notified that under section 824 of the Companies Act 2006 and incuding the interests shown in the table
above, The Viscount Rothermere 1s deemed to have been interested in 11,903,132 ordinary shares of 12 5 pence each (2011 12,542,340 shares)

At Septermber 30 2012 and September 30 2011, The Viscount Rothermere was beneficially interested in 756,700 ordinary shares of Rothermere
Continuation Limited, the company’s ultimate parent company

The Viscount Rothermere and MWH Morgan had options over 703,351 and 563,254 respectively ‘A’ ordinary non-voting shares in Daily Mail and
General Trust plc at September 30 2012 (2011 472,887 and 277,412 options respectively} The exercise price of these options ranges from £nil to
£7 24 Further details of these options are listed in the Dally Mail and General Trust plc annual report

Since Septernber 30 2012, PM Fallon PR Ensor and CR Jones purchased, through the DMGT SIP scheme, 26 52 and 52 additional A’ ordinary non-
voting shares in Daily Mail and General Trust plc respectively PM fallon died on October 14 2012 There have been no other changes i the directors’
Interests since September 30 2012

Jajpn Botts
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
November 14 2012
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Independent Auditor’s Report

to the members of Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

We have audited the group financial statements of Euromoney
Institutional Investor PLC for the year ended September 30 2012
which comprise the Censolidated Income Statement, the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Consohdated Statement of
Financial Position, the Consolhidated Statement of Changes in Equity, the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the related notes 1to 31 The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation
15 apphcable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Union

This report 15 made solely to the companys members, as a body, In
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our
audit work has been undertaken s that we might state to the company’s
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors
report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we
do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company
and the company’s mernbers as a body, for our audit work, for this report,
or for the apinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explaned more fully n the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement,
the directors are responsible for the preparation of the group financal
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Qur
responsibility 15 to audit and express an opinion on the group financial
statemnents in accordance with applicable law and International Standards
on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with
the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that
the finanaial statements are free from material misstatement, whether
caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the group s crcumstances and have
been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall
presentation of the financial statements In addiion, we read all the
financial and non-financal information n the annual report to 1dentify
matenal inconsistencies with the audited financal statements
become aware of any apparent matenal misstatements or inconsistencies
we consider the implications for our report

If we

Opinion on financial statements

In our opition the group financial statements

® gwve atrue and far view of the state of the group’s affars as at
September 30 2012 and of its profit for the year then ended,

& have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopied by
the European Union, and

& have been prepared 1n accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 and Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006

in our opinion the information given in the Directors Report for the
financial year for which the group financial statements are prepared 15
consistent with the group financal statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following

Under the Comparies Act 2006 we are reguired to report to you if In
our opInion

e certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are
not made or

e we have not receved ail the information and explanations we require
for our audit

Under the Lising Rules we are required o review

e the directors’ statement contained wathun the Directors’ Report in
relation to going concern,

e the part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the
company's comphance with the nine provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code specified for our review and

e certan elements of the report to shareholders by the board on
directors’ remuneration

Other matter

We have reported separately on the parent company financial slatements
of Euromoney [astitutional lnvestor PLC for the year ended September 30
2012 and on the information n the Directors Remuneration Report that
15 deseribed as having been audited

afAl vy
Robert Matthew{'(g!;mor Statutorym:r
for and on behalf of Delortte LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
London, United Kingdom
November 14 2012
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Consolidated Income Statement

for the year ended September 30 2012

2012 201
Notes £000 £000
Total revenue 3 394,144 363,142
Operating profit before acquired intangible amortisation, long-term
Incentive expense and exceptional items 3 118,175 108,967
Acguired intangible amortisation 12 {14,782) (12,221)
Long-term incentive expense 24 {6,301) (9,481)
Additional accelerated long-term incentive expense 6 - (6.603)
Exceptional items 5 (1,617) (3,295)
Operating profit before associates 3,4 95,475 77 357
Share of results in associates 459 408
Operating profit 95,934 77,765
Finance income 8 4,475 1,761
Finance expense 8 (8.041) {11,329)
Net finance costs 8 (3,566) (9,568)
Profit before tax 3 92,368 68,197
Tax expense on profit 9 (22,528) (22 527)
Profit after tax 3 69,840 45 670
Attributable to
Equity holders of the parent 69,672 45,591
Equity non-controlling interests 168 79
69,840 45,670
Basic earnings per share — continuing operations 11 56 74p 38 02p
Diluted earnings per share — continuing operations 11 55 17p 37 34p
Adjusted basic earnings per share N 67 79p 57 09p
Adjusted diluted earnings per share n 6591p 56 05p
Dmidend per share (including proposed dividends) 10 2175p 18 75p

A detailed reconcliation of the group’s statutory results to the adjusted results 15 set out in the appendix to the Chairman’s Statement on page 7
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Consolidated Statement of

Comprehensive Income

for the year ended September 30 2012

Profit after tax
Change in fair value of cash flow hedges
Transter of loss on cash {low hedges from fair value reserves to Income Statement
Foreign exchange losses in total revenue
Foreign exchange losses/(gains} in operating profit
Interest rate swap losses in interest payable on committed borrowings
Net exchange differences on translation of net Investments in overseas subsidiary undertakings
Net exchange differences on foreign currency loans
Actuanat losses on defined benefit pension schemes
Tax on ttems taken directly to equity
Other comprehensive {expense)/ income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year

Attributable to
Equity holders of the parent
Equity non-controlling interests

2012 201
£000 £000
69,840 45,670
3,913 {1 340}
3,382 4,398
184 (695)
1,251 3,985
(13,650 9,330
5,886 (5.691)
(3.398) (1.032)
{727 1,395
{3,159 10,250
66,681 56 020
65.675 55,923
1,006 97
66,681 56,020

Consaligated Statement of Comprehensive income
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Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position

as at September 30 2012

2012 201
Nates £000 £000
Non-current assets
intangible assets
Goodwili 12 333,065 336,632
Other intangible assets 12 136,243 153,410
Property, pfant and equipment 13 17,982 20,390
Investments 14 735 -
Deferred tax assets 22 7,344 13,216
Dervative financiat instrumends 19 296 218
495,665 523,866
Current assets
Trade and other recenvables 16 65,952 71,417
Current income tax assets 2,678 9,803
Cash at bank and n hand 13,544 14,046
Denvative financial instruments 19 2,715 1,126
84,889 96,392
Current habilities
Acquisition optton commitments 25 (4,273) (852)
Trade and other payables 17 (27,700) {29,970)
Liability for cash-settled options 24 (7,768) -
Current income tax habilities (9,076) {8,044)
Group relief payable - {1,063) -
Accruals (54,170) {56,249)
Deferred income 18 (105.106) (105,507}
Derivative financial instruments 19 (656) (6,275)
Prowisions 21 (2,037) (810
Committed loan facility 20 - (58,516)
Loan notes 20 (1.228) (1,617)
Bank overdrafts 20 - {1,549)
{212,014) (270,452)
Net current habilities (127.125) (174,060)
Total assets less current habilities 368,540 349,806
Non-current habilities
Acquisition option commitments 25 (3,595) (10,149)
Liability for cash-settled options and other non-current habilities 24 (6,966) (11,039}
Preference shares (10) (10}
Commutted loan facility 20 (43,154) (71,543}
Deferred tax habilities 22 (16,975) (22,225}
Net pension defrcit 27 {4,757) {(1,899)
Dernvative fimanciak instruments 19 (241) (1,970)
Provisions 21 {4,918) {5,396}
{80,616) {124,231)
Net assets 287,924 225,575
Shareholders’ equity
Called up share capital 23 311 303
Share premium account 99,485 82,124
Other reserve 64,981 64,981
Capital redemption reserve 8 8
Own shares (74) (74)
Reserve for share-based payments 36,055 33,725
Fair value reserve (18,152} (32,768)
Translation reserve 40,728 55,216
Retained earnings 58,033 16,218
Equity shareholders’ surplus 281,375 219,733
Equity non-controlling interests 6,549 5842
Total equity 287,924 225575
The accounts were apgraved by the board of dlr n November 14 2012
Richard Ensor L ) ‘ i s
Colin lones X h ’ @\—
Directors
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Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity

for the year ended September 30 2012

Reserve
for Equity
Capital share- non-
Share redemp- based Far Trans- control-
Share premium  Other tion Own pay- value lation Retamed ling
capital account reserve reserve shares ments reserve reserve eamings Total interests  Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At September 30 2011 303 82,124 64,981 8 (74) 33,725 (32,768) 55216 16,218 219,733 5,842 225,575
Retained profit for the year - - - - - - - - 69,672 69,672 168 69,840
Change in farr value of cash
flow hedges - - - - ~ - 3913 - - 3913 - 3913
Transfer of loss on cash
flow hedges from fair value
reserves 10 Income Statement
Foreign exchange losses in
total revenue - - - - - - 3,382 - - 3,382 - 3,382
Foreign exchange losses in
operating profit - - - - - - 184 - B 184 - 184
Interest rate swap losses
in interest payable on
committed borrowings - = - - - - 1,25 - - 1,251 - 1,25
Net exchange differences on
translation of net investrnents
In overseas subsidiary
undertakings - - - - - - - (14,488) - (14,488) 838 (13.650)
Net exchange differences on
foreign currency loans - - - - - - 5,886 - - 5886 - 5,886
Actuaral losses on definad
benefit pension schemes - - - - - - - - {3,398) (3,398) - (3,398)
Tax on rtems taken directly
10 equuty - - - - - - - - (121 azn - am
Total comprehensive
income for the year - - - - - - 14,616 {(14,488) 65547 65,675 1,006 66,681
Exercise of acquisition option
commitments - - - - - - - - 62 62 (62) -
Credit for share-based
payments - - - - - 2330 - - - 2,330 - 2,330
Scnp/cash dwidends paid 6 16,304 - - - - - - (23,794) (7.484) (299) (7,783}
Exercise of share options 2 1,057 - - - - - - - 1,059 62 1,111
At September 30 2012 311 99,485 64,981 8 (74} 36,055 (18,152) 40,728 58,033 281,375 6,549 287,924

The investment in own shares s held by the Euromoney Employees” Share Ownership Trust (ESOT) At September 30 2012 the ESQT held 58,976 shares
(2011 58,976 shares} carned at a historic cost of £1 25 per share with a market value of £454,000 {2011 £363 000) The trust waived the nghts to
receive dvidends Imerest and administrative costs are charged to the profit and loss account of the ESOT as incurred

The other reserve represents the share prersurn arising an the shares issued for the purchase of Metal Bulletin plc in October 2006

Consahdated Statement of Changes in Equity
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Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity continued

for the year ended September 30 2011

At September 30 2010
Retained profit for the year
Change in faw value of cash

flow hedges
Transfer of loss on cash
flow hedges from fair
value reserves to Income
Statement
Foretgn exchange losses in
total revenue
Foreign exchange gains in
operating profit
Interest rate swap losses
In interest payable on

committed borrowings
Net exchange differences on

translation of net investments
In gverseas subsidiary
undertakings

Net exchange differences on
foreign currency loans
Actuanial tosses on defined
benefit pension schemes
Tax on itemns taken directly
o equity

Total comprehensive
tncome for the year
Change in ownership of
subsidiaries

Recogrition of acquisiion
aplion cammitments
Non-controling interest
recognised on acquisition
Exercise of acquisition option
commitrments

Credit for share-based
payments

Scrip/cash dividends paid
Exercise of share options

At September 30 2011

Share
premium
accourt
£000

66,082

Trans-
lation
reserve
£000

45,904

9,312

Equity
non-
control-

Retained ling
earnings Jotal interests  Total
£000 £000 £000  £000

p—

15,325
717

53 169,483 - 169,483
45591 45591 79 45,670
- (1340) - {1,340)
- 4398 - 4398
- (695) - (695}
- 3985 ~ 3,985
- 9312 18 9,330
- (5691) - (5,691
{1,032) (1032 ~ {1,032)
1395 1,395 - 1,395
45,954 55923 97 56,020

1091 1,091 (208) 883

(9,451} (9451) - (9.451)
- - 598 598

19 19 (19 -

- 8,067 - 8,067

(21,448) (5117) (28) (6,145)

= 718 19 737

82,124

55,216

16,218 219,733 5842 225,575
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

for the year ended September 30 2012

Cash flow from operating activities

Operating profit

Share of results In associates

Acquired intangible amortisation

Licences and software amortisation

Long-term incentive expense

Intangible impairment

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Loss on disposal of property plant and equipment
increase 1N provisions

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital
Decrease/(increase) in recevables

(Decrease)increase (n payables

Cash generated from operations

Income taxes paid

Group relief tax paid

Net cash from operating activities

Investing activities

Dwvdends paid to non-controlhng interests

Dwidends received from associate

Interest receved

Purchase of intangible assets

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property plant and equipment
Payment following working capnial adjustment from purchase of subsidiary
Purchase of subsidiary undertaking

Purchase of associate

Net cash used 1n investing activities

Financ<ing activities

Dwdends paid

interest paid

Interest paid on loan notes

Issue of new share capital

Payment of acquisiton deferred consideration

Purchase of additional interest in subsidiary undertakings
Proceeds from disposal of interest in subsidiary undertakings
Proceeds recaived from non-controlling interest
Settlement of derivative assets/liabifities

Redemption of loan notes

Loan repaid to DMGT group company

L.oan recetved from DMGT group company

Net cash used n finanang activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Effect of foreign exchange rate movements

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Cash and cash equivalents include bank overdrafts

2012 2011
£000 £000
95,934 77,765
{459} {408)
14,782 12,221
339 302
6,301 16,094

- 120

3,408 2 851
53 "

844 1,033
121,202 109,789
4,905 (7.464)
(3,932 15 645
122,175 117,970
{11,065) (27,022)
(4.204) -
106,506 90 948
(299) (28)
291 656
306 293
(819) (557)
(1.665) {2,112
2 95
(1,151 -
(5.099) {64,773}
{567) -
{9.001) {66,426)
(7.484) {6,117)
(5.218) {6,644)
(12) an
1,059 718
(612) (2,423)
{924) (50)

- 891

1.828 -
(332) (746)
(385) (420)
(139,067) (506,567)
54,700 498,067
(96.448) (23,308)
1,457 1.214
12,497 11190
(410) 93
13,544 12,497
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Note to the Consolidated Statement
of Cash Flows

Net Debt

Net debt at beginning of year
Increase in cash and cash equivalents

Decrease in amounts owed to DMGT group company

Redemption of loan notes

Interest paid on loan notes

Accrued interest on loan notes

Effect of foreign exchange rate movements
Net debt at end of year

Net debt comprises

Cash at bank and in hand

Bank overdrafts

Total cash and cash equivalents
Committed loan facility

Loan notes

Net debt

60

2012 2011
£000 £000
(119,179) {128,757)
1,457 1,214
84,367 8,500
386 420

12 17

(9) (15)
2,128 (558}
(30,838) (119 179)
13,544 14,046
- {1,549)
13,544 12,497
(43,154} (130,059)
(1,228) (1,617)
(30,838} (119,179)
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Notes to the Consolidated

Financial Statements

1 Accounting policies

General information

Euromoney Insttutional Investor PLC (the ‘company’) 1s a company
incorporated in the United Kingdom (UK)

The group financial statements consolidate those of the company and its
subsidianes {together referred to as the 'group’) and equity-account the
group’s interest in associates The parent company financial statements
present information about the entity and not about #ts group

The group financial statements have been prepared and approved by the
directors in accordance with the International Financal Reporting Standards
{IFRS) adopted for use in the European Union and, therefore, comply with
Arncle 4 of the EU IAS Regulation The company has elected to prepare its
parent company financial statements in accordance with UK GAAP

Judgements made by the directors i the apphcation of those accounting
policies that have a significant effect on the financial statements, and
estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in the next year
are discussed in note 2

{a) Relevant new standards, amendments and interpretations 1ssued

and apphed in the 2012 financal year

® JAS 24 (rewised), ‘Related party disclosures’, effective for accounting
penads beginning on or after January 1 2011

o [FRIC 14, 'Prepayments of a Mwumum Funding Requirement
Improvernents to IFRSs 2010, effectve for accounting perods
beginming on or after fanuary 1 2011

® Amendments to IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments Disclosures , effective
for accounting periods beginning on or after July 1 2011

® Improvements to IFRSs (2010), effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after January 1 2011 Key amendments include
IFRS 1 — accounting policy changes in year of adoption and
amendments to deemed cost (revaluation basis, regulatory assets),
IFRS 31AS 27 - clanfication of transition requirements, measurement
of non-controlling interests, unreplaced and voluntanly replaced
share-based payment awards, financial statement disclosures -
clanfication of content of statement of changes in equity (1AS 1),
financial instrument disclosures (IFRS 7) and sigmificant events and
transactions in interim reports (I1AS 34}

None of these newly adopted standards have had a matenal impact on
the group’s results i this financiat year

{b) Relevant new standards, amendments and interpretations Issued
but effective in future accounting periods

e IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments 1ssued in October 2010 (effective for
accounung periods beginning on or after January 1 2015) This
standard 15 the first step in the process to replace 1AS 39 ‘Financial
Instruments recognition and measurement IFRS 9 introduces new

requirements for classifying and measuring financial assets and is
hikely to affect the group’s accounting for its financial assets This
standard has not yet been endorsed by the EU The group 15 yet 1o
assess IFRS 9's full impact

IFRS 10, ‘Consolidated Financial Statements (effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after January 1 2013) This standard builds
on existing principles by identifying the concept of control as the
determining factor in whether an entity should be included within
the consolidated financial statements of the parent company and
provides additional guidance to assist in the determination of control
where this 15 difficult to assess This standard has not yet been
endorsed by the EU The group is yet to assess IFRS 10 full impact
IFRS 11, ‘Joint Arrangements’ (effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after January 1 2013) This standard replaces
I1AS 31, ‘Interests in Joint Ventures' and reguires a party to a joint
arrangement to determine the type of joint arrangement in which it
15 Involved by assessing its rights and obligations and then account
for those nghts and obligations in accordance with that type of
joint arrangement A jomt venturer applies the equity method of
accounting for its Investment in a Joint venture 1 accordance with
IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (2011) Unlke
IAS 31, the use of ‘proportionate consolidation’ to account for jamnt
ventures Is not permitted

IFRS 12, 'Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities’ (effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after January 1 2013) This
standard includes the disclosure requirements for all forms of
interests in other entittes, ncluding joint arrangements, associates,
special purpose vehicles and other off balance sheet vehicltes This
standard has not yet been endorsed by the EU The group 1s yet to
assess IFRS 12 s full impact

IFRS 13, ‘Fair Value Measurement (effective far accounting periods
beginning on or after January 1 2013) This standard aims to smprove
consistency and reduce complexity by providing a precise definition
of far value and a single source of farr value measurement and
disclosure requirements for use across [FRSs The requirements, which
are largely aligned between IFRSs and US GAAP, do not extend to the
use of fair value accounting but prowide guidance on how it should
be appled where its use 1s already required or permitted by other
standards within [FRSs or US GAAP This standard has not yet been
endorsed by the EU The group is yet to assess IFRS 13 s full impact
I1AS 19 (rewised), ‘'Employee Benefits’, 1ssued i June 2011 (effective
for accounting penods beginning on or after January 1 2013) The
impact on the group will be as follows to eliminate the corndor
approach and recogmise all actuanal gamns and losses in Other
Comprehensve Income as they occur, to immediately recogmise all
past service costs, and to replace interest cost and expected return on
plan assets with a net interest amount that is calculated by applying
the discount rate to the net defined liability (asset) The group 15 vet
to assess the full impact of the amendments

61

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our Governance Our Performance

Group Accounts

Company Accounts



Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2012
www euromoneyplc com

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements continued

1 Accounting policies continued

62

IAS 27, Separate Financial Statements (2011) (effectve for
accounting periods beginning on or after January 1 2013} The
standard requires that when an entity prepares separate financial
statements, nvestments in subsidianies, associates, and jointly
controlled enthies are accounted for either at cost, or v accordance
with IFRS 9 Financial Instruments It also deals with the recognition
of dwidends, certain group reorgarisations and includes a number of
disclosure requirements

IAS 28, ‘Investments wn Associates and Joint Ventures (2011)
{effective for accounting periods beginning on or after January 1
2013) This standard supersedes IAS 28, ‘Investments In Associates’,
and prescnbes the accounting for investments in associates and
sets out the requirements for the application of the equity method
when accounting for investments n associates and joint ventures
The standard defines ‘significant influence’ and provides guidance
on how the equity method of accounting is to be applied (including
exemptions from applying the equity method in some cases) It also
prescribes haw investments in associates and jomt ventures should
be tested for impairment

Offsetung Finanoial Assets and Financiat Liabilities {Amendments to
1AS 32), effective for accounting periods beginning on or after January
1 2014 This amends |AS 32, ‘Financial Instruments Presentation’
to clanfy certain aspects because of diversity in applicatton of the
requirements on offsetting, focused on four main areas

- the meaning of ‘currently has a legally enforceable nght of set-off
- the application of simultaneous realsation and settlement

— the offsetting of collateral amounts

— the unit of account for applying the offsetting requirements
Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income (Amendments
to IAS 1}, effective for accounting periods beginning on or after July
31 2012 This amends IAS 1, ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’
to revise the way other comprehensive incormne 1s presented
Consolidated Financial Statements, Jont Arrangements and
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities Transton Guidance
Amends IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements’, IFRS 11, Joint
Arrangements and [FRS 12, 'Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities’
1o prowide additional transition relief in by iimiting the requirement
10 provide adjusted comparative information 1o only the preceding
comparative period

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabihties
(Amendments to IFRS 7), effective for accounting pertods beginning
on or after January 1 2033 This amends the disclosure requirements
In IFRS 7, 'Financial Instruments Disclosures’ {0 require information
about all recogrused financa! instruments that are set off in
accordance with paragraph 42 of IAS 32, Financial Instruments
Presentation’

e Investment Entities (Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27),
effective for accounting penods beginming on or after January 1
2014 This amends IFRS 10, Consohidated Financial Statements’, IFRS
12, ‘Disclosure of Interests in Other Fntiies' and 1AS 27, ‘Separate
Financial Statements’ 10 provide investment entities an exemption
from the consolidation of particular subsidiares and nstead require
that an investment entity measure the tnvestment i each eligible
subsidiary at fair value through profit or loss in accordance with
IFRS 9, "Finanaal Instruments' or 1AS 39, ‘Financial Insiruments
Recogmtion and Measurement’, require additional disclosure about
why the entity 1s considered an investment entity, details of the
entity’s unconsolidated subsidiaries, and the nature of relationship
and certain transact:ons between the investment entity and its
subsidiaries, require an investment entity to account for its invesiment
In a relevant subsidiary in the same way In its consolidated and
separate financial statements {or 1o only provide separate financial
statemnents if all subsidiaries are unconsoldated)

The directors anticipate that the adoption of these standards in future
penods will have no matenal impact on the financial statements of the
group except for additional disclosures

8asis of preparation

The accounts have been prepared under the histonical cost convention,
except for certain financial instruments which have been measured
at farr value The accounting pohoes set aut below have been appled
consistently to all periods presented in these group financal statements
The directors continue to adopt the gong concern basis in preparing this
report as explained in detall on page 25
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1 Accounting policies continued

Basis of consolidation

(a) Subsidiaries

The consolidated accounts incorporate the accounts of the company and
entities controlied by the company (its subsidiaries’) Control 15 achieved
where the company has the power to govern the financial and operating
pohcies of an invesiee entity so as to obtain benefits from 1ts activities

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains and losses on
transactions between group companies are ekminated

The group uses the acquisiion method of accounting 1o account for
business combinations The amount recognised as consideragon by
the group equates to the farr value of the assets, habibties and equity
acquired by the group plus contingent consideration (should there be any
such arrangement) Acquisition related costs are expensed as incurred
ldentifiable assets acquired and lablities and contingent liabilties
assumed In a business combination are measured ivtially at their far
values at acquisition On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at far value
or at the non-contrelling interests proportionate share of the acquiree’s
net assets

To the extent the consideration (including the assumed contingent
consideration) provided by the acquirer 15 greater than the farr value of the
assets and habiities, this amount 1s recognised as goodwill Goodwill also
incorporates the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the acquisition date farr value of any previcus eguity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the group’s share of the dentifiable net
assets acquired

If this i1s less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired,
the difference 1s recognised directly 1n the Statement of Comprehensive
Income

Partial acquisitions — control unaffected

Where the group acquires an additional interest in an entity in which
a controling interest 15 already held the consideration paid for the
additional interest 1s reflected within movements in equity as a reduction
n nen-controlling interests No goodwili 15 recognised

Step acquisitions ~ controf passes to the group

Where a business combination 1s achieved in stages at the stage at which
contro} passes 10 the group, the previcusly held interest is treated as if it
had been disposed of, along with the consideration paid for the controlling
interest in the subsidiary The fair value of the previously held interest then
forms one of the compaonents that 15 used to calculate goodwill, along
with the consideration and the non-controlling interest less the farr value
of identfiable net assets

The consideration paid for the earlier stages of a step acquisition, before
control passes to the group, 1s treated as an investment in an associate

{b) Transactions and non-controliing interests

Transactions with non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidiaries are identified separately and included in the group’s equity
Non-controlling interests consist of the amount of those interests at the
date of the ongmnal busness combination and its share of changes in
equity since the date of the combination Total comprehensive income
is attributed to non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance

Where the group owns a non-controlling interest in the equity share capital
of a non-quoted company and does not exercise significant influence, itis
held as an investment and stated in the baiance sheet at the lower of cost
and net realisable value

(¢} Associates

An associate 15 an entity over which the group 1s in a position to exercise
signsficant influence, but not control or joint control through partcipation
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee The results
and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these finanaal
statements using the equity method of accounting and are initially
recognised at cost The group s investment In associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition, net of any accumulated impairment loss

The group's share of associate post-acquisitton profit or losses 1s recognised
in the Income Statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements
in other camprehensive income 15 recognised In other comprehensive
income The cumulative post-acquisiion movements are adjusted against
the carrying amount of the investment When the group s share of losses
In an associate equals its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the group does not recognise further losses, unless
1t has sncurred obligations or made payments an behalf of the associate

Unrealised gains on transactions between the group and its associates
are eliminated to the extent of the groups interest in the associates
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction prowides
ewidence of an impairment of the asset transferred Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the group

Dilution gasns and losses arising In nvestments in associates are recognised
n the Income Statement
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements continued

1 Accounting policies continued

Foreign currencies

Functronal and presentation currency

The functional and presentation currency of Euromoney [nstitutional
Investor PLC and 1ts UK subsidianes other than Fantfoot Limited 1s sterling
The functional currency of subsidiaries and associates 1s the currency of
the primary economic environment in which they operate

Transactions and balances

Transactions 1n foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange
ruling at the date of the transaction Monetary assets and habilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translaied into sterling at the rates
ruling at the balance sheet date

Gains and losses ansing on foreign currency borrowings and derivative
instruments, to the extent that they are used to provide a hedge against
the group’s equity investments in overseas undertakings, are taken to
eguity together with the exchange difference ansing on the net investment
In those undertakings All other exchange differences are taken to the
Income Statement

Group compamnes

The Income Statements of overseas operations are translated into sterling
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year and their balance
sheets are translaled nio sterling at the exchange rates rubng at the
balance sheet date All exchange differences ansing on consolidation are
taken to equity In the event of the disposal of an operation, the related
cumulative translation differences are recogmised in the Income Staterent
m the penod of disposal

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciavon and any recegmsed impairment loss

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 15 provided on a straight-
line basis over therr expected useful Lves at the following rates per year

Freehold land

Freehold buildings

Long-term leasehold premises
Short-term leasehold premises
Office equipment

Motor vehicles

do not depregiate
2%

over term of lease
over term of lease
1% -33%

20%
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Intangible assets
Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of purchase consideration
over the net far value of identifiable assets and liabilities acquired

Goodwill 1s recogrused as an asset at cost and subsequently measuved at
cost less accumulated impairment For the purposes of impairment testing,
goodwill 1s allocated to those cash generating units that have benefited
from the acquisition Assets are grouped at the lowest level for which
there are separately identfiable cash flows The carrying value of goodwill
15 reviewed for impairment at least annually or where there is an indication
that goodwill may be impaired If the recoverable amount of the cash
generating urnt 15 less than i1ts carrying amount, then the impairment loss
1s allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of the goodwilt allocated
to the uni{ and then to the other assets of the untt on a pro-rata basis Any
imparrment 15 recognised immediately in the Income Statement and may
not subsequently be reversed On disposal of a subsidiary undertaking, the
attnbutable amount of goodwill 1s included in the determination of the
profit and loss on disposal

Goodwill ansing on foreign subs:diary investiments held in the consolidated
balance sheet are retranslated into sterling at the apphcable period end
exchange rates Any exchange differences arising are taken directly to
equity as part of the retranslation of the net assets of the subsidiary

Googdwill ansing on acquisitions before the date of transiion to [FRS has
been retained at the previous UK GAAP amounts having been tested for
impairment at that date Goodwll written off to reserves under UK GAAP
before October 1 1998 has not been reinstated and 1s not included in
determining any subsequent profit or loss on disposal

Internally-generated intangible assets

Aninternatly-generated intangible asset anising from the group’s software
and systems development 15 recognised only if all of the following
conditions are met

&  An asset Is crested that can be dentfied {such as software or o
websita),

e It s probable that the asset created will generate future economic
benefits, and

e The development cost of the asset can be measured rehably

Internally-generated intangible assets are stated at cost and amortised on
a straight-line basis over the useful hves Where no nternally-generated
intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is recognised
as an expense In the penod in which 1t 1s incurred
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1 Accounting policies continued

Other intangible assets

For all other intangible assets, the group tially makes an assessment
of their farr value at acquisition An intangible asset will be recognised
as long as the asset 1s separable or arises from contractual or other legal
rights, and its fair value can be measured reliably

Subsequent to acquisition, amortisation 15 charged so as to wnite off the
costs of other mtangible assets over their estmated useful lives, using
a straight-line or reducing balance methed These intangible assets are
reviewed for impairment as descnbed befow

These intangibles are stated at cost less accumuiated amortisation and
impasr ment losses

Amortisation

Amortisatian of intangible assets 15 provided on a reducing balance basis
or straight-lne basis as appropriate over therr expected useful lives at the
following rates per year

Trademarks and brands 5 - 30 years
Custorner relationships 3-16 years
Databases 122 years
Licences and software 3 = 5 years

Impairment of non-financal assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example, goodwill or
intangible assets not ready to use - are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in arcumstances
sndicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable An impairment
toss 15 recognused for the amaount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds 1ts recoverable amount The recoverable amount 15 the higher
of an assets fair value less costs 1o sell or value i use For the purposes
of assessing tmpairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating units)
Non-finangal assets, other than goodwall, that suffered impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reparting date

Trade and other receivables

Trade recevables are recognised and carried at original snveoice amount,
less provision for impairment A prowision 1s made and charged to the
Income Statement when there 15 objective evidence that the group waill
not be able to collect all amounts due according to the orngnal terms
More infarmation on imparrment s included in the imparrment of financial
assets section below

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash, short-term deposits and other
short-term highly liquid investmenis with an oniginal matunty of three
months or less

For the purpose of the group cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents are as defined above, net of cutstanding bank overdrafts

Finanoal assets

The group classifies sts financial assets in the following categories
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, ioans and recevables,
and avallable-for-sale financial assets The classification depends on the
purpose for which the assets were acquired Management determines
the classification of its assets at wntial recogmition and re-evaluates this
designation at every reparting date

Classification

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

Finangial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets
hetd for tracing A fimanaal asset 1 dassified n this category if acquired
prnnaipally for the purpose of selling in the short-term or if so designated
by management Dervatives are also categensed as held for trading
unless they are designated as hedges Assets in this category are classified
as current assets iIf expected to be settled within 12 months, otherwise,
they are classified as non-current

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-dervative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market They are
included In current assets, except for those with maturities greater than
12 months after the end of the reporting period which are classified as
nan-current assets The group's loans and recewvables comprise trade and
other receivables and cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet

Avallable-for-sale financial assets

Avallable-for-sale financial assets are non-denvatves that are either
designated in this category or not classified in any of the other categories
They are included m non-current assets untess the investment matures or
management ntends to dispose of it within 12 months of the end of the
reporting penod
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements continued

1 Accounting policies continued

Recogmition and measurement

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the date
on which the group commits 1o purchase or sell the asset All financal
assets, other than those carned at far value through profit or loss, are
intially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

Financial assets carred at farr value through profit or loss are initrally
recogrused at farr value, and transaction costs are expensed In the profit
and loss component of the Statement of Comprehensive Income Gains
and losses ansing from changes in the fair value of the 'financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss category’ are included in the profit and
loss component of the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period
in which they arise Dividend income from assets, categorised as financial
assets at far value through profit or loss, 15 recognised in the profit and
loss component of the Statement of Comprehensive Income as part of
ather income when the groups right to receive payments 15 established

Loans and recewvables
Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method

Avarfable-for-sale financial assets
Avallable-for-sale financial assets are subsequently measured at farr value

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and habilities are offset and the net amount reported in
the balance sheet when there 5 a legally enforceable nght to offset the
recogrised amounts and there 15 an intention to settle on & net basis, or
realise the asset and settle the habihty simultaneously

impairment of financal assets

The group assessas at each reporting penod whether there 1s objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financal assets 1s impawed A
financial asset or a group of financial assets 1s impaired and imparment
losses are incurred only if there 1s objective evidence of impairment as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset (a loss event’} and that loss event (or events) has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial
assets that can be rehably estimated

The cntena that the group uses to determine that there Is objective
evidence of an mpairment loss include
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« Significant financal difficulty of the issuer or obligor,

® A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments,

& The group, for economic or legal reasons relating to the borrowers
financial difficulty, granting to the borrower a concession that the
lender would not otherwise consider,

® |t becomes probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation,

e The disappearance of an actve market for that financal asset
because of financial difficulties, or

¢  Observable data indicating that there 1s a measurable decrease in the
estimate of future cash flows from a portfolio of financial assets since
the initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease cannot
yet be identified with the indvidual financial assets in the portfolio,
inciuding
() Adverse changes In the payment status of borrowers in the

porticho, and
{n} National or local economic conditions that correlate with
defaults on the assets in the portfolio

*
The group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the assets
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credn losses that have not been incurred) discounted
al the financial asset’s onginal effective interest rate The asset's carrying
amount 15 reduced and the amount of the loss is recogmised in the profit
and loss component of the Statement of Comprehensive Income If
a loan has a vanable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss I1s the current effective interest rate determined under the
contract As a practical expedient, the group may measure impairment on
the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable market price

If the assets carrying amount 15 reduced, the amount of the loss 1s
recognised In the profit and loss component of the Statement of
Comprehensive Income

If in a subsequent penod, the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtors
credit rating), the reversal of the previcusly recognised impairment loss
s recognised in the profit and loss component of the Statement of
Comprehenswe tncome
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1 Accounting policies contmued

Financial habilities

Commutted borrowings and bank overdrafts

Interest-beanng loans and overdrafts are recorded at the amounts
recewed, net of direct issue costs Direct issue costs are amortised over the
periad of the loans and overdrafts to which they relate Finance charges,
including premiums payable on settlement or redemption are charged to
the [ncome Statement as incurred using the effective interest rate method
and are added to the carrying value of the borrowings or overdraft to the
extent they are not settled in the period in which they arnise

Trade payables
Trade payables are not interest-bearing and are stated at their fair vatue

Denvative financal instruments

The group uses various derivative financial mstruments to manage its
exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate nisks, including forward
foreign currency contracts and interest rate swaps

All dervatrve instruments are recorded 1n the balance sheet at fair value
The recogniion of gains or Josses on dervative instruments depends on
whether the instrument 15 designated as a hedge and the type of exposure
it 1s designed to hedge The group designates certain dervatives as either

(8) hedges of a particutar nsk associated with a recognised asset or
habihty or a highly probable forecast transactron {cash flow hedge),
ar

(b} hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation {net investment
hedge)

The group documents at the inception of the transaction the relationship
between hedging mstruments and hedged itemns, as well as 1ts nsk
management objectives and strategy for undertaking vanous hedging
transactions The group also documents its assessment, both at hedge
inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the dervatives that are
used In hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in
fair values or cash flows of hedged items

The full fair value of a hedging derivative 1s classified as a non-current
asset or habihty when the denvative matures in more than 12 manths,
and as a current asset or lability when the derivative matures in less than
12 months Trading derivatives are classified as a current asset or lability

Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of gains or losses an denvatives that are designated
and qualify as cash flow hedges are recognised i other comprehensive
income within the Statement of Comprehensive Income The ineffective
portion of such gains and losses 1s recogmised in the Income Statement
immediately

Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified to the Income Statement in
the periods when the hedged item 1s recognised in the Income Statement
(for example, when the forecast transaction that i1s hedged takes place)

The gain or loss relating to the effective portion of interest rate swaps
hedging vanable rate borrowings 1s recognised in the Income Statement
accordingly, the gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion 1$ recognised
In the Income Statement immediately However, whenever the forecast
transaction that 15 hedged results in the recognition of a non-financial
asset {for example fixed assets), the gains and losses previously deferred in
equity are transferred from equity and included in the initial measurement
of the cost of the asset The deferred amounis are ultimately recognised
in depreciation in the case of fixed assets

When a hedging instrument expires or 1s sold, or when a hedge no iongar
meets the cnteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss
exsting in equity ai that time remains in equity and Is recognised when
the forecast transaction (s ultimately recogmsed in the Income Statement
When a forecast transaction 1s no longer expected to occur, the cumulative
gan or loss that was reported in equity 1s immediately transferred to the
Income Statement

The prermsum or discount on interest rate instrumenis 1s recognised as part
of net interest payable over the peniod of the contract Interest rate swaps
are accounted for on an accruals basis

Net investment hedge
Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for in the
same way as cash flow hedges

Gans or losses on the qualtfying part of net investment hedges are
recogruised n other comprehensive iIncome together with the gains and
losses on the underlying net investment The meffectve portion of such
gans and losses 15 recognised 1n the Income Statement immediately

Changes in the fair value of the denvative financial instruments that do
not quabify for hedge accounting are recognised n the income Statement
as they arnise

Gains and losses accumulated 1n equity are transferred to the Income
Statement when the foreign operation 15 partially dispesed of or sold

Liabiirties in respect of put option agreements

Liabilities for put options over the remaining minority Interests in
subsidiaries are recorded in the Statement of Financial Pasition at their
estimated discounted present value These discounts are unwound and
charged to the Income Statement as notional interest over the peried up
to the date of the potenual future payment
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements continued

1 Accounting policies continued

Taxation

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax Tax 1s
recogrised in the Income Statement, except to the extent that it relates
to items recogrised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity

Current tax, including UK corporation tax and farergn tax, 1s provided at
amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using the tax rates and laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date

Deferred 1axation s calcufated under the provisions of IAS 12 ‘Income
tax’ and 15 recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and habdities in the accounts and the corresponding tax bases
used 1n the computation of taxable proft, and 15 accounted for using
the balance sheet liability method Deferred tax habilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that 1t 1s probable that taxable profits will be
avatlable against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised
No provision 15 made for temporary differences on unremitted earnings
of foreign subsidianies or associates where the group has control and the
reversal of the temporary difference 1s not foreseeable

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets s reviewed at each balance
sheet date and reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to alfow all or part of the asset
to be recovered

Deferred tax Is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
perod when the hability 1s settled or the asset 1s realised based on tax rates
and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date Deferred tax is charged or credited in the Income Statement,
except when 1t relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, In
which case the deferred tax 15 also dealt with in equity

Deferred tax assets and lhabiliies are offset when there 15 a legally
enforceable night to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxaton
authonty and the group intends to settle its current assets and habthtes
on a net basis

Provisions

A provision is recogrised in the balance sheet when the group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it 1s
probable that economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
If matenal, prowisions are determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows at a pre tax rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and where appropriate, the nisks specific to the
hability
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Pensions

Contnbutions to pension schemes in respect of current and past service,
ex-gratia pensions, and cost of living adjustments to existing pensions are
based on the advice of independent actuanes

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan 15 a pension plan under which the group pays
fixed contributions Into a separate non-group related entity Payments
to the Euromaney Pension Plan and the Metal Bulletin Group Perscnal
Pension Plan, both defined contribution pension schemes, are charged as
an expense as they fall due

The group also participates in the Harmsworth Pension Scheme, a defined
benefit pensian scheme which 1s operated by Daily Mail and General Trust
plc As there 1s no contractual agreement or stated policy for charging the
net defined benefit cost for the plan as a whole to the indwvidual entities,
the group recognises an expense equal to Its contributions payable n
the penod and does not recognise any unfunded liabibty of this pension
scheme on 1ts balance sheet In other words, this scheme is treated as a
defined contribution plan

Defined benefit plans

Defined benefit plans define an amount of pension benefit that an
employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or more
factors such as age, years of service and compensation

The group operates the Metal Bulleun Pension Scheme, a defined benefit
scheme The present value of providing benefits i1s deterruined by triennial
valuations using the attained age method, with actuanal valuations
betng carrned out at each balance sheet date Actuanal gamns and losses
are recogrised In full in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the
period in which they occur The retrement benefit obligation recognised
in the Statement of Financial Position represents the present value of the
defined benefit obhigation as adjusted for unrecognised past service cost,
and as reduced by the far value of scheme assets

Share-based payments

The group makes share-based payments to certain employees which are
equity and cash-settled These payments are measured at therr estimated
far value at the date of grant calculated using an appropnate option
pricing model The fair value determined at the grant date 1s expensed on
a straight-hne basis over the vesting penod, based on the estimate of the
number of shares that will eventually vest At the penod end the vesung
assumptions are revisited and the charge associated with the farr value of
these options updated For cash-settled share-based payments a lability
equal to the portion of the services received 15 recognised at the current
farr value as deterrmined at each balance sheet date
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1 Accounting policies continued

Revenue

Revenue represents income from advertising, subscriptions, sponsorship
and delegate fees, net of value added tax

®  Advertising revenues are recognised In the Income Statement on the
date of publcation

®  Subscription revenues are recognised in the Income Statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the subscniption

o Sponsorship and delegate revenues are recognised in the Income
Statement over the period the event s run

Revenues invoiced but relating to future periods are deferred and treated
as deferred income in the Statement of Financial Position

Leased assets

Leases in which a significant portion of the nsks and rewards of ownership
are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases Operating
lease rentals are charged to the Income Statement on a straight-line basis
as allowed by IAS 17 Leases

Dividends

Dividends are recognised as a liability in the period in which they are
approved by the company s shareholders Intenm dividends are recorded
in the penod in which they are paid

Own shares held by Employees’ Share Ownership Trust
Transactions of the group-sponsored trust are included in the group
financial statements In particular, the trust's holdings of shares in the
company are debited direct 1o equity

Earnings per share

The earnings per share and diluted earnings per share calculations follow
the provisions of 1AS 33 ‘Earnings per share’ The diluted earnings per
share figure 1s calculated by adjusting for the dilution effect of the exercise
of alt ordinary share options, SAYE options and the Capitat Appreciation
Plan options granted by the company, but excluding the ordinary shares
held by the Euromoney Employees’ Share Ownership Trust

Exceptional 1tems

Exceptional itemns are itemns of income or expense considered by the directors,
erther individually or if of a similar type in aggregate, as being either material
or significant and which require additional disclosure (n order to provide an
indication of the underlying trading performance of the group

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the board and executive committee members who
are respansible for strategic decisions, allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments

2 Key judgemental areas adopted in preparing these
financial statements

The group prepares its group financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS}, the application of which
often requires judgements to be made by management when formulating
the groups financial position and results Under [FRS, the directors are
required to adopl those accounting policies most appropnate to the
group’s arcumstances for the purpose of presenting farly the group's
financial position, financial performance and cash flows

In determiming and applying accounting policies, judgement 15 often
required in respect of items where the choice of specific pelicy, accounting
estimate or assumption to be followed could matenally affect the reported
results or net asset position of the group shouid it later be determined that
a different chaice would have been more appropnate

Management considers the accounting estimates and assumphions discussed
below 10 be 1ts key judgemental areas and, accordingly, prowvides an
explanation of each below Management has discussed its criticai accounting
estrmates and assoiated disclosures with the group s audit committee

The discussion below should also be read in conjunction with the group's
disclosure of IFRS accounting policies, which 15 provided in note 1

Acquisitions

The purchase consideration for the acquisition of a subsidiary or business
15 allocated over the net farr value of identifiable assets, liabilites and
contingent labiiities acquired

Fair value

Determining the fax value of assets, habilittes and contingent habilities
acquired requires management’s judgement and often involves the use of
significant estimates and assumptions including assumptions with respect
to future cash flows, recoverability of assets, and unprovided habiliies and
commitments particularly in relation to tax and VAT

Intangible assets

The group makes an assessment of the far value of intangible assets
ansing on acquisitions An intangible asset will be recognised as long as
the asset 1s separable or anses from conteactual or other legal nghts, and
1ts fair value can be measured refliably

The measurement of the fair value of intangible assets acquired requires
significant management judgement particularly in relation 1o the expected
future cash flows from the acquired marketing databases (which are
generally based on managements estimate of marketing response
rates), customer relationships, trademarks, brands, and repeat and
well established events At September 30 2012 the net book vatue of
intangible assets was £135 2 million (2012 £152 8 million)
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements ontinued

2 Key judgemental areas adopted in preparing these
financial statements continued

Goodwill

Goadwill 15 impaired where the carrying value of goodwill 15 higher than
the net present value of future cash flows of those cash generating units to
which it relates Key areas of judgement in calculating the net present value
are the forecast cash flows, the long-term growth rate of the apphcable
businesses and the discount rate appled to those cash flows Goodwill
held on the Statement of Financial Position at Septermnber 30 2012 was
£333 1 milhon {2011 £336 6 mdlion)

Deferred constderation

The group often pays for a portion of the equity acquired at a future date
This deferred consideration i1s contingent on the future resuits of the entity
acquired and applicable payment multiphers dependent on those results
The initial amount of the deferred consideration 1s recognised as a hability
in the Statement of Financial Pesiion Each period end management
reassess the amount expected to be paid and any changes to the initial
amount are recognised as a finance income or expense In the Income
Statement Significant management judgement is required to determine
the amount of deferred consideration that is likely to be pard, particularly
in relation to the future profitability of the acquired business

Acquisition option commitments

The group 1s party to a number of put and call options over the remaining
non-controlling interests in some of s subsidiaries IAS 39 ‘Financial
Instruments Recogmition and Measurement’ requires the discounted
present value of these acquisition option commitments to be recognised
as a hability on the Statement of Ftnancial Position with a corresponding
decrease in reserves The discounts are unwound as a notional interest
charge to the Income Statement Key areas of judgement in calculating
the discounted present value of the options are the expected future cash
flows and earnings of the business the period remaining until the option
1s exercised and the discount rate At September 30 2012 the discounted
present value of these acquisition aption commitments was £7 9 million
(2011 £11 0 milion)

Share-based payments

The group makes long-term incentve payments to certan employees
These payments are measured at their estimated fair value at the date of
grant, calculated using an appropriate option pricing model The far value
determined al the grant date 15 expensed on a straight-line basis over the
expected vesting period, based on the estimate of the number of shares
that will eventually vest The key assumptions used i calculating the farr
value of the options are the discount rate, the group's share price volatility,
dvidend yield, risk {ree rate of return, and expected option hives
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These assumphons are set out in note 24 Management regularly perform
a true-up of the estimate of the number of shares that are expected to
vest, which 1s dependent on the antiipated number of leavers

The directors regularly reassess the expected vesting penod A plan that
vests earher than oniginally estimated results in an acceleraton of the far
value expense of the plan recogmised in the Income Statement at the time
the reassessment occurs Equally, a plan that vests later than previously
estimated results In a credit to the Income Statement at the date of
reassessment

The charge for long-term icentwe payments for the year ended
Septernber 30 201215 £6 3 milhon (2011 £16 1 million)

Defined benefit pension scheme

The surplus or deficit in the defined benefit pension scheme that 1s
recognised through the Statement of Comprehensive Income 15 subject
10 a number of assumptions and uncertainties The calculated labilities of
the scheme are based on assumptions regarding salary increases inflation
rates, discount rates, the long-term expected return on the scheme’s assets
and member longevity Detalls of the assumptions used are shown in note
27 Such assumptions are based on actuanal advice and are benchmarked
against similar pension schemes

Taxation

The group’s tax charge on ordinary activities 1s the sum of the total
current and deferred tax charges The calculation of the groups total
tax charge necessarly involves a degree of estmation and judgement i
respect of certain items whose tax treatment cannot be finally determined
until resolution has been reached with the relevant tax authority or, as
appropniate, through a formal legal process The final resolution of some
of these items may give nise to matenal profit and loss andfor cash flow
variances

The group 15 a mult-national group with tax affairs in many gecgraphical
locations  This inherently leads to a higher than usual complexty 1o the
groups tax structure and makes the degree of estimation and judgement
more challenging The resolution of ssues 15 not always within the control
of the group and 1t 1s often dependent on the efficiency of the legislative
processes :n the relevant taxing junsdictions (n which the group operates
issues can, and often do, take many years 1o resolve Payments in respect
of tax habilities for an accounting period result from payments on account
and on the final resolution of open items As a result there can be
substantial differences between the tax charge in the Income Statement
and tax payments
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2 Key judgemental areas adopted in preparing these
finanaal statements continued

The group has certain significant open items in several tax jurisdictions
and as a result the amounts recognised in the group finangal statements
in respect of these items are derved from the groups best estmation
and judgement, as descnbed above However, the inherent uncertainty
regarding the outcome of these items means eventual resoluticn could
differ from the accounting estimates and therefore affect the group’s
results and cash flows

Recognition of deferred tax assets

The recogniion of net deferred 1ax assets ts based upon whether t 1s
probable that suficient and suitable taxable profits will be avalable n
the future, against which the reversal of temporary differences can be
deducted Recognition, therefore, involves judgement regarding the
future financial performance of the particular legal entity or tax group n
which the deferred tax asset has been recognised

Histonical differences between forecast and actual taxable profits have not
resulted in matenal adjustments to the recognition of deferred tax assets
Al September 30 2012, the group had a deferred tax asset of £7 3 millkon
(2011 £13 2 milhion}

Treasury

Interest rate exposure

tnterest rate swaps are used to manage the group’s exposure to fluctuations
InInterest rates on its floating rate borrowings The matunty profile of
these derwvatives 1s matched with the expected future debt profile of the
group The group's poficy Is to fix the interest rates on approximately 80%
of s term debt looking forward over five years The expected future debt
profile of the group 15 based on esumates of both timings and size of
future as yet unknown, acquisitions offset by an estimate of the cash
generated by the group over a five year period If management matenally
underestimate the group’s future debt profile this would lead to too few
interest rate instruments being in place and the group more exposed to
swings in interest rates An overestimate of the group’s future debt profile
would lead to associated costs in unwinding the excess interest rate
instruments At September 30 2012, the fair value of the group’s interest
rate swaps was a hability of £0 6 million (2011 £2 6 milhon)

Forward contracts

The group 1s exposed to foreign exchange risk in the form of transactionsin
fareign currencres entered into by group companies and by the translation
of the results of forewgn subsidianies into sterling for reporting purposes

The group does not hedge the translation of the results of foreign
subsidianies, conseguently, fluctuations i the value of sterling versus
foreign currencies could matenally affect the amount of these items in the
conselidated financial statements, even If their values have not changed
In their onginal currency The group does endeavour to maich foreign
currency borrowings to investments in arder to prowide a natural hedge
for the translation of the net assets of overseas subsidiaries

Subsidianes normally do not hedge transactions in foretgn currencies into
the functional currency of their own operations However, at a group level
a senes of US dollar and Euro forward contracts is put i place up to 18
months forward partially to hedge its US dollar and Euro denorminated
revenues into stering The timing and value of these forward contracts (s
based on managements’ estimate of its future US dollar and Eurc revenues
over an 18 month period If management matenally underestimate the
group’s future US dollar or Euro revenues this would lead to too few
forward contracts being in place and the group being more exposed 10
swings in US dollar and Euro to sterling exchange rates An overestimate
of the group’s US dollar or Eura revenues would lead to associated costs
In unwinding the excess forward contracts At September 30 2012, the
farr value of the group’s forward contracts was a net asset of £2 8 million
(2011 £4 3 midlion hability)

Details of the financial instruments used are set out In note 19 to the
accounts
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements continued

3 Segmental analysis

Segrmental information 1s presented In respect of the group’s busmess divisions and refiects the group’s management and internal reporting structure
The group Is organised into five business divisions Financral pubhishing, Business publishing, Training, Conferences and seminars, and Research and
data Financial publishing and Business publishing consist primanily of advertising and subscription revenue The Traning division consists pnmarily of
delegate revenue Conferences and seminars consists af both sponsarshup incame and defegate revenue Research and data consists of subscrption
revenue A breakdown of the group’s revenue by type 15 set cut below

Analysis of the group s three main geographical areas s also set out to provide additional information on the trading performance of the businesses

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates and shown in the eliminations columns below

United Kingdom  North America Rest of World Eltminations Total

2012 2011 2012 201 2012 2011 2012 201 2012 201
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Revenue

by dvision and source

Financial publishing 48,077 50,235 31,925 35970 2487 2,403 (5400) (4,824) 77,089 83,784
Business publishing 46,027 43,118 18,924 16,397 1,879 1,702 (2,185) {1725) 64,645 59,492
Traiming 20,492 19,670 7,584 7,854 3,317 5,264 (181) (250) 31,212 32,538
Conferences and seminars 38,418 37,752 42,778 40901 11181 7,680 (76) (87) 92,301 86,246
Research and data 17,079 15341 B7,554 63,822 25,772 25,203 (120) (47) 130,285 104,319
Sold/closed businesses - - - - - 534 - - - 534
Corporate revenue 5 6 - - - 6 {5) (12) - -
Foreign exchange losses on forward

cantracts (1,388) (3,771) - - - - - - {1,388) (3,771)
Total revenue 168,710 162,351 188,765 164,944 44,636 42,792 {7.967) (6,945) 394,144 363,142
Investment income (note 8} 3 12 4 4 146 158 - - 153 174

Total revenue and investment income 168,713 162,363 188,769 164,948 44,782 42,950 (7.967) (6,945) 394,297 363,316

United Kingdom North America Rest of World Total

2012 20M1 2012 2011 2012 201 2012 201
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £0C0

Revenue

by type and destination

Subscriptions 33,685 30,207 99,455 78,870 66,588 61,890 199,728 170,967
Advertising 8,303 9,259 22,963 24,167 27,091 29,228 58,357 62,654
Sponsorship 6,605 8,797 19,833 18,962 21,160 21055 47,598 48814
Delegates 7,085 9,254 20,833 20,066 52,227 45689 80,145 75,009
Other 2,025 1,691 4,736 4,242 2,943 3,002 g,704 8,935
Sold/closed businesses - - - - - 534 - 534
Foreign exchange losses on forward contracts {1,388} {3,771) - - - - {1,388) (3,771)
Total revenue 56,315 55437 167,820 146,307 170,009 161,398 394,144 363,142
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3 Segmental analysis continued

United Kingdom  North Amenca Rest of World Total

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Operating profit!
by diviston and source
Financial pubhshing 17,800 19,613 6,451 BQ73 600 S08 24,85% 28,194
Business publishing 16,768 17,233 7.714 5,799 16 340 24,498 23,372
Training 5.285 4,887 1,288 1,335 449 1631 7,022 7,853
Conferences and seminars 12,652 12,626 13,328 12202 3,067 1,733 29,047 26,561
Research and data 9,177 8,915 40,403 28,325 5,805 5,236 55,385 42,476
Sold/closed businesses - - - 1 {40) (162) (40} (161)
Unaliocated corporate costs (20,789) (17,676) (1,157) (1,152) {642) {500) (22,588) (19,328)
Operating profit before acquired intangible amortisation,
long-term incentive expense and exceptional items 40,893 45,598 68,027 54,583 9,255 8,786 118,175 108,967
Acguired intangible amortisation? (2,986) (3,259 (11,681) (8,441} (115) (521) (14,782} (12,221)
Long-term ncentive expense (1,796} (5,284 (3,705) {3,897) (800) (310  (6,301) (9,491)
Accelerated long-term incentive expense - {3604 - {2,781} - (218) - (6,603}
Exceptional items (note 5} (49) (120} (905) (2,574) {663) (601)  (1,617) (3,295)
Operating profit before assooates 36,062 33331 51,736 36,8930 1,677 7,136 95,475 77,357

Share of results in associates
Finance income {note 8}
Finance expense (note 8)
Profit before tax

Tax expense {note 9}

Profit after tax

459 408
4,475 1,761

(8,041) (11,329)

92,368 68,197

(22,528) {22,527}
69.840 45,670

1 Operating profit before acquired intangible amortisation, long-term incentive expense and exceptional items (refer to the appendix to the Chairman’s Statement}
2 Acquired intangible amortisation represents amortisation of acquesition related non-goodwall assets such as trademarks and brands customer relationships and databases

{note 12)

Acquired intangtble Long-term

Depreciation and

amortisation incentive expense Exceptional items amartisation
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
£000 E0CQ £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Other segmental information
by dwvision
Financial publishing - 47) (797)  (3,291) 18 - (10) (60}
Business pubhishing (2,683) (2817) (940) (1,758) - - {15y {2m
Trasmng - - (295} (1,134) - - (16) {19}
Conferences and seminars (461) (354) (1,492} (4,202) (94} - (52} (49)
Research and data (11,537) (8,875 (1,742) (3,058} (1,541) {(2979) (1,491} (854)
Sold/closed businesses - - - - - (601} - (2)
Unallocated corporate costs (121} (128} (1,035) (2,652} - 285  (2,163) (1,948)
(14,782} (12221 (6,301} (16,0950 (1,617} (3295 (3.747) (2952}
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements ontinued

3 Segmental analysis continued
United Kingdom North America Rest of World Total

2012 201 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 201
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Non-current assets {excluding financiat instruments
and deferred tax assets)

by location

Goodwill 91,555 91,555 237,005 244,604 4,505 473 333,065 336,632
QOther intangible assets 32,688 35,638 102,223 117486 1,332 286 136,243 153410
Investments 735 - - - - - 735 -
Property, plant and equipment 13,716 14,419 3,309 4,697 957 1,274 17,982 20,390
Non-current assets 138,694 141,612 342,537 366,787 6,794 2,033 488,025 510,432
Capital expendsture by location (431) {512) (810) (639) (424} (961) (1,665) (2,112)

The group has taken advantage of paragraph 23 of IFRS 8 ‘Operating segments' and does not prowde segmental analysis of net assets as this
information 1s not used by the directors in operational decision making or monitoring of the businesses performance

4 Operating profit

2012 20Mm

£000 £000
Revenue 394,144 353,142
Cost of sales (98,308) (94 881)
Gross profit 295,826 268,261
Distribution costs {4,280) (4,025)
Admenistrative expenses - {196,081) (186,879)
Operating profit before associates 95,475 77,357

Administrative expenses include an acquisition credit of £205,000 (2011 acquisition cost of £1,012,000), an intangible asset impairment of £mil (2011
£120,000} and restructunng and other exceptional costs of £1,822,000 {2011 £2,163,000) (note 5)
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4 Operating profit continued

Operating profit 1s stated after charging/{crediting)

Staff costs (note 7)
Intangible amortisation
Acquired intangible amortisation
Licences and software
Intangible asset impairment {note 5)
Depreciation of property plant and equipment
Auditor s rernuneration
Group audit
Assurance services
Non-audit
Property operating lease rentals
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Restructuring and other exceptional costs (note S}
Acquisition {credity/costs (note 5)
Foreign exchange loss/(gain}

Audit and non-audit services relate to

Group audit
Fees payable for the audit of the company’s annual accounts
Fees payable for other services to the group
Audit of subsidianies pursuant to local legistation
Audit services provided to all group companies

Assurance services
Interim review

Non-audit services
Tax services

Other services

Total group auditor's remuneration

2012 2011
£000 £000
159,305 157,572
14,782 12,221
339 302
- 120
3,408 2,651
779 761
95 85
41 55
6,405 6,276
53 I
1,822 2,163
{205) 1,012
524 (1,196)
2012 2011
£000 £000
447 509
332 252
779 761
95 85
28 51
13 4
41 55
915 901

75

Nates to the Consolidated Finanaal Statements

Our Governance Our Performance

Group Accounts

Company Accounts



Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2012
www euromoneyplc com

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements continued

5 Exceptional items

Exceptional items are items of ncome or expense considered by the directors, aither indwidually or if of a similar type in aggregate, as being erther
matenial or signif:cant and which require additionat disclosure in order 1o provide an indication of the underlying rading performance of the group

2012 2011

£000 £000
Acquisition creditfcosts) 205 (1,012}
Intangible asset impairment (note 12) - (120)
Restructuring and other exceptional costs {1,822} (2,163}
{1,617} (3,295}

In 2012 the group recognised an exceptional expense of £1,617,000 This comprised an exceptional restructuring charge of £1 822,000 following the
reorganisation of certain group functions, and acquisition legal costs of £94,000 in connection with the acquisition of Global Grain offset by a credit of
£299,000 follow:ng the release of previously sccrued costs in relation to the acquisition of Ned Dawis Research  The group s tax charge incfudes a related
tax credit of £456,000 The exceptional restructuring charge of £1,822,000 includes £1,564,000 recogrised 1n relation to the termsnation benefits

For the year ended September 30 2011, the group recognised costs of £1,012,000 relating to the acquisition of Ned Dawvis Research and exceptional
restructuring and other costs of £2,163 000 In July 2011, the group purchased the Coaitrans publishing brand for £120,000 to supplement the existing
Coaltrans conference brand The group did not plan to publish under the brand and as such immediately impaired the refated intangible asset The
group’s tax charge included a related tax credit of £312,000

6 Additional accelerated long-term incentive expense

In 2011 the group recognised an additional accelerated long-term mcentive expense of £6,603,000 The CAP 2010 adjusted pre-tax profit* target of
£100 million was achieved in financial year 2011, two years earler than expected Following modification, the internal rules of the plan prevent the
awards vesting to employees more than one year early, 50 although the primary condition had been achieved the award pool was to be allocated to
holders of awards based an the profits achieved in financial year 2012 (See Diractors’ Rermuneration Report for further information) However, despite
the awards nct vesting in February 2012, IFRS 2 'Share-based payments’ required the group to accelerate recognition of the CAP 2010 accounting
charge as f the awards vested in February 2012 The total charge over the life of the scheme remains unchanged at £30 million

* Profit before tax excluding acquired intangible amortisation, CAF 2010 element of long-term incentive expense exceptional items profits from significant acquistions, net
movements 1n acqursition option commitments values and imputed interest on acquisition option commetments as set out i the income Statement note 5 and note 8
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7 Staff costs
(1) Number of staff (including directors and temporary staff)

2012 2011
Average Average
By business segment
Financial publishing 351 349
Business publishing 262 243
Traimng 123 122
Conferences and seminars 250 250
Research and data 890 845
Central 387 390
2,263 2,199
2012 2011
Average Average
By geographical location
United Kingdem 806 793
North America 751 663
Rest of world 706 743
2,263 2,199
{u) 5taff costs (Including directors and temporary staff}
2012 2011
£000 £000
Salaries wages and incentives 140,203 129,523
Social secunty costs 10,436 9,713
Pension contributions 2,365 2,243
Long-term incentive expense 6,301 16,093
159,305 157,572

Details of directors’ remuneration has been disclosed in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on page 47
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements continued

8 Finance income and expense

2012 2011
£000 £000
Finance income
Interest income
interest recevable from DMGT group undertakings 18 136
interest recewvable from short-term investments 153 174
Expected return on pension scheme assets 1,329 1,451
Net movemments in acquisition option cemmitment values (note 25) 2.940 -
Movement in acquisiion deferred consideration 35 -
4,475 1,761
Finance expense
Interest expense
Interest payable on committed borrowings (4,728) (7,007}
Interest payable to DMGT group undertakings - (25)
Interest payable on loan notes 9 {15)
Interest on pension scheme habilities {1,314) (1,290}
Net movements In acguisition option commitment values (note 25) - (358)
Imputed interest on acquisiion option commitments {note 25) 977) (181
Movement in acquisition deferred consideration - {1,829}
Interest on tax underpaid (958) (317)
Fair value fosses on financial instruments
Inaffectiveness of interest rate swaps and forward contracts (55) (307)
(8,041) (11 329)
Net finance costs (3,566) {9,568}
2012 2011
£000 £000
Reconcihation of net finance costs in Income Statement to adjusted net finance costs
Total net finance costs in Income Statement (3.566) (9,568)
Add back
Net movements in acquisition option commitment values (2,940) 358
Imputed interest on acquisition option commitments 977 181
Movement in acquisition deferred consideration {35) 1,829
(1,998} 2,368
Adjusted net finance costs (5.564) (7,200}

The reconaliation of net finance costs in the income Statement has been provided since the directors consider it necessary In order to prowvide an
indicatton of the adjusted net finance costs
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9 Tax on profit on ordinary activities

Current tax expense

UK corporation tax expense

Foreign tax expense

Adjustments in respect of prior years

Deferred tax (credit)/expense
Current year
Adjustments in respect of prior years

Total tax expense in Income Statement
Effective tax rate

The adjusted effective tax rate for the year s set out below

Reconaliation of tax expense in Income Statement to adjusted tax expense
Total tax expense in Income Statement
Add back

Tax on intangible amortisation

Tax on exceptional items

Tax on additional accelerated long-term incentive expense

Tax on US goodwil amortisation
Tax adjustments in respect of prior years

Adjusted tax expense

Adjusted profit before tax (refer to the appendix to the Chairman’s Statement)
Adjusted effective tax rate

2012 201
£000 £000
8,229 4,018
13,243 12,358
1.294 (709)
22,766 15,668
2,759 7,605
(2,997) (746)
{238) 6,858
22,528 22,527
24% 33%
2012 20m
£000 £000
22,528 22527
3.146 4,041
456 312
- 493
5,602 4,845
(6,474) (4,664}
1,703 1,455
831 1,637
23,359 24,164
106,769 92,684
2% 26%

The group presents the above adjusted effective tax rate to help users of this report better understand 11s tax charge In arriving at this rate the group
rernaves the tax effect of tems which are adjusted for in armving at the adjusted profit disclosed in the appendix to the Chairman s Statement However,
the current tax effect of goodwill and intangible stems 15 not removed The group considers that the resulting adjusted effective tax rate 1s more

representative of its tax payable position, as the deferred 1ax effect on the goodwill and intangible items 1s not expected to crystallise

The UK income tax expense s based on a blended rate of the UK statutory rates of corperation tax during the year to September 30 2012 of 25%
(2011 27%) and reflects the reduction in the UK corporation tax rate from 26% to 24% from April 1 2012 and to 23% from Apnl 1 2013 This change
has resulted in a smal} deferred tax credit arnising on the reduction In the carrying value of deferred tax habilities reflecting the anticipated rate of tax at

which those habilities are expected to reverse
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements continued

9 Tax on profit on ordinary activities continued

The actual tax expense for the year s different from 25% of profit before tax for the reasons set out in the following reconcahation

2012 2011

£000 £000

Profit before tax 92,368 68,197
Tox at 25% (2011 27%) 23,092 18,413

Factors affecting tax charge

Different tax rates of subsidiaries operating 10 overseas jurisdictions 3,767 2,021
Associate income reparted net of tax {115} (110}
US state taxes 833 1,116
Goodwill and intangibles 32 {48)
Disallowabte expenditure 1,325 1,001
Other items deductible for tax purposes (3.824) -
Effect of additional accelerated long-term incentive expense - 1,717
Tax impact of consortium refief (861) (354)
Deferred 1ax (credit)/icharge ansing from changes in tax laws (18) 229
Adjustments in respact of pricr years (1,703) {1,458}
Total tax expense for the year 22,528 22,527

The UK government has indicated that it intends to enact a further reduction in the UK corperation tax rate of 1% to 22% by Aprit 1 2014 The directors

expect that the future tax rate changes will reduce the UK deferred tax asset recognised but the actual impact will be dependent on the deferred tax
position at the time

In addition to the amount charged to the Income Statement, the following amounts relating to tax have been directly recognised in other comprehensive
income

2012 2011

£000 £000

Current tax (602) -
Deferred tax 1,329 (1,395)
727 (1,395)
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10 Dividends

Amounts recognisable as distnbutable to equity holders in period
Final dividend for the year ended September 30 2011 of 12 50p (2010 11 75p)
tntenm dividend for year ended September 30 2012 of 7 00p (2011 6 25p)

Employees Share Ownership Trust dividend

Proposed final dvidend for the year ended September 30
Employees’ Share Ownership Trust dividend

2012 2011
£000 £000
15,162 13,928
8,643 7,531
23,805 21,459
(1 an
23,794 21448
18,342 15,156
@ U]
18,333 15,149

The proposed final dvidend of 14 75p (2011 12 50p) 13 subject to approval at the Annual General Meeting on January 31 2013 and has not been

sncluded as a hability in these financial statements in accordance with (tAS 10 “Events after the balance sheet date’

11 Earnings per share

Basic earnings attnbutable to equity holders of the parent
Acguired intang:ble amartisation

Exceptional items

Imputed interest on acquisition optien commitments
Net movement in acquisition option commitment values
Movements in acquisition deferred consideration
Additional accelerated long-term incentive expense

Tax an the above adjustments

Tax on US goodwill amortisation

Tax adjustments in respect of prior years

Adjusted earnings

2012 2011
£000 £000
69,672 45 59
14,782 12,224
1,617 3,285
977 184
{2.940) 358
(35) 1,829

- 6,603
{5.602) (4 848)
6,474 4,664
{1,703) (1,455)
83,242 68 441
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements continued

11 Earmings per share continued

Weighted average number of shares

Shares held by the Employees’ Share Ownership Trust
Weighted average number of shares

Effect of dilutive share options

Diluted weighted average number of shares

Basic earnings per share
gffect of dilutive share options
Diluted earnings per share

Effect of acquired intangible amortisation

Effect of exceptional items

Effect of imputed interest on acquisition aption cammitments
Effect of net movemenis in acquisition option commitment values
Effect of movement in acquisition deferred constderation

Effect of additional acceleraied long-term incentive expense
Effect of tax on the above adjustments

Effect of tax on US goodwill amortisation

Effect of tax adjustments in respect of prior years

Adjusted basic and diluted earnings per share

2012 2012 2011 20Mm
Adjusted Adjusted Adjusted Adjusted
basic dituted basic diluted
earnings earnings earnings earnings
per share per share per share per share
Number Number Number Number
000’s 000's Q00s 000’
122,859 122,859 119,957 119,957
(59) (59) (59 (59)
122,800 122,800 119 898 119,838
3,490 2,214

126,290 122 112

Pence Pence Pence Pence
per share per share per share per share
56 74 5674 3802 3802
{157) {0 68}

5517 3734

1204 1170 1019 1001
132 128 275 270
080 077 01s 015
(2.39) (233) 030 029

{0 03) (0 03) 153 150

- - 581 541

(457} (443) {4 04} (3 98}
527 513 389 382
{1.39) (1.35) (121} (119)

67 79 6591 57 09 56 05

The adjusted diluted earnings per share figure has been disclosed since the directors consider it necessary in order to give an indication of the underlying

trading performance

All of the above earning figures per share relate to continuing operations
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12 Goodwill and other intangibles

Acquired intangible assets

Total
Customer acquired Intangible
Trademarks relation- intangible  Licences & assets in
& brands ships Databases assets software development Goodwill Total
2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012
2012 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost/carrying amount
At October 1 2011 142,324 78,683 9 440 430,447 2761 - 366 395 599,603
Addions - - - - 104 625 - 819
Acquisitions (note 15) 719 553 - 1,272 - - 5,248 6,520
Exchange differences (3,784} (2,133) (269) (6,186} (90} - (9,376) {15.652)
At September 30 2012 139,259 77,103 9.171 225,533 2,865 625 362,267 591,290
Amortisation and impairment
At October 1 2011 41,433 32,4289 3,736 77,598 2,200 - 29,763 109,561
Amortisation charge 7,339 5,761 1,682 14,782 339 - - 15121
Exchange differences (1,292) (618) (156) (2,066} (73) - (561) (2,700)
At September 30 2012 47,480 37,572 5,262 90,314 2,466 - 29,202 121,982
Net book value/carrying
amount at September 30 2012 91,779 39,531 3,909 135,219 399 625 333,065 469,308
Acquired intangible assets
Total
Customer acquired
Trademarks relation- intangible Licences &
& brands ships Databases assets software Goodwill Total
2011 2011 201 2011 2011 2011 201
2011 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost/carrying amount
At October 1 2010 133,399 50933 4,787 189 118 2,445 327016 518,580
Additions 120 - - 120 437 - 557
Acquisitions 7,285 25,984 4,383 37,652 - 34,781 72,433
Disposals - - - - (80) - {80)
Exchange differences 1,520 1,766 270 3,556 (41) 4,598 8,113
At September 30 2011 142,324 78,683 9,440 230,447 2761 366,395 599,603
Amortisation and impairment
At October ¥ 2010 33,645 28043 2,776 64,464 2,011 29,398 95,873
Amaortisation charge 7,217 4,099 905 12,221 302 - 12,523
Impairment losses 120 - - 120 - - 120
Disposals - - - - (80} - (80)
Exchange differences 451 287 55 793 (33} 365 1,125
At September 30 2011 41433 32,429 3,736 77,598 2200 29,763 109,561
Net book valuefcarrying amount at
September 30 2011 100,891 46,254 5,704 152,849 561 336,632 450,042

83

Hotes to the Consohdated Finanaial Statements

Our Governance Our Performance

Group Accounts

Company Accounts



Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2012
WwWwW euromoneyplc com

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements continued

12 Goodwill and other intangibles contrinued
Intangible assets, other than goodwill, have a finite life and are amortised over their expected useful iives at the rates set out In the accounting poticies
in note 1 of this report

The carrying amounts of acquired intangible assets and goodwill by business are as foliows

Acquired intangible assets Goodwill

2012 2m 2012 2011

£000 £000 £000 £000
CEIC 2,456 2,537 13,025 13,501
Internet Securities - - 8,406 8,714
MIS - - 2,550 2,644
Petroleum Economist - - 236 236
Gulf Publishing - - 4,723 4,896
HedgeFund intelligence - - 14,718 14,718
information Management Network 3,199 3,646 29,243 30,313
MAR 44 55 185 192
BCA 62,780 71,770 143,187 148 426
Metal Bulletin publishing businesses 24,590 27,365 52,710 52,710
FOwW - - 196 196
Total Dervatives 2,292 2,729 8,180 8,180
TelCap 2,379 2,549 10,4438 10,448
Benchmark Financials 234 286 456 473
Arete 2,801 2,996 4,794 4,794
NDR 33,346 38,816 35,951 36,182
Global Grain Geneva 1,098 - 4,048 -
Other - - 9 9
Total 135,219 152,849 333,065 336,632

Goodwill acquired in a business combination 15 allocated, at acquisition, to the cash generating units {(businesses) that are expected to benefit from
that business combenation

Durning the year the goodwill in respect of each of the above businesses was tested for impairment 1n accordance with IAS 36 ‘Impairment of assets’
The methodology applied to the value in use calculations, reflecting past experience and external sources of infermation included

forecasts by business based on pre-tax cash flows derived from approved budgets for 2013 Management believe these budgets to be reasonably achievable,
subsequent cash flows for between one and three additional years increased in line with growth expectations of the apphicable business

the pre-tax discount rate of 8 5%, reflecting the companies weighted average cost of capital (WACC), and

long-term nominal growth rate of 3%

)

Certain businesses, after the annual imparrment review required under 1A5 36 had a limited value in use In excess of the carrying value of £1 9 million
For these businesses management has set out below the change in assumptions required, in 1solatign, in order for the estimated carrying value to be
equal or less than the value in use The change in assumptions are summansed as follows

®  Increase In the WACC by 1% point
o  Decrease in the long-term growth rate by 3% points

The result of the change in assumptions of a 3% decrease in growth rates and a 1% increase In WACC would result in an ympairment of £0 3 millon
Management believes that the general market conditions indicate that a decrease in growth rates to 0% or a WACC of 9 5% would be severe
Management will continue to conduct regular reviews to monitor this matter
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13 Property, plant and equipment

2012

Cost

At October 12011
Additions

Disposals

Acquisitions

Exchange differences

At September 30 2012
Depreciation

At October 1 2011
Charge for the year
Disposals

Exchange differences

At September 30 2012
Net book value at September 30 2012

2011

Cost

At October 12010

Additions

Disposals

Acquisitions

Exchange differences

At September 30 2011

Depreciation

At October 1 2010

Charge for the year

Disposals

Exchange differences

At September 30 2011

Net book value at September 30 2011
Net book value at September 30 2010

Freehold Long-term Short-term
land and leasehold leasehold Office
buildings premises premises equipment Total
2012 2072 2012 2012 2072
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
6,447 3,251 15,539 19,603 44,840
- 25 307 1,333 1,665
- - {49} (844) (893)
- (176) - (246} (422)
- (28) (221} (560} (809)
6,447 3,072 15,576 19,286 44,381
283 561 8,309 15 297 24,450
83 13N 1,064 2,130 3,408
- - {49) (789) (838}
- (13} (150) (458) {621)
366 679 9,174 16,180 26,399
6,081 2,393 6,402 3,106 17,982
Freehold Long-term Short-term
land and leasehold leasehold Office
burdings premises premises equipment Total
2011 2011 201 2011 20M
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
6,447 2,729 15,370 17 309 41,855
- 7 198 1907 2,112
- - (76) (698) (774)
- 488 (33 982 1437
- 27 80 103 210
6,447 3,251 15,539 19,603 44,840
200 484 7,359 14,327 22,370
83 73 964 1531 2,651
- - (76) {592) (668)
- 4 62 31 97
283 561 8,309 15,297 24,450
6,164 2 690 7,230 4,306 20,390
6 247 2,245 8,011 2982 19,485

The directors do not consider the market value of freehold land and buildings to be significantly different from its book value
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements continued

14 Investments

Investments Investments
In associated  1n assoclated
undertakings  undertakings

2012 2011

£000 £000
At October 1 - 248
Additions 567 -
Share of profits after tax retained 459 408
Dandends (291) (656)
At September 30 735 -

Assoaated undertakings

The associated undertakings at Septernber 30 2012 were Capital NET Limited, whose pnncipal activity 15 the provision of electronic database services
and GGA Pte Limited whose scle asset 15 Global Gram Asia, a new event for grain industry professionals in the Asia-Pacific region The group has a
48 4% (2011 48 4%) interest in Capital NET Limited and a 50% interest in GGA Pte bimited

Capital NET Limited does not have a cotermingus year end with the group The total assets liatbilities revenues and profit after tax generated by Capital
NET Limited from: its atest available audited accounts at December 31 are set out below

Dec 31 Dec 31

2011 2010

£000 £000

Total assets 603 560

Total habilties (224) (213)

Total revenues 2,035 1,853

Profit after tax 733 568
The total assets, habilties, revenues and profit after tax generated by GGA Pte Limited at September 30 are set out below

Sep 30

2012

£000

Total assets 172

Total habilities (55)

Total revenues 327

Profit after tax 119

Assets availlable for sale

The group has a 50% interest in Capital DATA Limited (Capital DATA} The ordinary share capital of Capital DATA 1s divided into 50 *A’ shares and
50 B’ shares with the group owning the 50 *A’ shares Under the terms of the Articles of Association of Capital DATA, the 'A’ shares held by the
group do not carry entitlement to any share of dividends or other distribution of profits of Caprtal DATA The group does not have the ability to
exercise significant nfluence nor 1s 1t mvaived in the day-to-day runring of Capital DATA As such the investment in Capital DATA 1s accounted for
as an asset avallable-for-sale with a carrying value of £ril (2011 £nil} Under a separate licence agreement the group 15 entitled to 28 2% of Capttal
DATAs revenues being £5,065,000 in the year (2011 £4,543,000) At December 31 2011, based on its latest available audited accounts, Capital
DATA had £515,000 of issued share capital and reserves (December 31 2010 £739,000), and #s profit for the year then ended was £1,026,000
(December 31 2010 £1,064,000)
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14 Investments continued

Details of the company and 1ts principal subsichary undertakings included in these consolidated financial statements at September 30 2012 are as follows

Company

Eurormoney Institutional investor PLC
Direct investments

Euromoney Institutional investor (Jersey) Limited
Fantfoot Limited

Euromoney Canada Limited
Euromaney Canada Finance Limited
Euromoney Jersey Limited

Indirect investments

Adhesion Group SA

BCA Research, In¢

BPR Benchmark Limitada

Carlcroft Limited

CEIC Holdings Limited

Coaltrans Conferences Limited
Dawis, Mendel & Regenstein Inc

El Holdings Inc

Elf US, Inc

Euromoney Canada Limited
Euromoney Charles Limited
Euromoney Consortium Limited
Euromoney Consortium 2 Limited
Euromoney Heldings US, Inc
Euromoney Institutional Investor (Ventures) Limited
Euromoney Partnership LLP
Euromoney (Singapore} Pte Limited
Euromoney Trading Limited
Euromoney Training, In<
Euromoney Inc

EIMN, LLC

Glenprint Limited

Global Commodities Group Sarl
GSCS Benchmarks Limited

Gulf Publishung Company, Inc
HedgeFund Intefl:gence Limited
Institutional Investor LLC

Internet Securities, In¢

Latin Amencan Financial Publications, Inc
Metal Bulletin Holdings LLC

Metal Bulletin Limited

MIS Traiming (UK} Limited

Ned Dawvis Research Inc

Structured Retall Products Limited
TelCap birnited

The Petroleum Economist Limited
Tipalt Limited

Total Dervatewes Limited
Assocates

Capital NET Limited

GGA Pte Limited

All haldings are of ordinary shares

Proportion
held

nfa

100%t
100%
57 2%
100%
100%

100%
100%
99 9%
99 7%
99 9%
99 7%
B4 5%
100%*
100%
42 8%
100%
99 7%
99 7%
100%
100%
100%
100%
99 7%
100%
100%
100%
99 7%
100%
99 7%
100%
99 7%
100%
99 9%
100%
100%
99 7%
100%
84 5%
98 5%
99 7%
99 7%
100%
99 7%

48 4%
50%

Principal activity
and operation

Investment holding company

Publishing

Investment holding company
Investment holding company
Investment holding company
Investment holding company

Conventions

Information services
Information senvices
Publishing

Information services
Conferences

Information services
Investment holding company
Investrment holding company
Investment holding company
Investment holding company
Investment helding company
Investment holding company
Investment holding company
Investment holding company
Investment holding company
Training

Publishing, traiming and events
Training

Training

Conferences

Publishing

Conferences

Publishing

Publishing

Publishing

Publishing

Infarmation services
Publishing

lnvestment holding company
Pubhshing

Training

Information services
Information services
Publishing

Publishing

Property holding

Publishing

Databases
Conferences

In addrtion 1o the above, the group has a small number of branches outside the United Kingdom

. 100% preference shares held in additon

t Euromoney Institutional Investor {Jersey) Limited's prinapal country of operation 1s Heng Kong

Country of
Incorporation

United Kingdom

Jersey
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
tnited Kingdom
Jersey

France

Canada
Cotumbia
tnited Kingdom
Hong Kong
United Kingdom

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
us

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Singapore
United Kingdom

United Kingdom
Switzertand
United Kingdom
us

United Kingdom

Untted Kingdom
United Kingdom

us
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom

United Kingdom
Singapore
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements ontinued

15 Acquisitions

Purchase of new business - Global Grain Geneva

On February 29 2012, the group acquired 100% of the equity share capital of Global Commodities Group Sarl, which owns Global Gran Geneva,
the worlds leading event for international grain traders The inital consideration paid was €6,159,000 {£5,134,000) A further net consideration of
€93,000 (£77,000) 15 expected to be paid dependent upon the audited results of the business for the year to February 2013 The acquisition of Global
Grain 15 consistent with the group’s strategy of building fast growing global event businesses The acquisition accounting 1s set out below and 1s
provisional, pending final determinatior: of the fair value of the assets and habilities acquired

Fair value Provisional

Book value adjustments fair value
£000 £000 £000
Net assets
Intangible assets - 1,272 1,272
Cash and cash equivalents 35 - 35
Trade creditors and other payables (31) - {31)
Non-current habilities - {305) {305)
4 967 971
Net assets acquired (100%]} 97
Goodwwill 4,240
Total consideration 5,211
Consideration satisfied by
Cash 5,134
Deferred consideration 77
5,211
Net cash outflow ansing on acquisition
Cash consideration 5,134
Less cash and cash equivalent balances acquired {35}
5,099

Intangible assets represent brands €867,000 (£719,000) and customer relationships €666,000 (£553,000), for which amortisation of £126,000 has
been charged in the period The brands and customer relationships will be amortised over therr useful economic lives of 20 years and three years
respectively

Goodwilt arises from the anticipated profitabiity and future operating synergies from combining the acquired operations with the group The goodwili
recognised 15 not expected to be deductible for income tax purposes

Global Gramn Geneva contributed £nil to the group's revenue and incurred an operating loss of £96,000 and a loss after tax of £96,000 for the penod
between the date of acquisition and September 30 2012 Acquisition related costs of £94,000 were incurred and recognised as an exceptional rtem in
the Income Statement If the above acquisition had been completed on the first day of the financial vear, Global Grarn Geneva would have contributed
£1,062,000 to the groups revenues and £627,000 to the groups profit before tax for the year {excluding the exceptional costs above) The deferred
cansideration 1s dependent on the results of the business for the pencd to December 31 2012 and 15 calculated using discounted cash flows Following
a sensitivity analysis of the farr value of the deferred consideration applying reasonably poss:ble assumptions and a 10% change n expected revenues,
the potential undiscounted amount of all future payments that the group could be required to make under this deferred consideration arrangement 1s
between £nit and £276,000
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15 Acquisitions continued

Purchase of assoaate - Global Gram Asia

Also on February 29 2012, the group acquired 50% of the issued share capital of GGA Pte Limited, whose sole asset 1s Global Grain Asia, a new event
for grain ndustry professionals in the Asia-Pacific region, for €671,000 (£567,000) The group has the option to purchase the remaining 50% equity
holding of GGA Pte Limited in March 2014 and if exercised expects to pay €1,021,000 {£813,000) Under tAS 32 ‘Financial Instruments' this acquisition
option commitment 1s not recorded as a hability i the balance sheet

Fair value and goodwill update - Ned Davis Research (NDR)
In August 2011, the group acquired 85% of the equity share capital of NDR, the US-based prowider of independent financial research to institutional
investors, for an imitial cash consideration of US$112 0 million (£68 S million)

During the year changes have been made to the cash payable following the final working capital catculauion, the cash recewable from non-controlling
nterests, the finalisation of the sellers’ tax habehty, the accounting policy alignment of property, plant and equipment and the recognition of previously
unrecognised tax liabilities Following these true-up adjustments, the refated goodwill, fair value of net assets acquired and consideration have been
finalised as follows

Provisional Final

fair value Change fair value

£000 £000 £000

Fasir value of net assets acquired 33,869 (809) 33,060

Goadwill 34,337 1,008 35,345

Total consideration 68,206 199 68,405
Consideration satisfied by

Cash 68,500 1,151 69,651

Cash recevable from non-controlling snterest (1,390) (438) (1,828)

Deferred consideration 1.096 (514) 582

68,206 199 68,405

The remaining equity interest 1s subject to a put and call option under an earn-out agreement, in two equal instalments, based on the profits of NDR
for the years to December 31 2012 and 2013 The expected payment under this mechanism has decreased from £10,149,000 at September 30 2011
to £7,812,000 at September 30 2012 resulting i a credit to the Income Statement of £2,011,000 and a foreign exchange gain of £326,000 recognised
In reserves

Increase in equity holdings

Internet Securnities, Inc {iS)

There 15 an annual put option agreement oves the sale of 15! shares between the company and the non-controling shareholders of 181 The annual put
option value 1s based on the valuaton of IS| as determined under a methodology provided by an independent financial adviser Under the terms of the
put option agreement consideration caps have been put in place that require the maximum consideration payable to option holders to be capped at an
amount such that the results of any relevant class tests would, at the relevant time, fall below the requirement for shareholder approval

In February 2012, under this put option mechanism, the group purchased 1 12% of the equity share capital of 151 for a cash consideration of
US$1,326 000 (£840,000), increasing the group’s equity shareholding in 151 to 99 92%

Structured Retai! Products Limited {SRF)
In December 2011, the group purchased 1 14% of the equity share capital of SRP from some of 1ts employees for a cash consideration of £34,000
increasing the group's equity shareholding in 5RP t0 98 48%
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements continued

16 Trade and other receivables

2012 201
£000 £000
Amounts falling due within one year
Trade recewvables 54,148 58 835
Less pravision for impairment of trade receivables (6.471) (7,697
Trade receivables ~ net of provision 47,675 51,138
Amounts owed by DMGT group undertakings 2,344 2,221
Other debtors 5,560 10,489
Prepayments 6,904 6,061
Accrued Income 3,469 1,508
65,952 71,417

The average credit period on sales of goods and services 1s 30 days Trade recewvables beyond 60 days overdue are provided for based on estimated
irrecoverable amounts from the sale of goods and services determined by reference to past default experience

Credit terms for customers are determined in indnedual terntonies Concentration of credit nisk with respect to trade recevables 1s imited due to the
group’s customer base being large and diverse Due to this, management believe there is no further credit nsk provision required it excess of the normal
provision for doubtfui recevables There are no customers who represent more than 5% of the total balance of trade recevables

As at September 30 2012, trade receivables of £24,263,000 (2011 £29,150,000) were not yet due

As of September 30 2012, trade recevables of £15,469,000 (2011 £20,111,000) were past due for which the group has not provided as there has
been no significant change in their credit quahity and the amounts are still considered recoverable These relate to a number of independent custorers
for whom there 15 no recent history of default The average age of these recevables 1s 77 days (2011 67 days) The group does not hold any collateral
over these balances The ageing of these trade recevables is as follows

2012 2011

£000 £000

Past due less than a month 7.156 11,956
Past due more than a month but less than two months 3,348 3,894
Past due more than two months but less than three months 1,985 2,168
Past due more than three months 2,980 2,063
15,469 20,111

As at September 30 2012, trade recevables of £14,414,000 (2011 £9,574,000) were imparred and partially prowded for The amount of the provision
was £6,471,000 (2011 £7,697,000} It was assessed that a portion of the recevables s expected to be recovered The ageing of these recevables 1s
as follows

2012 2011

£000 £000

Past due less than a month 7.713 116
Past due more than a month but less than two months 2,857 3,125
Past due more than two months but less than three months 1,123 1,373
Past due more than three months 2,721 4 960
14,414 9,574
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16 Trade and other recewvables continued

Maovements on the group provision for impairment of trade recevables are as follows

2012 2011

£000 £000
At October 1 {7,697) (B,036)
Impairment osses recognised (3.271) (3,070
Impairment losses reversed 3,266 2,668
Amounts wntten off as uncollectible 1,153 765
Exchange differences 78 {24)
At September 30 (6,471) (7,697)

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the group considers any change in the credit quality of the trade recewable from the date
credit was initialy granted up to the reporting date The concentration of credit nisk 15 krmited due to the customer base being large and unrelated
Accordingly, the directors believe that there 1s no further credit nsk prowsion required In excess of the allowance for doubtful debts

The aflowance for doubtful debts does not include mdividually imparwed trade recevables which have been placed under hquidation as these trade
receivables are written off directly 10 the Income Statement

17 Trade and other payables

2012 201
£000 £000
Trade creditors 4,170 5,558
Amounts owed to DMGT group undertakings 3 51
Other creditors 23,527 24,361
27,700 29,970

The directors consider the carrying amounts of trade and other payables approximate their fair values

18 Deferred income

2012 2011
£000 £000
Deferred subscnption income 81,020 80,507
Other deferred income 24,086 25,000
105,106 105,507

91

QOur Governance Our Performance

Group Accounts

Notes to the Consolidated Financal Statements

Company Accounts



Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2012
www euromoneyplc com

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements continued

19 Finanaal instruments and nisk management
Derivative financial instruments
The dervative financial assets/(habilities) at September 30 comprised

2012 2011
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabiities
£000 £000 £000 £000Q
Current

Interest rate swaps — fair value through profit and loss - {156) - -
Interest rate swaps — cash flow hedge - (283) - {1,251)
Forward foreign exchange contracts - fair value through profit and loss - - - (332
Forward foreign exchange contracts - cash flow hedge 2,715 (217} 1,126 (4 692)
2,715 (656) 1,126 {6,275)

Non-current
Interest rate swaps — fair value through profit and loss - (206) - (307)
Interest rate swaps - cash flow hedge - - - {1,008)
Forward foreign exchange contracts — cash flow hedge 296 (35) 218 (655)
296 {241) 218 (1 970)
3,011 (897} 1,344 (8,245}

Financial nsk management objectives

The groups activities expase 1t to a variely of finanoal nisks market risk (ncluding currency nisk fair value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk
and price nsk), credit nisk and hquidity nsk ansing in the normal course of business Derivative financial instruments are used 1o manage exposures to
fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates but are not employed for speculative purposes

Full detaills of the objectives, policies and strategies pursued by the group in relation to financial nsk management are set out on page 65 of the
accounting pehicies and page 71 of the key jJudgemental areas tn summary, the group’s tax and treasury committee normally meets twice a year and
15 responsible for recommending policy to the board The group’s treasury policies are directed 10 gwving greater certainty of future costs and revenues
and ensurning that the group has adequate liquidity for working capitat and debt capacity for funding acquisitions

The treasury department does not act as a profit centre, nor does it undertake any speculative trading actwity and 1t operates within palicies and
pracedures approved by the board

Interest rate swaps are used to manage the group s exposure to fluctuations in interest rates on its floating rate borrowangs Further details are set out
in the interest rate sisk section on page 96

Forward contracts are used to manage the group s exposure to fluctuations in exchange rate movements Further details are set out in the foreign
exchange rate nsk section {page 94)

Capital risk management
The group manages tts capital to ensure that entities in the group will be able to continue as a gomng cancern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimssation of the debt and eguity balance The groups overall strategy remains unchanged from 2011

The capital structure of the group consists of debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed in note 20, cash and cash equivalents and equity attnbutable
to equity holders of the parent, compnsing share capital, reserves and retained earnings as disclosed in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity
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19 Financial instruments and risk management continued

Net debt to EBITDA*® ratio

The group’s tax and treasury committee reviews the group's capital structure at least twice a year As part of the debt covenants under the loan faciliy
provided by Dally Mall and General Trust plc (DMGT), the board has to ensure that net debt to a rolling 12 month EBITDA* does not exceed four times
The group expects to be abte to remain within these hmits during the hfe of the facility The net debt to EBITDA covenant 1s defined to allow the rate
used in the translation of US dollar EBITDA, including hedging contracts, to be used also i the calculation of net debt, thereby removing any distortion
to the covenant from increases in net debt due to short-term movements in the US dollar

The net debt to EBITDA* ratio at September 30 15 as follows

2012 2011

£000 £000
Committed loan facility (at weighted average exchange rate) (43,127} (123 022)
Loan notes {1,228} (1617)
Total debt (44,355) (124,639)
Cash and cash equivalents 13,544 12,497
Net debt (30,811) (112 142)
EBITDA™ 116,080 111192
Net debt to EBITDA* ratio 027 101

* EBITDA {Earnings before interest tax, depreciation amortisation) = adjusted operating profit before depreciation and amortisation of licences and software adjusted
for the teming impact of acquisitions and disposals

Categories of financal instruments
The groups financial assets and liabilities at September 30 are as follows

2012 2011
£000 £000
Financal assets
Denvative instruments in designated hedge accounting relationships 3,011 1,344
Loans and recevables (ncluding cash and cash equivalents) 72,592 79,402
75,603 80,746
Financial habilities
Dernvative instruments - fair value through profit and loss (362} {639}
Dervative instruments in designated hedge accounting relationships {535) (7,606}
Acquisttion aption commitments (note 25) (7,868} {11,001}
Loans and payables (including overdrafts) (140,351) (229,740}

(149,126} (248,936)

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities above are classified as level 2 in the fair value hierarchy other than acquisition option commitments
which are classified as level 3 {(page 100)

1) Market price nsk

Market price risk 1s the possibility that changes in currency exchange rates, interest rates or commodity prices will adversely affect the value of the
group’s financial assets, Irabilities or expected future cash flows The groups pnmary market nsks are interest rate fluctuations and exchange rate
movements Derivatives are used 1o hedge or reduce the nsks of interest rate and exchange rate movements and are not entered into unless such nsks
exist Derivatives used by the group for hedging a particular nisk are not specialised and are generally avallable from numerous sources The fair values
of interest rate swaps, currency options and forward exchange contracts are set out i this note and represent the value for which an asset could be
sold or liability settled between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length transaction calculated using the market rates of interest and exchange
at September 30 2012 The group has no other matenal market price nsks
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements continued

19 Finanaal instruments and risk management continued

Market nisk exposures are measured using sensitivity analysis
There has been no change to the group's exposure to market risks or the manner in which it manages and measures the risks during the year

u) Foreign exchange rate nsk

The group’s principal foreign exchange exposure 1s to US dollar The group generates approximately two-thirds of its revenues in US dollars, including
approximately 30% of the revenues in its UK-based businesses, and approximately 60% of its operating profits are US dollar-denominated The group
15 therefore exposed to foreign exchange risk on the US doliar revenues in its UK businesses, the translation of results of foreign subsidianies and
external loans as well as loans to foreign operations within the group where the dencmination of the lean 1s not In the functional currency of the
lender/borrower

The carrying amounts of the group’s US dollar-denominated monetary assets and monetary lizbihties at the reporting date are as follows

Assets Liabilities
2012 20114 2012 201
£000 £000 £000 £000
US dollar 58,770 84,074 (5,956) (7.967)

Subsidianes normally do not hedge transactions in foreign currencies into the functional currency of their own operations However, at a group level,
a senes of US dollar and Euro forward contracts are put in place to selt forward surplus US dollars and Euros so as to hedge 80% of the group’s UK
based US dollar and Euro revenues for the coming 12 menths and 50% of the group s UK based US dollar and Euro revenues for the subsequent six
months The tming and value of these forward contracts 1s based on management’s estimate of i1s future US dollar and Euro revenues over an 18 month
period and is regularty reviewed and revised with any changes in estimates resufting in either addrtional forward contracts being taken out or existing
cantracts’” maturity dates being moved forward or back If management matenally underestimate the group s future US dollar and Euro denominated
revenues, thrs would lead to too few forward contracts being in place and the group being more exposed 10 swings in US dollar and Euro to sterling
exchange rates An overestimate of the group’s US dollar and Euro denominated revenues would lead to associated costs m unwinding the excess
forward contracts The group also has a significant operation in Canada whose revenues are mainly in US dollars At a group level a series of US dollar
forward contracts 15 put in place up to 18 months forward to hedge the operations Canadian cost base In addiuon, each subsidiary 15 encouraged to
invoice sales in s local functional currency where possible

Forward exchange contracts are gross settled at maturity

The following table details the group’s sensitivity 1o a 10% ncrease and decrease In sterling aganst US dollar A 10% sensitmity has been determined
by the board as the sensitity rate appropnate when reporting an estimated foreign currency nsk internally and represents management s assessment
of a reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates at the reporting date

The sensitivity analysss includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts ther translation at the penod end for a
10% change in foreign currency rates The sensitivity analysis incfudes external loans as well as foans to foreign operations within the group where
the denomination of the loan 15 not in the functional currency of the lender/borrower Where sterhing strengthens 10% against the relevant currency
a positive number below indicates an increase in profit and equity For a 10% weakening of sterling agamst the relevant currency, there would be an
equal and opposite impact on the profit and other equity, and the balances befow would be negative

Impact of 10% strengtheming of sterling against US dollar

2012 20M

£000 £000
Change in profit for the year in iIncome statement (646) (954}
Change mn equity 6,606 6,666
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19 Finanaal instruments and nisk management continued

The decrease in the loss from the sensitivity analysis is due to an increase In the working capital asset postion The fall in profit in equity from
£6,666,000 to £6,606,000 from the sensitivity analysis 15 due to the decrease of the value of the derwvative financal labihities

The group 15 also exposed 1o the translation of the results of its US dollar-denorminated businesses, although the group does not hedge the translation
of these results Consequently, fluctuations in the value of sterling versus other currencres could materially affect the translation of these results in the
consohidated financial statements The group endeavours to match foreign currency borrowings to investments in order to prowide a natural hedge for
the translation of the net assets of overseas subsichanes with the related foreign currency interest cost ansing from these borrowings providing a partal
hedge aganst the translation of foreign currency profits

The change In equity 15 due 1o a 10% change In sterhing aganst US dollars in relation to the translaton of external loans and loans 1o foreign
operations within the group where the denomination of the loan i1s not in the functional currency of the lenderfborrower would result in a change of
£4,105,000 {2011 £6,562,000) However, the change in equity 1s completely offset by the change in value of the foreign operation's net assets from
therr translation into sterling

Forward foreign exchange contracts

It 1s the policy of the group to enter into forward foreign exchange contracts to cover speaific foreign currency payments and receipts A serigs of US
dollar and Euro forward contracts are put in place to sell forward surplus US doltars and Euros so as to hedge 80% of the group’s UK based US dollar
and Euro revenues for the corming 12 months and 50% of the group’s UK based US dollar and Euro revenues for the subsequent six months In addition,
at a group level a series of US dollar forward contracts 1s put in place up to 18 months forward to hedge the operation’s Canadian cost base

Average exchange rate Forelgn currency Contract value Fair value
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 201

Us$000 Us3$000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cash Flow Hedges
Sell USD buy GBP
Less than a year 1589 1705 71,875 66,800 45,236 39,174 694 (3,769
More than a year but less
than two years 1581 1596 17,225 20 060 10,892 12,532 206 (331)
Sell USD buy CAD*
Less than a year 1001 1026 20,976 16,880 13,219 10,669 176 (201)
More than a year but less
than two years 1011 D 991 6,307 7,400 4,015 4516 64 (245)

EUR 000's EUR 000’ £000 £000 £000 £000

Sell EUR buy GBP
Less than a year 1183 1158 34,630 34 600 29,286 29,871 1,628 55
More than a year but less
than two years 1248 1140 9,950 11,100 7,971 9,737 (9) 156

t Rate used for conversion from CAD to GBP s t 5889 (2011 16233}
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements continued

19 Finanaial instruments and risk management continued

As at September 30 2012, the aggregate amount of unrealised gains under forward foreign exchange contracts deferred 1a the fair value reserve
relating to future revenue transactions 15 £2,759,000 {2011 losses £4,003,000) It 15 ant:icipated that the transactions will take place over the next
18 months at which stage the amount deferred in equity will be released to the Income Statement

As at September 30 2012, the aggregate amount of unrealised losses under ineffective cash flow hedges still n place at the year end s £nil (2011
£332,000), which have been recogrised in the Income Statement

1} Interest rate nsk

The group’s borrowings are in both sterling and US doltars with the related interest tied to LIBOR This results in the group's interest charge being at nsk
to fluctuations in interest rates [t is the group’s policy to hedge approximately 80% of 1ts interest exposure, converting its floating rate debt into fixed
debt by means of interest rate swaps The maturity dates are spread in order to avoid interest rate basis nsk and also 10 negate short-term changes in
Interest rates The prediciability of interest costs 1s deemed to be more important than the possible opportunity cost foregone of achieving lower interest
rates and this hedging strategy has the effect of spreading the group's exposure to fluctuations arising from changes in interest rates and hence protects
the group’s interest charge against sudden increases in rates but also prevents the group from benefiting immediately from falls in rates

The group’s exposures to interest rates on financiat assets and financial habihties are detailed in the liguidity nsk sectron on page 98

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the expasure to interest rates for both denvative and non-derivative instruments at the
balance sheet date For floating rate habilities, the analysis 1s prepared assuming the amount of liability cutstanding at the balance sheet date was
outstanding for the whole year A 100 basis pownt increase of decrease is used when reporting interest rate nisk internally Lo key management personnel
and represents the directors’ assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest rates at the reparting date

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher or lower and all other vanables were held constant the groups

e  Profit for the year ended September 30 2012 would decrease or increase by £338,000(2G11 £121,000) This s mainby attnibutable to the group’s
exposure to interest rates on its variable rate borrowings, and

o  Other equity reserves would decrease or increase by £561,000 (2011 £934,000) mainly as a result of the changes 1n the fair value of interest rate
SWaps

The group's sensitvity to interest rates has not matenially changed duning the pericd due to the group benefiting from similar levels of fixed rates

Interest rate swap contracts

Under interest rate swap contracts, the group agrees 10 exchange the difierence between fixed and floating rate interest amounts tatculated on agreed
notional principal amounts Such contracts enable the group to mitigate the nisk of changing interest rates on the fair value of 1ssued fixed rate debt
and the cash flow exposures on the issued variable rate debt The fair value of interest rate swaps at the reporting date 15 determtned by discounting
the future cash flows using the yield curves at the reporting date and the credit risk inherent in the contract, and 1s disclosed below
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19 Financial instruments and risk management continued

The following table details the notional principal amounts and remaining terms of interest rate swap contracts outstanding as at the reporting date The
average nterest rate 15 based on the outstanding balances at the end of the financial year

Cash flow hedges
US dollar Recewe floating pay fixed

Average contracted Notional principal
fixed interest rate amount Fair value
2012 201 2012 2011 2012 2011
% % £000 £000 £000 £000
Less than 1 year 325 398 18,578 35,306 (389) (827)
1 to 2 years 252 325 6,193 19,258 (206) {889)
2 1o 5 years - 252 - 6,419 - {307
GBP Recewve floating pay fixed
Average contracted Notional principal
fixed interest rate amount Fair value
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 20N
% % £000 £000 £000 £000
Less than 1 year 257 446 5,000 15,000 (50) (424}
1 to 2 years - 257 - 5000 - 19

The interest rate swaps setile on a guarterly basis The floating rate on the interest rate swaps 1s LIBOR The group will settle the difference between the
fixed and floating interest rate on a net basis Al interest rate swap contracts exchanging floating rate mnterest amounts for fixed rate interest amounts
are designated as cash flow hedges in order to reduce the group’s cash flow exposure resulting from variable nterest rates on borrowings The interest
rate swaps and the interest payments on the loan occur simultaneously and the amount deferred in equity 1s recogmised in the income Statement over
the peniod that the floating rate interest payments on debt impact the income Statement

As at September 30 2012, the aggregate amount of unrealised interest under swap contracts deferred (n the fair value reserve relating to future interest
payable 1s £283,000 (201% £2,259,000) !t 1s anticipated that the transactions will take place over the next 18 months, at which stage the amount
deferred 1n equity will be released to the Income Statement

As at September 30 2012, the aggregate amount of unrealsed inerest under ineffective swaps still in place at the year end 15 £362,000 (2011
£307,000) which has been recognised in the Income Statement

Credit risk

Credit nisk refers to the nsk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the group The group seeks ta
herit interest rate and foreign currency nisks described above by the use of financial instruments and as a result has a credit sk from the potential
non-performance by the counterparties to these financial istruments, which are unsecured The amount of this credit risk 15 normally restricted
to the amounts of any hedge gain and not the principal amount being hedged The group also has a credit exposure to counterparties for the full
principal amount of cash and cash equivalents Credit nisks are controlled by monitoring the amounts outstanding with, and the credit quality of, these
counterparties For the group’s cash and cash equivalents these are principally licensed commercial banks and mvestment banks with strong long-term
credit ratings, and for dervative financial instrurnents with DMGT who have treasury policies in place which do not allow concentrations of risk with
individual counterparties and do not allow significant treasury exposures with counterparties which are rated lower than AA
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Financial Statements ontinued

19 Finanaal instruments and risk management continued

The group also has credit risk with respect to trade and other recevables, prepayments and accreed income The concentration of credit risk from trade
recevables is imited due to the group’s large and broad custamer base Trade recevable exposures are managed locally in the business units where they
anse Allowance 1s made for bad and doubtful debts based on management’s assessment of the nsk of non-payment taking into account the ageing
profile, experience and arcumstance

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset, including denvative finanaat instruments, recorded
in the Statement of Financial Position The group does not have any significant credit nsk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of
counterparties having stmilar charactenstics The group defines counterparties as having similar characteristics if they are refated entities Concentration
of credit nsk did not exceed 5% of gross monetary assets at any time during the year

Liguidity nsk
The group has significant intercompany borrowings and is an approved borrower under a DMGT $300 mullion dedicated multi-currency faclity The
facility 15 dvided into US dollar and sterling funds and matures in December 2013 The total maximum borrowing capacity 15 as follows

US Dollar $250 million
Sterling £33 million

The facility reguires the group to meet certain covenants based on net debt and profits adjusted for certain non-cash items and the impact of foreign
exchange Failure to do so would result in the group being n breach of the faciity potentially resulting i the fachity being withdrawn or impediment
of management deasion making by the lender Management regularly monitor the covenants and prepare detailed cash flow forecasts to ensure that
sufficient headroom 1s available and that the covenants are not close or potentually close to breach At September 30 2012, the group’s net debt to
adjusted EBITDA was 0 27 times

The groups strategy 15 to use excess operating cash to pay down its debt The group generally has an annual cash conversion rate (the percentage
by which cash generated by operations covers operating profit before acquired intangible amortisation long-term incentive expense and exceptional
iterns) of over 100%, due to much of its subscription, conference and training revenue being paid in advance For the year to September 30 2032 the
group's cash conversion rate was 103% compared to 108% last year

Under the DMGT facility, at September 30 2012, the group had £144 7 million of undrawn but committed faclities available In the absence of any
significant acquisitions, the group has no pressing requirement to arrange new finance before the facility expires in December 2013 In addition the
group has agreed terms with DMGT that prowide 1t with access to addiional funding should the group require 1t dunng the penod from December 2013
through April 2016 There 1s a nsk that the undrawn portion of the facility, or that the additronal funding, may be unavailable or withdrawn if DMGT
experience funding difficulties themselves However, f DMGT were unable to fulfil its funding commitment to the group the directors are confident
that the group would be in a position to secure adequate external facilities, although prebably at a higher cost of funding
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19 Financal instruments and nisk management continued

This table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual cash flows of the financial liabikties including both interest and pnncipal cash
flows To the extent that the interest rates are floating, the undiscounied amount 15 denived from interest rate curves at September 30 2012 The
contractual matunty 1s based on the earliest date on which the group may be required to settle

Weighted
average
effective Less than
Interest rate 1 year 1-3 years Total
2012 % £000 £000 £000
Varable rate borrowings 249 1,228 43,154 44,382
Acquisition option commitments - 4,273 3,595 7,868
Non-interest bearing liabilities (trade and other payables and accruals) ~ 89,638 6,341 95,979
Weighted
average
effective Less than
Iinterest rate 1 year 1=3 years Total
2011 % £000 £000 £000
Vanable rate borrowings 234 61,682 71,543 133,225
Acquisition option commitments - 852 10,149 11,001
Non-interest beanng liabilities (trade and other payables, and accruals) — 86,219 10,296 96,515

At September 30 2012, £38,631 000 {2011 £110,059,000) of borrowings were designated in US doltars with the remainder in stering The average
rate of interest paid on the debt was 4 82% (2011 5 70%)

The following table details the groups remaiming contractual matunity for its non-denvative financial assets, manly medium-term deposits for amounts
on loans owed by DMGT group undertakings and eguity nen-controlling interests This 1able has been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual
matunities of the financial assets including terest that will be earned on those assets except where the group anticipate that the cash flow will occur
in a different penod

Weighted
average
effective Less than
nterest rate 1 year Total
% £000 £000
2012
Vanable interest rate instruments {cash at bank} 086 13,544 13,544
Non-interest beanng assets (trade and other recevables excluding prepayments) - 59,048 59,048
72,592 72,592
2011
Vanabie interast rate instruments {cash at bank and short-term deposits} 124 14,046 14,046
Non-interest bearing assets {trade and other recevables excluding prepayments} - 65 356 65,356
79,402 79,402
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements continued

19 Finanaal instruments and nsk management continued

The fgllowing table details the group s iquidity analysis for its denvative financial instruments  The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
net cash inflows and (outflows) on the dervatve instrument that settle on a net basis and the undiscounted gross inflows and (outflows) on those
derivatives that require gross settlement When the amount payable or receivable s not fixed, the amount disclosed has been deterrmined by reference
to the projected interest rates as dllustrated by the yield curves exisiing at the reporung date

Less than 1-3 3 months
1 month months to 1 year 1-5 years Total
2012 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Net settled
Interest rate swaps - {196} (375) (66) (637)
Gross settled
Foreign exchange forward contracts inflows 7,358 13,163 67,221 22,877 110,619
Foreign exchange forward contracts outflows {7.063) (12,769) (65,258) (22,500) (107,590)
295 198 1,588 311 2,392
Less than 1-3 3 months
1 month months to 1 year 1-5 years Total
2011 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Net settled
Interest rate swaps - {470} (758) (388) (1,616)
Gross settled
Foreign exchange forward contracts inflows 5,629 13,558 60,219 27,092 106,498
Foreign exchange forward contracts outflows {6,114) (14,494} (62.,583) (27,473) (110,664}
(485) {1,406) (3,122) (769) (5 782)

Fair value of financial instruments
The fawr values of financial assets and financial habilities are detersnined as {ollows

Level 1
e The fair value of financial assets and financial abilites with standard terms and conditions and traded on active iquid markets is determined with
reference to quoted market prices

Level 2

¢ The far value of other financial assets and financial labiliies {excluding denvative instruments) 15 determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices from observable current market transact:ions and dealer quotes for
similar instruments,

& Foreign currency forward contracts are measured using quoted forward exchange rates and yield curves denved from quoted interest rates
matching maturities of the contracts, and

® Interest rate swaps are measured at the present value of future cash flows estimated and discounted based on ithe applhicable yseld curves denved
from quoted interest rates

Level 3
® If one or more significant inputs are not based on observable market date, the instrument 15 incfuded 1n level 3

As at September 30 2012 and the prior year, all the resulting fair value estimates have been included tn level 2 other than the group’s acquisition option
commitments which are classified as level 3

Other financial iInstruments not recorded at fair value
The directors consider that the carrying amounts of finanaal assets and financial habilities recorded at amortised cost in the financial statements
approximate their fair values
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20 Bank overdrafts and loans

2012 20N

£000 £000
Bank overdrafts — current liability - 1,549
Loan notes = current hability 1,228 1,617
Committed loan facility — current liability - 58,516
Comrnitted loan faciity — non-current habihty 43,154 71 543
Total committed loan faclity 43,154 130,059

Loan notes

Loan notes were 1ssued in Cctober and November 2006 to fund the purchase of Metal Bulletin plc Interest i1s payable on these loan notes at a vanable
rate of 0 75% below LIBOR, payable in June and Decemnber Loan notes can be redeemed at the option of the loan note holder twice a year on the
Interest payment dates above At least 20 business days’ wntten notice prior to the redemption date 1s required Durning the year ended Septernber 30
2012 £386,000 (2011 £420,000) of these ioan notes were redeemed

Comrmutted foan faclity

The group’s debt 1s provided through a dedicated $300 million multi-currency borrowing facility from Daily Mail and General Frust plc (DMGT) The
facility 15 divided into US dollar and sterting funds and matures in December 2013 The total maximum borrowing capacity 1s $250 million (£155 million}
and £33 million Interest 1s payable on this facility at a variable rate of between 1 4% and 3 0% above LIBOR dependent on the ratio of adjusted net
debt to EBITDA The facility's covenant requires the group’s net debt to be no more than four times adjusted EBITDA on a rolling 12 maonth basis Failure
to do so would result in the group being in breach of the facility, potentially resuling n the facility being withdrawn or impediment of management
decision making by the lender Management regularly monitor the covenant and prepare detaiied debt forecasts {0 ensure that sufficent headroom
5 avallable and that the covenants are not close or potentally close 1o breach At September 30 2012, the group’s net debt to adjusted EBITDA
was 0 27 times

Under the DMGT facility, at September 30 2012, the group had £144 7 million of undrawn but committed faclities avatable In the absence of any
sigruficant acquisitions, the group has no pressing requirement to arrange new finance before the facility expires in Decernber 2013 In addition, the
group has agreed terms with DMGT that provide it with access to additonal funding should the group require it duning the period from December 2013
through April 2016 There is a nsk that the undrawn portion of the facility, or that the additional {funding, may be unavallable or withdrawn If DMGT
experience funding difficulties themselves However, if DMGT were unable to fulfil its funding commitment to the group, the directars are confident
that the group would be In a position to secure adequate external facihities, although probably at a higher cost of funding
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements continued

21 Provisions

Onerous

lease Qther Group

provision provisions total

£000 £000 £000

At October 1 2011 2,686 3,520 6,206
Prowvision in the year 413 803 1.216
Used in the year (223) (149) (372)
Exchange differences (92) 3 (85
At September 30 2012 2,784 4171 6,955

Matunty profile of provisions

2012 2011

£000 £000

Within one year (included in current Labilities) 2,037 810
Between ene and two years {included in non-current hiabilties) 2,469 1,230
Between two and five years (included in non-current habilities) 2,449 4,166
6,955 6,206

Onerous lease provision
The onerous lease provision relates to certain buildings within the property portfolio which either at acquisition were rented at non-market ratas, or are
no longer occupred by the group

Qther provisions
The proviston consists of socal secunty ansing on share option habiities and dilapidations on leasehold properties
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22 Deferred taxation

The net deferred tax hability at September 30 2012 comprised

Income Acquisitions Exchange

2011 statement Equity and disposals  differences 2012

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Capitalised goodwill and intangibles (33,142) 1,198 3,008 (305) 893 (28,348)
Tax deductible gocodwill amartisation 2,564 (2,526) - - (38) -
Tax losses 2,969 {1,540) - - {62) 1.367
Financial instruments 5,320 - (5,761) - - (a41)
Other short-term temporary differences 13,280 3,106 1,424 235 (254) 17,791
Deferred tax (9,009) 238 (1,329) (70) 539 (9,631)
Comprising
Deferred 1ax assets 13,216 7.344
Deferred 1ax habilities (22,225) {16,975)

{9,009} {9,631)
income Acquisitions Exchange

20Mm statement Equity and dispasals  differences 2012

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Other short-term temporary differences
Share-based payments 5,738 1,042 643 - - 7,423
Pension deficit 475 (630} 781 - - 626
Accelerated capital allowances 477 173 - - (21) 629
Deferred income, accruals and other provisions 6,590 2,521 - 235 (233) 9,113
Total other short-term temporary differences 13,280 3,106 1,424 235 (254) 17,791

At the balance sheet date, the group has unused US tax losses available for offset against future profits At September 30 2012 a deferred tax asset of
£1,367,000 {2011 £2,201,000) has been recognised in relation to these losses The US losses can be carried forward for a peniod of 20 years from the
date they arose The US losses have expiry dates between 2013 and 2029

At the balance sheet date, the group no longer has unused UK tax losses available for offset against future profits At September 30 2012 a deferred
tax asset of £ril (2011 £768,000) has been recogrised in relation to these losses

At the balance sheet date, a net deferred tax asset of £5,511,000 (2011 £6,320,000) has been recogmised 1n respect of US tax deductibie goodwill
amortisation, capitalised intangible assets and other short-term timing differences

Included within capitalised goodwill and intangibles s a deferred tax asset of £2,808,000 (2011 £nif) relating 1o tax deductible goodwill ansing on
acquisiion option commitment for the minenty share of Ned Dawis Research, In¢ that was previously recognised within deferred tax on financial
Instruments

The directors are of the opinion, that based on recent and forecast trading, 1t 1s probable that the level of profits in future years 15 sufficient to enable
the above assets to be recovered

No deferred tax liability 15 recognised on temporary differences of £94,478,000 (2011 £63,035,000) relating to the unremitted earnings of overseas
subsidianes as the group 15 able to contro! the uming of the reversal of these temporary differences and 1t 1s probable that they will not reverse in the
foreseeable future The temporary differences at September 30 2012 represent only the unremitted earnings of those overseas subsichanes where
remittance io the UK of those earmings may stili resuit in & tax hability, principally as a result of dvidend withhelding taxes levied by the overseas tax
jurisdictions in which these subsidianes operate
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements continued

23 Called up share capital

2012
£000
Allotted, called up and fully paid
124,349,531 ordinary shares of 0 25p each (2011 121,247,380 ordinary shares of 0 25p each) 311

201
£000

303

During the year, 3,102 151 ordinary shares of 0 25p each (2011 2,755,469 ordinary shares} with an aggregate nominal value of £7,755(2011 £6,889)
were issued as follows 2 381,410 ordinary shares (2011 2,226,089) under the companys 2009 scrip dividend alternative for a cash consideration of
£nl (2011 £nd}, and 720,741 ordinary shares (2011 529,380 ordinary shares) following the exercse of share options granted under the company's

share option schemes for a cash consideration of £1,058,834 (2011 £718,392)

24 Share-based payments

The group's long-term incentive expense at September 30 compnsed

2011
£000

(96)

{7.970)

{8.066)

{7.970)
34
{92

{8.028)

(16,094)

(9,491}
{6,603}

(16 054)

2011
£000

10,296

2012
£000
Equity-settled options
SAYE (97}
CAP 2004 1,809
CAP 2010 (4,042}
(2,330}
Cash-settled options
CAP 2010 (4,042}
Internet Secunties, Inc (8}
structured Retail Products Limited 79
(3,971)
(6,301}
Long-term incentive expense (6,301}
Additional accelerated long-term incentive expense -
(6,301)
The total carrying value of cash-settled options at September 30 2012 included in the Statement of Finanaal Position 1s
2012
£000
Current 7,768
Non-current 6,341
14,109

10,296

104




Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC annual Report and Accounts 2012

www euromoneyplc com

24 Share-based payments continued
Equity-settled options

The options set out betow are outstanding at September 30 and are options 1o subscnbe for new ordinary shares of 0 25p each in the company

The total charge recognised In the year from equity-settled options was £2,330,000, 37% of the groups long term incentive expense (2011 charge

£8,066,000, 50%)

Number of ordinary shares under option 2012

Granted/ Lapsed/
(trued up) Exerased  forferted
duning during during
2011 year year year 2012
Penod dunng which option may be exercised
Executive options
Before January 22 2012 8,000 - (8,000} - -
Before December 3 2012 86,000 - (86,000} - -
Before January 27 2014 91,487 - (39,487) - 52,000
SAYE
Between february 1 2011 and July 31 2011 3,018 - (3,018} - -
Between February 1 2012 and July 31 2012 341,025 - (338,767} (2,258) -
Between February 1 2013 and July 31 2013 46,466 - - (1,899) 44,567
Between February 1 2014 and July 31 2014 40,588 - - {15,091) 25,497
Between February 1 2015 and July 31 2015 - 158,769 - (10.281) 148,488
CAP 2004
Before September 30 2014 {tranche 1)' a1 - - - 421
Before September 30 2014 {tranche 2)' 58,375 {18,063)% (40,312) - -
Before September 30 2014 (tranche 3)' 293,032 (18,182)% (205,157) - 69,693
CAP 2010
Before September 30 2020 {tranche 1) 969,305 - - - 969,305
Before September 30 2020 {tranche 2)? 1,750,496 - - - 1,750,496
CSOFP 2010
Before February 14 2020 (UK) 541,671 - - - 541,671
Before February 14 2020 (Canada) 239,520 - - - 239,520
4,469,404 122,524 (720,741) (29,529) 3,841,658

The options outstanding at September 30 2012 had a weighted average exercise price of £1 49 and a weighted average remaining contractual bfe

of 7 35 years

Option

price

(£)

335
259
419

318
187
344
563
497

00025
00025
00025

00025
00025

603
501

Waeighted
average
market
price at
date of
exercise

t9]

707
7N
730

690
693

737
73
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24 Share-based payments continued
Number of ordinary shares under option 2011

Weighted
average
market
Granted/ Lapse/ price at
(trued up}  Exercised forferted Option date of
during during dunng price exercise
2010 year year year 201 (£} (£)
Period dunng which option may be exercised
Executive options
Before March 12012 147 424 - (16,000) {131,424} - 538 687
Before January 22 2012 8,000 - - - 8,000 335 -
Before December 3 2012 192,000 - (106 000) - 86,000 259 688
Before January 27 2014 153 487 - {62 000) - 91,487 419 678
SAYE
Between February 1 2011 and july 31 2011 35,003 - {28,968) (3.017) 3,018 318 703
Between February 1 2012 and july 31 2012 362,994 - (2 647} (19,322) 341,025 187 730
Between February 1 2013 and July 31 2013 51,688 - - {5222} 46,466 344 -
Between February 1 2014 and July 31 2014 - 50,743 - (10,155) 40,588 565 -
CAP 2004
Before September 30 2014 {tranche 1)} 1,587 - {1,166) - a21 00025 691
Before September 30 2014 (iranche 2} 122,697 58,064+ (122,385) (1 58,375 00025 729
Before September 30 2014 (tranche 3)! 211,322 276,933+ (190,214) {5,009) 293,032 00025 726
CAP 2010
Before September 30 2020 (tranche 1§ 969,305 - - - 969,305 00025 -
Before September 30 2020 (tranche 2)? 1,750,496 - - - 1750,4986 00025 -
CS0P 2010
Before February 14 2020 (UK) 541,671 - - - 541,671 603 -
Befare February 14 2020 (Canada) 239 520 - - - 239,520 501 -

4,787,194 385,740  (529,380) {174,150) 4,469,404

The options outstanding at September 30 2011 had a weighted average exercise price of £1 38 and a weighted average remaining contractual life
of 7 34 years

1 CAP 2004 options shown in the abave tables relate only to those options that have vested (see page 44 in the Directors Remuneration Report for further information
on CAP 2004 options)

2 The allocation of the number of options granted under each tranche of the CAP 2010 and CSOP UK and CSQOP Canada represents the directors best estimate The CAP
2010 award 15 reduced by the number of options vesting under the respective CSOP schemes (see below and the Directors Remuneratton Report for further details)

t Options granted/(trued up) relate to those that are likely to vest on February 14 2013 (2011 February 10 2012) under the second and third tranche of the CAP 2004
following the achievement of the additonal performance test The number of opuions granted 1s prowsional and will primarly require a true up to reflect adjustments
of the indmidual businesses profits during the period to December 31 2012 (2011 December 31 2011) as required by the Remuneration Committee As such the actual
number of options vested could vary from that disclosed

Cash-settled options

The group has habilities in respect of three share option schemes that are classified by IFRS 2 Share-based payments’ as cash settted These consist of
the cash element of the CAP 2010 scheme, options held by employees over new equity shares in Internet Secunties Inc , a subsidiary of the group, and
oplions held by employees over equity shares in Structured Retail Products Limited, a subsidiary of the group Of these schemes options with an intrinsic
value of £3,000 had vested but are not yet exercised (2011 £7,000)
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24 Share-based payments continued

Share Option Schemes

Capntal Appreciation Plan 2010 (CAP 2010)

The CAP 2010 executive share option scheme was approved by shareholders on January 212010 Each CAP 2010 award compnises twa equal elements
- an option o subscribe for ardinary shares of 0 25p each in the company at an exercise price of 0 25p per ordinary share, and a nght to receive a
cash payment The awards will vest in two equal tranches The first tranche of awards become exercisable on satisfaction of the primary performance
condiion, but no earlier than February 2013, and lapse 1o the extent unexercised by September 30 2020 The second tranche of awards becomes
exercisable in the February following a subsequent financial year in which adjusted pre-tax profits* again equa! or exceed £105 millien (increased
from £100 millien following the acquisition of NDR), but no earlier than February 2014 The second tranche only vests on satisfaction of the primary
performance condition and an additonal performance condition The number of options received under the share award of the CAP 2010 1s reduced
by the number of options vesting with partiapants from the 2010 Company Share Option Plan The primary performance condiion was achieved in
financial year 2011, two years earlier than expected, when adjusied pre-tax profits* were £10% 3 million However, the internal rules of the plan prevent
the awards vesting more than one year early, so although the primary condition has been achieved, the award pool will be allocated between the
holders of outstanding awards by reference to thew contnbution to the growth in profits of the group from the 2009 base year to the profits achieved
in financial year 2012 and these awards are to become exercisable in February 2013 (see Directors Remuneration Report for further information)

Company Share Option Plan 2010 (CSOP 2010}

In parallel with the CAP 2010, the shareholders approved the CSOP 2010 UK and Canada at the AGM on January 21 2010 The CSOP 2010 UK was
approved by HM Revenue and Customs on June 21 2010 and options granted on June 28 2010 The CSOP 2010 UX oplion enables each participant
to purchase up te 4,972 shares in the company at a price of £6 03 per share, the market value at the date of grant The options wiil vest and become
exercisable at the same time as the corresponding share award under the CAP 2010 prowiding the CSOP option s 1n the money at that tme and does
not vest before June 28 2013 Once vested the CSOP opuion remains exercisable for one month I the CSOP option 15 not in the money at the time
of vesting of the corresponding CAP 2010 share award 1t continues to subsist and becomes exercisable at the same time as the second tranche of the
CAP 2010 share award The CSOP 2010 Canada, granted on March 30 2010, enables each pambpam to purchase up to 19,960 shares in the company
at a price of £5 01 per share, the market value at the date of grant No option may vest after the date falling three months after the preliminary
announcement of the results for the financial year ended Septernber 30 2019, and the option shall lapse 10 the extent unvested at the ume The CSQP
has the same perfarmance criteria as that of the CAP 2010 as set out above The number of CSOP 2010 awards that vest proportionally reduce the
number of shares that vest under the CAP 2010 as the CSOP 1s effectively a delivery mechamism for part of the CAP 2010 award The CSOP 2010 optien
exercrse price of £6 03 (UK) and £5 01 (Canada) will be satisfied by a funding award mechanism and results in the same net gain on the CSOP options
(calculated as the market price of the company s shares at the date of exercise less the exercise price, multiphed by the number of optians exercised)
delivered in the equivalent number of shares to partictpants as if the award had been defivered using 0 25p CAP options

Capital Appreciation Plan 2004 (CAP 2004)

The CAP 2004 executive share option scheme was approved by shareholders on February 1 2005 Each of the CAP awards compnises an gption 1o
subscribe for ordinary shares of 0 25p each in the company for an exercise price of 0 25p per ordinary share The awards become exercisable on
satisfaction of certain performance conditions and lapse to the extent unexercised on September 30 2014 The initial performance condition was
achieved in the financial year 2007 and the option pool {a maximum of 7 5 mullion shares) was allocated between the holders of outstanding awards
One-third of the awards vested immediately The primary performance target was achieved again in 2008 and, after applying the additional performance
condition, 2,241,268 options from the second tranche of options vested in February 2009 The primary performance target was also achieved in 2009
and 1,527,152 options (ncluding a true-up adjustment of 5,654) for the third (final) tranche of options in 2009 vested 1n February 2010 The additional
performance condition was applied to profus for financial year 2010 and 2011 for those indwidual participants where the additional performance
conditions for the second and final tranches had not previously been met and 303,321 and 244 152 opiions vested in February 2011 and February 2012
respectively For those individual participants’ businesses where the additonal performance conditions for the second and final tranche have not been
met, the vesting 15 deferred untl the profits are at least 75% of that achieved in 2007 but no later than by reference to the year ending September 30
2012 The directors estimate 54,599 of options will vest in February 2013 following satsfaction of this additsonal performance test

-

Adjusted pre-tax profits 15 profit before tax exduding acquired intangible amortisation CAP 2010 element of long-term incentive expense exceptional tems profits
from significant acquisitions, net movements in acquisihion option cammitments vatues, IMputed interest on acquisihon option commitments foreign exchange loss
interest charge on tax equalisation contracts and foreign exchange on restructured hedging arrangements as set out in the Income Statement, note 5 6 and 8
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements continued

24 Share-based payments continued

Share Option Schemes contimued
The company has six share option schemas for which an IFRS2 "Share-based payments’ charge has been recognised Details of these schemes are set out
in the Directors Remuneration Report on pages 42 to 45 The fair value per option granted and the assumptions used in the calculation are shown below

Executive SAYE

Options " 12 13

January 28 December 11 December 21 December 20

Date of grant 2002 2009 2010 2011
Market value at date of grant (p) 419 430 706 6279
Option price {p) 419 344 569 497
Number of share options cutstanding 52,000 44,567 25,497 148,488
Qption Iife {years) 100 35 35 35
Expected term of option {grant 10 exercise {years)) 55 30 30 30
Exercise price {p) 419 344 565 497
Risk-free rate 410% 183% 163% 053%
Dindend yield 393% 7 49% 528% 430%
volatility 30% 50% 38% 35%
Fair value per option (£} 072 T2 182 154

The executive and Save as You Earn {(SAYE) options were valued using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model Expected volatility was determined by
caleulating the histonical volatibty of the group’s share price over a period of 15 years The executive options farr values have been discounted at a rate
of 10% to reflect thewr performance conditions The expected term of the option used in the model has been adjusted, based on management's best
estimate for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations The charge recognised in the year in respect of these
options was £97,000 (2011 charge £96,000)
Internet
Securities Inc

CAP 2004 (cash-settled

Tranche 1 Tranche 2 Tranche 3 options)

June 20 June 20 June 20  February 28

Date of grant 2005 2005 2005 2006
Market value at date of grant (p) 401 401 401 n/a
Option price {p) 025 025 02s n/a
Number of share options outstanding 421 - 69,693 2,126
Option hfe (years) 10 10 10 10
Expected term of option (grant to exercise {years)} 328 453 553 450
Exeraise price (p) 025 025 025 51310
Risk-free rate 50% 50% 50% -
Dividend growth 8 44% 8 44% 8 44% -
Fair value per option (£) 328 302 282 $14 34

The CAP 2004 options were valued using a fair value model that adjusted the share price at the date of grant for the net present value of expected
future dividend streams up to the date of expected exeraise Under IFRS 2, Internet Securities, Inc opttons are classified as cash-settled options As
such, therr retated fair value equates to the far value at the balance sheet date For both of these option schemes, the expected term of the option
used in the models has been adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural
considerations The long-term incentive recognised in the year for the CAP 2004 options was a credit of £1,803,000 (2011 £nil), and for Internet
Secunities, Inc options was a charge of £8,000 (2011 credit £34,000}
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24 Share-based payments continued

The Internet Securities, Inc (i51) options are over shares of 151, a subsidiary entity The ISI options outstanding at September 30 2012 had a weighted
average exercse pnce of $13 10 (2011 $12 43) and a weighted average remamning contractual fe of 3 41 (2011 4 23) years

CAP 2010 CSOP 2010

Tranche 1 Tranche 2 UK Canada

March 30 March 30 June 28 March 30
Date of grant 2010 2010 2010 2010
Market value at date of grant (p) 501 501 603 34 501
Opticn price (p) 025 025 603 34 501
Number of share options outstanding 969,305 1,750,496 541,671 239,520
Option hfe (years) 10 10 938 10
Expected term of option {grant to exercise (years)) 4 5 3 3
Exercise price (p) 025 D25 603 38* 501 00*
Risk-free rate 228% 275% 228% 228%
Dwvidend growth 7 00% 7 00% 7 00% 7 00%
Fair value per option (£} 437 420 437 437

The CAP 2010 options were valued using a faw value model that adjusted the share pnce at the date of grant for the net present value of expected
future dwidend streams up to the date of expected exercse The expected term of the option used in the models has been adjusted, based on
managements best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations

The number of CSOP 2010 awards that vest proportionally reduce the number of shares that vest under the CAP 2010, the CSOP s effectively a delivery
mechanism for part of the CAP 2010 award The CSOP 2010 options have an exercise price of £6 03", which will be satisfied by a funding award
mechamism which results in the same net gain? on these options delivered in the equivalent number of shares to parttapants as if the same award had
been delivered using 0 25 pence CAP options The amount of the funding award will depend on the company’s share price at the date of exercise
Because of the above and the other direct inks between the CSOP 2010 and the CAP 2010, including the identical performance critena, IFRS 2 ‘Share
based payrnents’ combines the two plans and treats them as ane plan {(vesting in two tranches) The long-term incentive expense recogrised in the year
for the CSOP 2010 and CAP 2010 options (including the charge in relation ta the cash element) was £8,084,000 (2011 £15,940,000)

Exercise price of Canadian CSOP t5 £5 D1

2 Net gain on the CSOP options 15 the market price of the company’s shares at the date of exeraise less the exercise price {£6 03"} muluphed by the number of options
exercised
*  Exercise price excludes the effect of the funding award
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements continued

25 Acquisition option commitments

The group 15 party to put options over the remaining non-controling interest i subsidianies 1AS 39 'Financial instruments requires the group to
recognise the discounted present value of the remaining put option commitment This discount 1s unwound as a notional interest charge to the Income
Statement The group regularly performs a review of the underlying businesses with put option commitments to assess the impact on the fair value of

the respective put option commitment Any resultant change in these fair values 1s reported as a finance income or expense in the Income Statement

2012 20Nm

£000 £000
Acquisition option commistments at October 1 11,001 1,061
Additions from acgursitions during the year - 9 451
Net movements during the year following review of underlying business {note 8) (2,940) 358
Imputed interest {note 8) 977 181
Exerase of option commitments (831) (50)
Exchange differences (339) -
Acquisition option commitments at September 30 7.868 11,00t
A net income of £1 963,000 (2011 expense of £539,000) was recorded in finance income and finance expense (note 8)
Maturity profile of acquisition option commitments

2012 2011

£000 £000
Within one year 4,273 852
In more than one year 3,595 10,149

7.868 11,001

There 1s a deferred tax asset of £} (2011 £3,800,000) related to the put option commitment as at September 30 2012

As explained in note 2, key judgemental areas in prepanng the financial statements, the value of the put option commitments is subject to a number
of assumptions The directors estimate that a possible range of outcomes for the farr value of the NDR put option commitments, based on possible

changes in the assumptions, 15 as follows

2012
£000
Estimated mimimum =
Estimated capped maxirmum 37,552

2011
£000

39,183

The put option agreement aver the sale of Internet Securrties, Inc (IS1) shares between the company and the non-controlling shareholders of 151 1s based
on the valuation of 151 as determined under a methodology provided by an independent financial adviser Under the terms of the put option agreement
consideration caps have been putan place that require the maximum consideration payable to option holders to be capped at an amount such that the

results of any relevant class tests would, at the relevant time, fall below the requirement for shareholder approval

Following a sensitivity analysis of the fair value of the acquisition option commitments applying reasonable possible assumptions, a 10% change
In expected profit, the liabiities at September 30 2012 range from £6,229,000 to £9,519,000 with the corresponding change to the value at

September 30 2012 charged or credited to the Income Statement in future penods
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26 Operating lease commitments

At September 30 the group had committed to make the following payments in respect of operating leases on land and builldings

2012 2011

£000 £000

Within one year 6,728 .37
Between two and five years 16,451 19,899
After five years 2,812 4,887
25,991 32,103

The group’s operating leases do not include any significant leasing terms or conditions

At September 30 the group had contracted with tenants to receive the following payments in respect of operating leases on land and buildings

2012 2011
£000 £000
Within one year 1,320 903
Between two and five years 3,492 1,819
After five years 445 868
5,257 3,590

27 Retirement benefit schemes
Defined contribution schemes

Our Performance

Qur Governance

The group operates the following defined contribution schemes Euromoney PensionSaver, Euromoney Pension Plan, the Metal Bulletin Group Personal
Pension Plan in the UK and the 401{k) savings and investment plan in the US It also participates in the Harmsworth Pension Scheme, a defined beneiit
scheme which 15 aperated by Daly Mail and General Trust plc (DMGT) but 1s accounted for in Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC as a defined
contribution scheme

In compliance with recent legislation the group 1s making arrangements for relevant employees to be automatcally enrolled into defined contribution
pension plans The staging date for the group for automatic enroiment is expected 10 be Novermber 2012

The pension charge in respect of defined contrnibution schemes for the year ended September 30 compnised

2012 201
£000 £000
Euromoney Pension Plan/PensionSaver 1,094 965
Metal Bulletin Group Personal Pension Plan 24 28
Private schemes 1,077 1,035
Harmsworth Pension Scheme 112 148
2,307 2176

Group Accounts
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements «ontinued

27 Retirement benefit schemes continued

Euromoney PensionSaver and Euromoney Pension Plan

Euromoney PensionSaver was launched on October 1 2008 to replace the Euremoney Pension Plan as the principal pension arrangement offered to
employees of the group Under both plans, contnbutions are paid by the employer and employees However, Euromoney PensionSaver Is a group
personal pension arrangement rather than the trust-based arrangement used by the Euromoney Pension Plan Under both schemes, employees are
able to contnbute a mimimum of 3% of salary with an equal company contribution in the first three years of employment and thereafter at twice the
employee contribution rate, up to a maximum employer contribution of 10% of salary The Euromoney Pension Plan 15 a part of the DMGT Pension
Trust, an umbrella trust under which DMGT UK trust-based defined contribution plans are held Insured death benefits previously held under this trust
have been transferred to a new trust-based arrangement speaifically for Iife assurance purposes

When the process of transferning out the remaning assets of the Euromoney Pension Plan has been comaleted the Plan will be wound up

Assets of both plans are invested in funds selected by members and held independently from the company’s finances The investment and administration
of both plans i1s undertaken by Fidelity Pension Management

Metal Bulletin Group Personal Pension Plan
The Metal Bulletin Group Personal Pension Plan 1s a defined contribution arrangement under which contnbutions are paid by the employer and
employees The scheme 15 closed to new members

The plan’s assets are invested under trust i funds selected by members and held independently from the company’s finances The investment and
administration of the plan 1s undertaken by Skandia Life Group

Private schemes

Institutional investor, Inc contrbutes to a 401{k) savings and investment plan for its employees which s administered by an independent investment
provider Employees are able to contribute up to 15% of salary with the company matching up to 50% of the employee contnbutions, up to 5% of
salary

The company also provides access to a stakeholder pension plan for relevant employees who are not eligible for other pension schemes operated by
the group These arrangements wilt be superseded when automatic enrclment begins in 2013

Harmsworth Pension Scheme
The Harmsworth Pension Scheme Is a defined benefit scheme operated by DMGT The scheme 1s closed to new entrants Exising members still in
empleyment can continue 1o accrue benefits in the scheme on a cash basis, with members using this cash account to purchase an annuity at retirement

A full actuanal valuation of the scheme 1s carned out trienmally by the Scheme Actuary The latest valuation was completed as at March 31 2010 As
a result of this valuation, DMGT agreed to make annual contnbutions of 10% or 15% of members’ basic pay (depending on membership section)
In addition, DMGT has agreed & Recovery Plan involving a seres of annual funding payments amounting to £231 4 million over a period to end on
October 5 2023 In accordance with this agreement, a payment of £24 8 million was made on October 5 2011 and a payment of £21 0 millions was
made on September 28 2012 A further payment of £3 O millign was made post year end on October 5 2012 Both the ongoing contributions and
Recovery Plan will be reviewed at the next triennial funding valuation of the main schemes due to be completed with an effective date March 31 2013

DMGT has enabled the trustee of the scheme to acquire a beneficial interest in a Limited Parinership investment vehicle (LP) The LP has been designed
to faolitate payment of part of the deficit funding payments described above to the scheme over the next 15 years In addition, the LP 15 required to
make a final payment to the principal scheme of £150 mallion or such lesser amount as may equate to the funding deficit wathin the scheme on an
ongorng actuanal valuation basis at the end of the 15 year period For funding purposes, the tnterest held by the trustee in the LP will be treated as an
asset of the scheme and reduce the actuanal deficit within the scheme However, under IAS 19 the LP 15 not included as an asset of the scheme and
therefore 1s not included in the disclosures below In exchange for its interest in the LP, the trustee has allowed the letters of credit previousty provided
by DMGT to be cancelted
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27 Retirement benefit schemes continued

The group s unable to dentify its share of the underlying assets and habilities i the Harmsworth Pension Scheme The scheme 1s operated on
an aggregate basis with no segregation of the assets to individua! pariicipating employers and, therefore, the same contribution rate 1s charged
to all particpating employers (e the contribution rate charged to each employer i1s affected by the experence of the schemes as a whole} The
scheme 1s therefore accounted for as a defined contribution scheme by the company This means that the pension charge reported in these financial
statements 15 the same as the cash contnibutions due in the penod The group s pension charge for the Harmsworth Pension Scheme for the year ended
September 30 2012 was £112,000 (2011 £148,000)

DMGT 15 required to account for the Harmsworth Pension Scheme under 1AS 19 'Employee Benefits  The IAS 19 disclosures in the Annwal Report and
Accounts of DMGT have been based on the formal valuation of the scheme as at March 31 2010, and adjusted to September 30 2012 takeng account of
membership data at that date The calculations are adjusted to allow for the assumptions and actuanal methodclogy required by 145 19 These showed
that the market value of the scheme’s assets was £1,481 2 million (2011 £1,333 6 million) and that the actuaral value of these assets represented
84 6% (2011 83 0%} of the benefits that had accrued to members (also calculated in accordance with IAS 19)

Defined benefit scheme
Metal Bulletin Pension Scheme
The company operates the Metal Bulletin plc Pension Scheme {MBPS), a defined benefit scherme which 1s closed to new entrants

A full actuanal valuation of the defined benefit scheme 15 carned out tnennially by the Scheme Actuary The latest valuation of the MBPS was completed
as at June 1 2010 As a result of the valuation, the company agreed to make annual contnbutions of 22 3% per annum of pensionable salanes, plus
£42,400 per month to the scheme The contributions will be reviewed at the next wennial funding valuation of the scheme due 1o be completed with
an efiective date June 1 2013

The figures in this note are based on calculations carned out n connection with the actuanal valuation of the scheme as at June 1 2010 adjusted to
September 30 2012 by the actuary The key {inancial assumptions adopted were as follows

Long-term assumed rate of 2012 2011
Pensionable salary increases 25%pa 25%pa
Pension escalation in payment (pre-January 1997 members) 50%pa 50%pa
Pension escalation in payment {pensions earned fram May 30 2002 19 June 30 2006)

(post January 1997 members) 28%pa 31%pa
Pension escalation in payment (pensions earned from June 30 2006)

{post January 1997 members) 25% pa 25%pa
Discount rate for accrued habilities 41% pa 50%pa
Inflation 28%pa 31%opa
Pension increase In deferment 28%pa 32%pa
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements continued

27 Retirement benefit schemes continued

The discount rate for scheme liabilibes reflects yields at the balance sheet date on high quality corparate bonds All assumptions were selected after
taking actuaral adwvice

The demographic assumptions adopted were as follows

Pre-retirement mortality rates
The following mortality rates represent the probability of a person dying within one year

Age Males Females
30 003% 002%
40 005% 0 04%
50 0 14% 010%
60 044% 028%
Assumed life expectancy in years, on retirement at 62 2012 201
Retinng at the end of the reporting period

Males 258 257

Females 280 279
Retinng 20 years after the end of the reporting period

Males 280 279

Females 292 292

The fair value of the assets held by the MBPS and the long-term expected rate of return on each class of assets are shown n the
following table

With profits
2012 Equities Bonds policy Cash Total
Value at September 30 2012 (£000) 6,539 15,725 2,567 2,188 27,019
% of assets held 24 2% 58 2% 95% 81% 100 0%
Long-term rate of return expected at September 30 2012 8 00% 3 50% 5 00% 150%
With profits
2011 Equities Bonds policy Cash Total
Value at September 30 2011 (£C00) 7.416 12,390 2,572 1,983 24,361
% of assets held 30 4% 50 9% 10 6% 81% 100 0%
Long-term rate of return expected at September 30 2011 8 00% 5 00% 5 75% 3 50%
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27 Retirement benefit schemes continued

A reconailiation of the net pension deficit reported in the Statement of Financial Position 1s shown in the following table

Present value of defined benefit obligation
Assets at far value
Deficit reported in the Statement of Financial Position

The deficit for the year excludes a related deferred tax asset of £626,000 (2011 asset £475,000)

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows

Present value of obiigation at October 1

Service cost

interest cost

Benefits paid

Members contrbutions

Actuanal movement

Present value of obligation at September 30

Changes n the fair value of plan assets are as follows

Fair value of plan assets at October 1
Expected return on plan assets
Contributions
Employer
Members
Anaurty surplus refund
Actual return less expected return on pension scheme assets
Benefits paid
Fair value of plan assets at September 30

2012 2011
£000 £000
(31,776) (26,260)
27,019 24,361
{4,757) (1,899}
2012 2011
£000 £000
(26,260) (25,811
(58) (75)
(1,314) {1,290
579 589
(12) (13)
4.711) 340
{(31,776) (26,260)
2012 2011
£000 £000
24,361 24,274
1,329 1,451
583 584

12 13

25 23
1,288 (1,395)
(579} (589)
27,019 24,361
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements continued

27 Retirement benefit schemes continued

The actual return on plan assets was a gain of £2,617,000 (2011 gain £56,000) representing the expected return plus the associated actuarial gain or
loss during the year

The amounts charged to the income Statement based on the above assumptions are as follows

2012 201

£000 £000
Current service costs {charged to administrative costs} S8 75
Interest cost (note 8) 1,314 1,280
Expected return on plan assets {note 8} (1,329) (1,451)
Total charge/{income) recognised in Income Statement 43 (86}

Pension costs and the size of any pension surplus or deficit are sensitive to the assumptions adopted The table below indicates the effect of changes
in the principal assumptions used above

2012 201
£000 £000
Mortality
Change in pension abligation at September 30 from a one year change 1n life expectancy +— 943 689
Change in pension cost from a one year change +- 40 35
Salary Increases
Change i pension obligation at September 30 from a 0 25% change +- 38 30
Change in pension cost from a 0 25% year change +H—- 4 3
Discount Rate
Change in pension obhigation at September 30 from a 0 1% change +- 630 495
Change in pension cost frem a 0 1% change +— 3 1
Inftation
Change in pension obligation at September 30 from a 0 1% change +- 182 147
Change in pension cost from a 0 1% change +~ 7 7

Amounts recognised in the Conscolidated Statement of Camprehensive Income (SOCI) are shown in the followsng table

2012 201

£000 £000
Actual return less expected return on pension scheme assets 1,288 (1,395}
Return of surplus annuity payments 25 23
Expenience adjustments on liabilities (178) 827
Losses anising from changes in assumptions {4,533) {(487)
Total losses recognised tn SOCI (3.398) (1,032)
Cumulative actuarial gain recognised in SOCI at beginming of year {415) 617
Cumulative actuanal gain recognised in SO at end of year (3,813) (415)
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27 Retirement benefit schemes continued
History of expenence gains and losses

2012 201 2010 2009 2008

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Present value of defined benefit abhgation (31,776) (26,260) {25,811} {21,916) (16,985}
Fair value of scheme assets 27,019 24,361 24,274 21,552 19,512
(Deficit)/surplus in scheme (4,757) {1,899) {1537} (364) 2,527
Expenence adjustments on defined benefit obligation (178) 827 (14} {18) (36)
Percentage of present value of defined benefit obhgaten 06% (3 1%) 01% 01% 02%
Experience adjustments on fair value of scheme assets 1,288 (1,395) 1,363 760 (1,717)
Percentage of the fair value of the scheme assets 4 8% {5 7%) 5 6% 35% (4 0%)

The group expects to contnbute approximately £509,000 (2011 expected contribution In 2012 of £509,000) to the MBPS during the 2013 financ:al year

28 Contingent habilities

Claims in Malaysia

Four wnits claiming damages for ibel were 1ssued in Mataysia against the company and three of its employees in respect of an article published 0 one of
the company's magazines, International Commercial Litigation, in November 1995 The wnits were served on the company on October 22 1996 Two of
these wnts have been discontinued The total outstanding amount claimed on the two remaining wnits 15 Malaysian ringgits 82 3 million (£16,669,000)
No provision has been made for these claims in these financial statements as the direclors do not believe the company has any matenal lability in
respect of these writs

29 Related party transactions

The group has taken advantage of the exemption allowed under 1AS 24 Related party disclosures' not 1o disclose transactions and balances between
group companies that have been elrminated on consohdation Other related party transactions and balances are detaled below

() The group had borrowings under a US$300 million multi-currency fachty with DMGRH Finance Limited, a Dally Mail and General Trust plc (DMGT)
group company as follows

2012 2012 2011 201

Us5000 £000 uUssooo £000

Amounts owing under US$ facility at September 30 62,381 38,631 171,450 110,059
Amounts owmng under GBP faclity at September 30 - 4,523 - 20,000
43,154 130,059

Commitment fee on unused portion of the available facility for year - 618 ~ 72%
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements continued

29 Related party transactions continued

()

{m}

()

Durning the year the group expensed services provided by DMGT, the group s parent, and other fellow group compan:es, as follows

2012
£000

Services expensed 444

2011
£000

406

At Septermber 30, the group had fixed rate interest rate swaps outstanding with Daily Mail and General Holdings Liited (DMGH}, a fellow group

company, as follows

2012 2012 2011
Us5000 £000 Us$ooo

Interest rates between 2 S% and $ 4% and termination dates
between March 28 2013 and March 31 2014 on
US$ fixed rate interest rate swaps 40,000 24,71 95,000

20m
£000

60,983

Interest rate of 2 6% and termination date of March 28 2013
(2011 between September 30 2012 and March 28 2013}
GBP fixed rate interest rate swaps - 5,000 -

20,000

During the year the group paid interest to DMGH and related companmes in respect of interest rate swaps as follows

2012 2012 2011

LS$000 £000 Us$000

US4 interest paid 2,353 1,488 4,475
GBP Interest pa:d - 504 -

2011
£000

2784
974

In January 2011, the group granted an Indian Rupee 112 million loan faclity to RMSt Private Limited, 8 DMGT group company, at a 10 5% fixed

interest rate The loan was repaid to the group on November 21 2011

2012 2012 20N 201

INR 000 £000 INR 000 £000

Amounts owed under the faclity at September 30 - - 120,265 1,576
Interest iIncome during the year 1,476 18 8,264 111

In February 2011, Euromoney Holdings US Inc a group company, was granted a US$70 miilion shert-term loan facility from DMGH The loan was

repaid on February 17 2011 There were no amounts outstanding at September 30 2012

2012 2012 2011 2011

us$o00 £000 Ussoo0 £000

Amounts receved - - 70,000 43,750
Amounis paid - - (70,041) (43,776)
Interest expense = - (41) (26)
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29 Related party transactions continued

(v

(v}

{wn)

In February 2011, the company provided a US$70 million short-term loan facitity to DMGH The loan was repawd on February 17 2011 There were
no amounts outstanding at September 30 2012

2012 2012 20Mm 2011

Us$000 £000 UsS$000 £000

Amounts paid - - (70,000} 43,750
Amounts receved - - 70,041 (43,776)
Interest expense - - {41) {26)

During the year DMGT group companies surrendered tax fosses to Euromoney Consortium Limited under an agreement between the two groups
These tax losses are relievable against UK taxable profits of the group under HMRC's consortiumn relief rules

2012 2011
£000 £000
Amounts payable 2,584 831
Tax losses with tax value 3,445 1,109
Amounts owed to DMGT Group at September 30 — 831

During the year DMGT group companies surrendered tax losses to Euromoney Consorttum 2 Limited under an agreement between the two
groups These tax losses are relievable against UK taxable profits of the group under HMRC s consortiumn relef rules

2012 2011
£000 £000
Amounts payable 631 232
Tax losses with tax value 841 309
Amounts owed to DMGT Group at September 30 - 232

(vin} There 1s an annual put option agreement over the sale of Internet Secunties, In¢ (ISI) shares between the company and the minonty shareholders

(1)

x)

(x1)

of 151 The annual put option value 1s based on the valuatron of 151 as determined under a methodology provided by an independent financal
adwviser Under the terms of the put option agreement consideration caps have been put in place that require the maximum consideratson payable
to option holders to be capped at an amount such that the results of any relevant class tests would, at the relevant time, fall below the requirement
for shareholder approval In February 2012, under this put option mechanism, the group purchased 1 12% of the equity share capital of ISI for a
cash consideration of U5$1,326 000 (£840 000} The groups equity sharehalding in 51 increased to 99 92%

NF Osborn serves on the management board of A&N International Media Limited and both DMG Events and dmgr fellow group companies, for
which he receved fees for the year to September 30 2012 of £25,000 and U5$45,000 respectively (2011 £25,000 and U5340 000 respectively)

PM Fallon served as a director on the executive board of DMGT, the group’s parent Duning the year he earned non-executive direcior fees of
£24,500 (2011 £19,500) and received short-term employee benefits of £8,749 (2011 £6,907) PM Fallon died on October 14 2012

During the year the group received a dividend of £291,000 (2011 £656 000} from Caprtal Net Limited, an associate of the group
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements continued

29 Related party transactions continued

{(xu) The compensation paid or payable for key management 15 set out below Key management includes the executive and non-executive directors as
set out in the Directors’ Remuneration Report and other key divisional directors who are not on the board

Key management compensation

2012 2011
£000 £000
Salaries and short-term employee benefits 18,726 17,517
Non-executive directors’ fees 181 197
Post-employment benefits 137 159
Cther long-term benefits (all share-based) 1,272 2,644
20,316 20,517

Of which
Executive directors 16,458 15966
Non-executive directors 181 197
Disional directors 3,677 4,354
20,316 20,517

Detatls of the remuneration of directors is given in the Directors’ Remuneration Report

30 Events after the balance sheet date

The directors propose a final dvidend of 14 75p per share (2011 12 50p) totalling £18 342,000 {2011 £15,156,000) for the year ended
September 30 2012 The dividend will be submitted for formal approval at the Annual General Meetmg to be held on January 31 2013 In accordance
with IAS 10 'Events after the balance sheet date , these financial statements do not reflect this dividend payable but wall be accounted for in shareholders’
equity as an appropnation of retained earnings in the year ending September 30 2013 Qunng 2012, a final dwidend of 12 50p (2011 11 75p) per
share totalling £15,162,000 (2011 £13,928,000) was paid in respect of the dividend declared for the year ended September 30 2011

There were no other events after the balance sheet date

31 Ulumate parent undertaking and controtling party

The directors regard the ultimate parent undertaking as Rothermere Continuation Linuted, which 1 incorporated in Bermuda The ulimate controlling
party 15 The Viscount Rothermere The largest and smallest group of which the company 15 3 member and for which group accounts are drawn up
15 that of Daly Mait and General Trust plc, incorporated in Great Britain and registered in England and Wates Copies of iis report and accounts are
available from

The Company Secretary

Daily Mail and General Trust plc
Northcliffe House 2 Derry Street
London W8 51T

www dmagt co uk
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Independent Auditor’'s Company Report

to the members of Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

We have audited the parent company financial statements of Euromoney
institutional Investor PLC for the year ended Septemnber 30 2012 which
comprise the Company Balance Sheet and the related notes 1 to 17 The
financial reporting framework that has been appled in their preparation
1s applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards {(United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the companys members, as a body, in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Qur
audit work has been undertaken so that we rught state to the company's
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s
report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we
do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company
and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report,
or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement, the
directors are responsible for the preparation of the parent company
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and farr
view Our responsibifity 15 10 audit and express an opinion on the parent
company financial statements 0 accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards
require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board s Ethical Standards
for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financal statements

An audit invoives obtairung evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the fiancial statements sufficient to give reascnable assurance that the
financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused
by fraud or errar This includes an assessment of whether the accounting
policies are appropriate 1o the parent company's arcumstances and have
been consistently apphed and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall
presenmtation of the financial statements In addition, we read all the
financial and nen-financial information in the annual report to identify
matenal inconsistencies with the audited financial statements If we
become aware of any apparent matenal misstatements or Inconsistencies
we consider the implications for our report

Opinion on finanaial statements

in our opinion the parent company financial statements

& gwe a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at
Septernber 30 2012 and of its profit for the year then ended,

® have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and

e have been prepared in accordance with the requrements of the
Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matters prescnibed by the Companies Act
2006

tn our opition

e the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report 10 be audited has
been properly prepared in accordance with the Comparies Act 2006,
and

e the informaticn given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year
tor which the financial statements are prepared 1s consistent with the
parent company finanaal statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the {ollowing matters where the
Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if in our opinion

e adeguate accountng records have not been kept by the parent
company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been receved
from branches not visited by us, or

e the parent company financal statements and the part of the
Directors' Remuneratton Report to be audited are not in agreement
with the accounting records and returns, or

e certan disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are
not made, or

® we have not received all the information and explanations we require
for our audit

Other matter

We have reported separately an the group financial statements of
Euromoney Institutional investor PLC for the year ended September 30
2012

Matritaos —
Robert Matthews (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
London Umited Kingdom
November 14 2012
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Company Balance Sheet

as at September 30 2012

2012 2011
Notes £000 £000
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 4 3,635 4,161
Investments 5 983,513 038,461
987,148 942,622
Current assets
Debtors 6 45,792 98,392
Corparation tax 2,808 2,857
Cash at bank and in hand 10 a2
48,610 131,29
Current habilities
Bank overdrafts (13,699) (353)
Amounts owed to subsichary undertakings (114,459) (53,405}
Other taxation and socal security (270) (253}
Deferred income - (325)
Dernvative financiat instruments i2 (439) (1,251}
Committed loan facility {(see note 20 in the group accounts) - {58,516}
Lean notes (1,228) {1,617}
(130,095) (115,720}
Net current assets (81,485) (14,429}
Total assets less current habilities 905,663 928,193
Non-current habilities
Committed loan facility {see note 20 in the group accounts) (43,154) (71,543}
Dervative financial instruments 12 (206) (1,315)
Prowistons 7 {1,521} {1,521}
{44,881) (74,379)
Net assets 860,782 853,814
Capital and reserves
Called up share capstal g 311 303
Share premwum account 13 99,485 82,124
Other reserve - 13 64,981 64,981
Capital redemption reserve 13 8 8
Capital reserve 13 1,842 1,842
Own shares 13 (74} (74}
Reserve for share-based payments 13 36,055 33,725
Fair value reserve 13 1,223 (261}
Profit and loss account 13 656,951 671,166
Equity shareholders’ funds 14 860,782 853,814

Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC (registered number 954730) has taken advantage of section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and has not included
its own profit and loss account in these accounts The profit after taxation of Euromoney Instititional Investor PLC included in the group profit for the
year 15 £9,579,000 (2011 £417,008,000)

The accounts were oved by the board of directors on November 14 2012

Richard Ensor \\
Colin Jones
Directors A \’-\/
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Notes to the Company Accounts

1 Accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The accounts have been prepared under the histoncal cost convention
except for dervative financial instruments which have been measured at
far value and in accordance with applicable Umted Kingdom accounting
standards and the United Kingdorm Companies Act 2006 The accounting
policies set out below have, unless otherwise stated, been applied
consistently throughout the current and prior year

The company has taken advaniage of the exemption from presenting
a cash flow statement under the terms of FRS 1 (Revised) 'Cash Flow
Statements

The company 1s also exempt under the terms of FRS 8 'Related Party
Disclosures’ from disclosing related party transactions with members of a
group that are wholly owned by a member of that group

Further, the company, as a parent company of a group drawing up
consolidated financial statements that meet the requirements of {FRS 7
‘Finanaial instruments Disclosure’ 1s exempt from disclosures that comply
with 1ts UK GAAP eguivalent, FRS 29 ‘Financial Statements Disclosures’

Going concern, debt covenants and hquidity

The financial position of the group, its cash flows and l\quidity position
are set out i detail in this annual report The group meets its day-to-day
working capital requirements through its US$300 million dedicated multi-
currency borrowing facility with Daily Mail and General Trust plc group
(DMGT) The facility 15 divided inte sterling and US doltar funds with a
total maximum borrowing capacity of US$250 million (£155 miflion) and
£33 million respectively and matures in December 2013 The facilitys
covenant requires the group’s net debt to be no more than four times
adjusted EBITDA on a rolling 12 month basis At September 30 2012, the
group’s net debt to adjusted EBITDA covenant was 0 27 times and the
committed undrawn faclity available to the group was £144 7 milion

In addtion, the group has agreed terms with DMGT that prowvide it with
access to US$300 mithon of funding should the group require 1t dunng the
pernod from December 2013 through Apnl 2016

The group’s forecasts and projections, looking out to September 2015 and
taking account of reasonably posstble changes 1n trading performance,
show that the group should be able to operate wathin the level and
covenants of rts current borrowing facility

After making enquires, the directors have a reasonable expectation that
the group has adeguate resources to continue in operational exstence for
the foreseeable future Accordingly, the directors continue to adopt the
goIng concern basis in prepanng this annual report

Turnover
Turnaver represents income from advertising, subscriptions, spansorship
and delegate fees, net of value added tax

®  Advertising revenues are recognised In the income statement on the
date of pubhcation

¢  Subscniption revenues are recognised in the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the perod of the subscription

¢ Sponsorship and delegate revenues are recognised in the income
statement over the penod the event 1s run

Turnaver invoiced but relating to future penods is deferred and treated as
deferred income in the balance sheet

Leased assets

Operating lease rentals are charged 1o the profit and loss account on a
straight-line or other systematic basis as allowed by SSAP 21 'Accounting
for Leases and Hire Purchase Contracts'

Pension schemes

Details of the company's pension schemes are set out in note 27 to the
group accounts The company participates in the Harmsworth Pension
Scheme, a defined benefit pension scheme which is operated by Daly
Mail and General Trust plc As there s no contractual agreement or stated
pohcy for charging the net defined benefit cost for the plan as a whole
to the indwvidual entities the company recognises an expense egual 16 its
contributions payable in the period and does not recogruse any unfunded
liability of this pension scheme on its batance sheet

Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any recognised impairment loss

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 1s provided on the straight-hne basis
over their expected useful lives at the foliowing rates per year

Short-term leasehold premises over term of lease

Taxation
Current tax including UK corporation tax and foreign tax, i1s provided
at armounts expected 1o be pad {(or recovered) using the tax rates and
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date
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Notes to the Company Accounts continued

1 Accounting policies continued

Deferred taxation s calculated under the provisions of FRS 19 Deferred
Taxation’, and 15 provided i full on tming differences that result in an
obligation at the balance sheet date to pay more tax, or a nght to pay
less tax, at a future date, at rates expected to apply when the timing
differences crystalise based on current tax rates and Jaw Deferred tax is
not provided on tim:ng differences on unremitted earnings of subsichanes
and associates where there 1s no commitment to remit these earnings
Deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is regarded as
more likely than not that they will be recovered

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange
ruling at the date of the transaction or, If hedged forward, at the rate of
exchange of the retated foreign exchange contract Monetary assets and
habilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at
the rates ruling at the balance sheet date

Derivatives and other financial instruments

The company uses various derivative finanaal instruments to manage its
exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate nisks, in¢luding forward
foreign currency contracts and interest rate swaps

All derivative insiruments are recarded in the balance sheet at farr value
Recognition of gains or losses on dervative instruments depends on
whether the instrument s designated as a hedge and the type of exposure
it 15 designed to hedge

The effective portion of gains or losses on cash flow hedges are deferred
in equity until the impact from the hedged item 15 recognised In the
profit and loss account The meffective portion of such gains and losses 15
recagrised in the profit and loss account immediately

Gains or losses on the qualifying part of net mnvestment hedges are
recogrused in equity together with the gains and losses on the underlying
net investment The ineffective portion of such gains and losses is
recagnised in the profit and loss account immediately

Changes n the fair value of the dervative financial instruments that do
not qualfy for hedge accounting are recogrused in the profit and loss
account as they anise

The premium or discount on Interest rate instruments 1s recognised as part
of net interest payable over the peried of the contract Interest rate swaps
are accounted for on an accruals basis

Labiliies for put options over the remaining minonty interests n
subsidiaries are recorded i the balance sheet at ther estimated
discounted present value These discounts are unwound and charged

124

to the :ncome statement as notional interest over the pencd up to the
date of the potential future payment In respect of options over further
interesis sn joint ventures and associates, anly movements 1n their far
value are recognised

Subsidianes

Investments in subsidharies are accounted for at cost less imparrment Cost
1s adjusted to reflect amendments from contingent consideration Cost
also includes direct attnbutable cost of investment

Trade and other receivables

Trade recevables are recognised and carned at onginal invoice amount,
less prowston for impairment A provision 1s made and charged to the
profit and loss account when there s objective evidence that the company
will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms

Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash, short-term deposits and other
short-term highly liquid investments with an onginal maturity of three
months or less

Dwidends

Dmdends are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
approved by the company’s shareholders Intenm dividends are recorded
in the penod in which they are paid

Provisions

A provision 15 recagnised in the balance sheet when the company has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it1s
probable that economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
If 1t 15 matertal, provisions are deterrmined by discounting the expected
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and, where approprate the nsks specific to
the hability

Share-based payments

The company makes share-based payments to certain employees which
are equity-settled These payments are measured at their estimated far
value at the date of grant calculated using an appropriate optien priang
model The fair value determined at the grant date is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting penod based on the estimate of the
number of shares that will eventually vest At the penod end the vesting
assumptions are revisited and the charge asscciated with the fair value
of these options updated In accordance with the transitional prowisions,
FRS 20 *Share-based payments’ has been applied to all grants of options
after November 7 2002, that were unvested at October 1 2004, the date
of application of FRS 20
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2 Staff costs

e

2012 201
£000 E00O
Salanes, wages and incentives 43 10
Social securtty costs 6 1
Share-based compensation costs {note 10) (1,712) 96
{1,663) 107
Details of directars’ remuneration are set out in the Directors” Remuneration Report on pages 41 to 52 and in rote 7 of the group accounts
The directors do not recerve emoluments specifically for ther servces to this company
3 Remuneration of auditor
2012 2011
£000 £000
Fees payable for the audt of the company’s annual accounts 447 509
4 Tangible assets
Short-term
leaseho!d
premises
£000
Cost
At October 1 2011 and September 30 2012 8,322
Deprectation .
At October 1 2011 4,161
Charge for the year 526
At September 30 2012 4,687
Net book value at September 30 2012 3,635
Net book value at September 30 2011 4,161
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Notes to the Company Accounts continued

5 Investments

At October 1
Additions

Disposals

Exchange differences
At September 30

2012 201

Investments Investments

In associated In associated
Subsidiartes undertakings Total Subsidiaries  undertakings Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
938,432 29 938,461 468,248 29 468,277
46,940 - 46,940 830,809 - 830,809
- - - (361,539) - (361,539
(1,838) - (1,888} 914 — 914
983,484 29 983,513 038,432 25 938,461

In Apnl 2012, the company assigned 1ts loan recewable with BCA Research, Inc to Euromeney Institutional Investor (Jersey) Limited (EIlJ) in return for

increased investment n EllJ

During 2011, the company restructured 1ts investments to take advantage of HMRC's consortium relief rules to enable its subsidiaries, where appropnate,
to claim tax losses from the DMGT group As part of the restructuring, the company acquired a 57 % stake in Euromoney Canada Limited (ECL) (formerly
Euromoney Telcap 1 Limited) and 100% stake in Euromoney Canada Finance Limited (ECFL) (formerly Euromoney Telcap 2 Limited) from its subsidiary
Euromaoney institutional Investor {(Ventures) Lumited (EIlV) Following the acquisiion, the company sold 180% of its shareholding in £V to ECFL

Also in 2011, as part of a project to reduce the number of legal entities within the group Euromoney Yen Finance Limited {EYF), a 100% owned
subsidiary, was struck off the register at Companies House during the year Accordingly the company's investment in EYF, previously impaured to £nil

net book value, was written off

Details of the principal subsidiary and associated undertakings of the company at September 30 2012 can be found in note 14 to the group accounts

6 Debtors

Due within one year

Trade debtors

Amounts owed by DMGT group undertakings
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings
Other debtors

Deferred tax {(note 8)

Prepayments and accrued income
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2012 2011
£000 £000
532 -
2,344 645
42,268 95,535
165 -
148 2,212
335 -
45,792 98 392
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7 Provisions

At October 1 and September 30

Matunty profile of provisions
Between two and five years

8 Deferred tax

The deferred tax asset at September 30 compnsed

Tax losses
Other short-term tming differences
Provision for deferred tax

Movement in deferred tax

Deferred tax asset at October 1

Deferred tax charge in the profit and loss account
Deferred tax charge to equity

Deferred tax asset at September 30

A deferred tax asset of £148,000 {2011 £2,212,000) has been recognised in respect of 1ax losses and other shori-term timing differences The directors
are of the opsnion that based on recent and forecast trading, the level of profits In future years are more hkely than not to be sufficient to enable the

asset to be recovered

2012

2011

Ditapidations  Dilapidations
on leasehold  on leasehold

properties praperties
£000 £000
1,521 1,521
2012 2011
£000 £000
1.521 1,521
1,521 1,521
2012 2011
£000 £000
- 1,571
148 641
148 2,212
2012 2011
£000 £000
2,212 9,466
(1,571 6,315)
{493) {939
148 2,212
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Notes to the Company Accounts continued

9 Share capital

2012 2011
£000 £000
Allotted, called up and fully paid
124,349,531 ordinary shares of 0 25p each (2011 121,247,380 ordinary shares of 0 25p each) 311 303

During the year, 3,102,151 ordinary shares of 0 25p each (2011 2,755,469 ordinary shares) with an aggregate nominal value of £7,755 (2011 £6,889)
were issued as follows 2,381,410 ordinary shares (2011 2,226,089} under the company’s 2009 scrip dvidend alternative for a cash consideration of
£nil {2011 £nil), and 720,741 ordinary shares (2011 529,380 ordinary shares) following the exercise of share options granted under the company's
share option schemes for a cash consideration of £1,058,834 (2011 £718,392)

10 Share-based payments

An explanation of the company’s share-based payment arrangements are set out in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 42 10 45 The number
of shares under option, the fair value per option granted and the assumptions used to determine their values 1s given in note 24 to the group accounts
Therr dilutive effect on the number of weighted average shares of the company 1s given In note 11 10 the group accounts

Share option schemes

The executive and Save as You Earn (SAYE) Options were valued using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model Expected volatiity was determined by
calculating the historical volatiity of the group’s share price over a 15 year penod The executive options' fair values have been discounted at a rate
of 10% to reflect their performance conditions The expected term of the option used In the model has been adjusted, based on management’s best
estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural consideratians The charge recognised in the year in respect of these
options was £97,000 (2011 £96,000) Details of the executive and SAYE options are set out In note 24 to the group accounts

Capital Appreciation Plan 2004 (CAP 2004)

The CAP 2004 options were valued using a fair value model that adjusted the share price at the date of grant for the net present value of
expected future dividend streams up to the date of expected exercise The expected term of the option used In the models has been adjusted,
based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restnctions and behavioural considerations The
share-based credit in the year for the CAP 2004 opuions was £1,809,000 (2011 £nil) Detaidls of the CAP 2004 options are set out n note 24 to the
group accounts

Capital Appreciation Plan 2010 (CAP 2010) and Company Share Optich Plan 2010 (CSOP 2010)

The CAP 2010 and CSOP 2010 options were valued ysing a fair value model that adjusted the share price at the date of grant for the net present value
of expected future dwvidend streams up to the date of expected exercise The expected term of the option used in the models has been adjusted, based
on managements best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations The share-based expense
recognised in the year for the CAP 2010 and CSOP 2010 options was £rul (2011 £mil} Details of the CAP 2010 and CSOP 2010 options are set out In
note 24 to the group accounts (excludes 1SI and cash-settied options)

There 15 no cost or liability for the cash element of the CAP 2010 option scheme These are borne by the company's subsidiary undertakings

A recanciiation of the options outstanding at Septernber 30 2012 15 detailed in note 24 to the group accounts
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11 Commitments and contingent hability

At September 30 the company has commutted to make the following payments in respact of operating leases on land and buildings

2012 2011
£000 £000

Operating leases which expire
Within one year - -
Between two and five years 690 707
Qver five years 242 242
932 949

Cross-guarantee
The company, together with the ultimate parent company and certain other companies in the Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC group, have given
an unhmuited cross-guarantee in favour of its bankers

12 Financial instruments

Derivative finanaial instruments
The dervatwve financial assets/{liabilities) at September 30 comprised

2012 2011
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
£000 £000 £0C0 £000
Interest rale swaps - (545) - (2 566)
Current portion = (439) -~ {1251)
Non-current portion - (206) - {1,315)

The company holds all the interest rate swaps for the group and full details regarding these can be found In note 19 to the group accounts
There were no dervatives outstanding at the balance sheet date that were designated as fair value hedges

Hedge of net nvestment in foreign entity

The company has US dollar denominated borrowings which it has designated as a hedge of the net investment of its subsidraries which have
US dollars as therr functional currency The change in fair value of these hedges resulted In a decreased hability of £1,888,000 (2011 increase in
liability of £914,000) which has been deferred in reserves where 1t 15 offset by the translation of the related investment and will only be recognised
in the company’s profit and loss account If the related investment 1s sold There are no differences in these hedges charged to the profit and loss
account in the current and prior year

Far values of non-denvative financial assets and finanaial habilities

Where market values are not available, fair values of financial assets and financial liabiliies have been calculated by discounting expected future cash
flows at prevailing interest rates and by applying year end exchange rates The carrying amounts of short-term borrowings approximate the book value
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Notes to the Company Accounts continued

13 Reserves

At September 30 2010
Retained profit for the year

Change in fair value of cash flow hedges
Tax on items taken directly to equity

Capital contribution

Credit for share-based payments

Scripfcash dvidends paid
Exerase of share options
At September 30 2011
Retained profit for the year

Change in farr value of cash flow hedges
Tax on items taken direcily to eguity
Credit for share-based payments

Scnip/cash dwvidends paid
Exercise of share options
At September 30 2012

Reserve
for
Capitat share-
Share redemp- based Fair Profit
Share premum  Other tion  Capital Own pay- value and loss
capital account reserve reserve reserve shares ments reserve account Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £00D £000 £000 £000 £000
296 66,082 64,981 8 1,842 (7d4) 15,229 {2,917) 375,644 521,091
- - - - - - - - 417,008 417,008
- - - - - - - 3,595 - 3,595
- - - - - - - (939) - (939)
- - - - - - - - (100,038} {100,038)
- - - - - - 18496 - - 18,496
& 15325 - - - - - - {21,448 (6,1'N
1 717 - - - - - - - 718
303 82,124 64,981 8 1,842 (74} 33725 (261) 671,166 853,814
- - - - - - - - 9,579 9,579
- - - - - - - 1377 - 1977
- - - - - - - {493) - (493)
- - - - - - 2,330 - - 2,330
6 16,304 - - - - - - (23,794) (7.484)
2 1,057 - - - - - - - 1,059
311 99485 64,981 8 1,842 (74) 36,055 1,223 656,951 850,782

The investment in own shares 1s hetd by the Euromoney Employees’ Share Ownership Trust (ESOT) At Septermber 30 2012 the ESOT held 58,9756 shares
(2011 58,976 shares) carned at a historic cost of £1 25 per share with a market value of £454,000 (2011 £363,000) The trust wawved the nghts to

receive dividends Interest and administrative costs are charged to the profit and loss account of the ESOT as incurred

The other reserve represents the share premum arising on the shares issued for the purchase of Metal Bulletin plc in October 2006

Of the reserves above £36,055,000 (2011 £33,725,000) of the hability for share-based payments and £575,168,000 (2011 £589,383,000) of
the profit and loss account 1s distnbutable to equity shareholders of the company The remaining balance of £81,783,000 (2011 £81,783,000) 15

not distnbutable
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14 Reconcliation of movements in equity shareholders’ funds

Profit for the financal year inclusive of dwvidends
Dividends paid

Issue of shares

Change in farir value of cash flow hedges

Tax on 1tems taken directly to equity

Credit to equity for share-based payments
Capital contribution

Net increase in equity shareholders’ funds
Opening equity shareholders’ funds

Closing equity shareholders’ funds

15 Related party transactions

Related party transactions and balances are detailed below

2012 2011
£000 £000
9,579 417,008
(23,794) {21,448)
(14,215) 395,560
17.369 16,049
1,977 3,595
{493) {939
2,330 18,496
- {100,038)

6,968 332,723
853,814 521,091
860,782 853,814

(1} The company had borrowings under a U5$300 mullion multi-currency facility with DMGRH Finance Limited, a fellow group company (note 20 of

group accounts}

2012
uss000

Amounts owing under US$ faciity at September 30 62,381
Amounts owing under GBP faclity at September 30 -

Commitment fee on unused portion of the available facility for year -

2012
£000

38,631
4,523
43,154
618

2011
Us3$000

171,450

2011
£000

110,059
20,000

130,059

721

() At September 30, the company had fixed rate interest rate swaps outstanding with Daily Mail and General Holdings Limited (DMGH), a fellow

group company, as follows

2012 2012 201 201

Us5000 £000 US5000 £000
Interest rates between 2 5% and % 4% and termination dates
between March 28 2013 and March 31 2014 on US$ fixed rate
Interest rate swaps 40,000 24,7171 95,000 50 983
Interest rate of 2 6% and termmation date of March 28 2013
{2011 between September 30 2012 and March 28 2013)
GBP fixed rate interest rate swaps - 5,000 - 20,000
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Notes to the Company Accounts continued

15 Related party transactions continued

({1

(v}

During the year the group paid interest to DMGH and related comparnies in respect of interest rate swaps as follows

2012 2012 2011 2011

Us$000 £000 us$ooo £000

USH interest pad 2,353 1,488 4,475 2,784
GBP mnterest paid - 504 - 974

In February 2011, the company provided U53$70 millon short-term loan facility to DMGH, a fellow group company The loan was repaid on
February 17 2011 There were no amounts outstanding as at September 30 2012

2012 2012 2011 2011

Us4$000 £000 Us3000 £000
Amounts paid - - (#0,000) (43,750)
Amounis received - - 70,041 83,778
Interest income - - 41 26

During the year the company recewved a dividend of £291,000 (2011 £656,000) from Capital Net Limited an associate of the company

16 Post balance sheet event

The directors propose a final dwdend of 14 75p per share (2011 12 50p) totalting £18,342,000 {2011 £15,156,000) for the year ended September 30
2012 subject to approval at the Annual General Meeting to be held on January 31 2013 In accordance wath FRS 21 Post Balance Sheet Events', these
financial statements do not reflect this dividend payable but wiil be accounted for in shareholders” equity as an appropriation of retained earnings in
the year ending September 30 2013 Dunng 2012, a finat dvidend of 12 80p (2011 #1 75p) per share totalling £15 162,000 (2011 £13,928,000) was
pard In respect of the dividend declared for the year ended Septernber 30 2011

17 Ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party

The directors regard the ultimate parent undertzking as Rothermere Continuation Limited, which 1s incorporated in Bermuda The ultimate controlling
party s The Viscount Rothermere The largest and smallest group of which the company 1s a member and for which group accounts are drawn up
s that of Daily Mall and General Trust plc, incorporated in Great Britain and registered in England and Wales Copres of its report and accounts are
availahle from

The Company Secretary

Daily Mail and Generaf Trust plc
Northclffe House, 2 Derry Street
London W§ 5TT

www dmgt co uk
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Five Year Record

Consolidated Income Statement Extracts

2008 2009 2010 20Mm 2012
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Total revenue 332,064 317,584 330,006 363,142 394,144

Operating profit before acquired intangible amortisation,

long-term incentive expense and exceptional items 81,308 79,447 100,057 108,967 118,175

Acquired intangible amortisation (12,749) {15,881) (13,671 (12,221) (14,782)

Long-term incentive expense (5,361) (2,697) (4,364} (9,491) (6,301)

Additronal accelerated long-term incentive expense - - - 6,603) -

Exceptional items (2,477) (33,901) (228) (3,295} (1,617)
Operating profit before associates 60,721 26,958 81,794 77,357 95,475
Share of results in associates 308 219 281 408 459
Operating profit 61029 27177 82,075 77,765 95,934
Net finance costs (23,603) (44,538) (10,651) (9,568} {3,566)
Profit/{loss) before tax 37,426 (17,361) 71,424 68,197 92,368
Tax credit/{expense} on profit(loss) 7.279 10,412 (12,839) (22,527) {22,528)
Profit/{loss) after tax from continuing operations 44,705 (6,949) 58,585 45,670 69,840
Profi from discontinued operations 245 1,207 - - -
Profit/(loss) for the year 44,950 (5,742) 58,585 45670 69,840
Attributable to
Equity holders of the parent 43,719 (6,287 58,105 45,591 69,672
Equity non-controfling inferests 1231 545 430 79 168
Profit/{loss} for the year 44 950 (5,742) 58,585 45,670 69,840
Basic earnings/{loss} per share 41 69p (683)p 50 04p 38 02p 56 74p
Diuted earnings/ioss) per share 40 37p (667)p 49 47p 37 34p 55 17p
Adjusted diluted earnings per share 44 36p 40 39p 53 50p 56 05p €65 91p
Diuted weighted average number of ordinary shares 107,687 024 112,372,620 117,451,228 122,112,168 126,280,412
Dwidend per share 19 25p 14 00p 18 00p 18 75p 21 75p
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position extracts
tntangible assets 407 578 425 648 422,707 490042 469,308
Non-current assets 41,318 39,002 40,921 33,824 26,357
Accruals (50,016} {46,972) (45,473) {56,249) (54,170)
Deferred income hability {89 AB8} {82,599) (93,740) (105 507} {105,106)
Other net current assets/(iabilities} {171,250 {16,642 21,962 (12,304) 32,151
Non-current habilities (50,038} {213,446} (176,894) (124,231) (80.616)
Net assets 88 064 104,991 169,483 225575 287,924
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Financial Calendar and
Shareholder Information

2012 Hinat results announcement
Final dividend ex-dividend date
Final dividend record date

Interim management statement
2013 AGM (approval of final dividend)
Payment of final dividend

2013 interim results announcement
Interim dividend ex-dividend date
Interim dividend record date
Payment of 2013 intenim dividend
2013 final results announcement

Loan note interest paid to holders of loan notes on

*  Provisional dates and are subject to change

Shareholder enquiries

Admirustrative enguines about a holding of Euromoney Institutional
Investor PLC shares should be directed in the first instance to the
company’s registrar whose address 15

Equiritt
Aspect House
Spencer Road
Lanang

West Sussex
BNS9 6DA

Telephone 0871 384 2030 (calls cost 8p per minute from a BT landline
Cther telephone provider costs may vary}
Overseas Telephone (C0) 44 121 415 7047

A number of faciities are avallable to shareholders through the secure
online site www shareview uk including

— Viewing heldings and obtaining an indicative value,

— Notifying a change of address,

— Requesting receipt of shareholder commumnications by email rather
than by post,

Thursday Novemnber 15 2012
Wednesday November 21 2012
Friday November 23 2012
Thursday January 31 2013
Thursday January 31 2013
Thursday February 14 2013
Thursday May 16 2013*
Wednesday May 22 2013~
Friday May 24 2013*
Thursday June 20 2013*
Thursday November 14 2013~

Monday December 31 2012
Friday June 28 2013

~ Viewing dwidend payment history, and
~ Making dwdend payment choices

Loan note redemption information

Loan notes can be redeemed twice a year on the interest payment dates
above by depositing the Notice of Repayment printed on the Loan Note
Certificate at the company's registered office At least 20 business days’
written notice pnoy 1o the redemption date 1s required

Registered office

Nestor House
Playhouse Yard
Biackfriars
London

ECAV SEX
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